His Highness
Sheikh Tamim bin Hamad Al-Thani
The Amir of the State of Qatar
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QIC GROUP KEY
INFORMATION
QIC Group believes in an open
architecture- we collaborate with
our partners and embed the latest
technology into our processes
to create a seamless experience
for our customers and ensure
maximum customer satisfaction.
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QIC GROUP KEY INFORMATION

QIC
QR Million
Gross premiums written

115

844

926

664

418

1,034

1,044

1,001

Equity attributable to parent

863

986

925

899

1,027

23,639

22,297

19,112

14,603

11,815

8.2

5.1

14.7

18.1

18.4

39,165

34,734

28,715

23,673

16,332

7,726

8,017

8,236

5,812

5,705

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Our Shares
Earnings per share (QR)*
QIC market capitalisation (QR Mn)
Dividend per share (QR)

Shapes symbolize a variety of characteristics, each conveying a different message.

2014
5,614

576

Total Assets

The two sides of the triangle represent Stability and Security as manifested
by the continued trust, faith and confidence customers place in our products
and services.

2015
8,347

646

Return on equity (%)

The base of the triangle (horizontal line) denotes Strength of our
foundation, which has been built on our core values and business ethics.

2016
9,901

Underwriting results
Investment & other Income

For QIC Group, the point-up triangle signifies ambition,
progress and growth, while the three sides represent the three
pillars - Strength, Stability and Security on which QIC has been
founded.

2017
11,659

Net profit attributable to parent
Cash and Investments

SIGNIFICANCE
OF TRIANGLES USED

2018
12,606

1.78

1.11

3.24

3.27

3.14

11,449

14,423

20,449

15,139

14,545

1.5

1.5

1.5

2.5

2.5

Bonus Share (%)
Share price at 31 December (QR)
Book value per share (QR)

-

15%

15%

10%

15%

35.9

52.01

84.8

82

90.6

24.23

28.91

34.16

31.48

35.53

* Restated for the effect of issuance of Bonus Shares

For QIC, the triangle symbolizes a strong shield that provides stability and protection
to customers.

** Disclaimer for A.M. Best:
For all rating information including details of the office responsible for issuing the individual ratings please visit
A.M. Best’s Ratings & Criteria Center.

Geometrically, the triangle consists of three equal straight lines each with a 60 degree
angle, which denotes stability all through the year.

*** Disclaimer for S&P Rating:
For all rating information please visit www.standardandpoors.com

In tandem with the continued efforts of our committed and skilled employees, the three
pillars of QIC – Strength, Stability & Security provide year-on-year sustainable growth, quality
service, profitable return and value to all our stakeholders including the larger society where we
operate.
Despite volatility and adverse market dynamics, the consistent returns that we provide to our
shareholders and customers alike - year after year is evident from our sterling financial performance.
Financial Strength Rating

Standard and Poor’s

A.M. Best

As a global franchise, we strive to achieve success and withstand the vagaries of the economy. Our focused
effort and commitment towards achieving sustainability is what we believe will help us to emerge as a
stable, strong and secure organization in the years ahead.
Committed to Sustainability and beyond!

88
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VISION
The Group’s Vision of the future is to maintain our drive for growth and excellence through
innovation, diversification and responsible leadership. By means of existing and new
strategic alliances and partnerships we aim to create the optimum framework for continuous
profitable development.

STATEMENT OF VALUES
At QIC Group we value each employee and acknowledge their own distinctive contribution.
We value their effort, their enterprise, their contribution and opinions.
Our Group is being built on teamwork, respect, and mutual trust. Each person, at whatever level
she or he may operate, is empowered and will therefore make their own unique contribution.
Each employee is encouraged to be responsible for their own actions. We encourage
positive contribution, acknowledge innovation and reward excellence. We encourage a safe
workplace, comply with all laws and regulations and strive to meet the expectations and
requirements of our customers. We value our customers as trusted partners.
We value constructive feedback and candid comment. We endeavour to absorb these into our
business model. Honest criticism is accepted as a valued contribution to our organisation. We
meet our obligations to shareholders, customers, employees and society.

10
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QIC GROUP’S
MULTIPILLAR
BUSINESS
In the era of convenience,
delivering growth stems from
putting in place predictive
growth capabilities, which
includes innovation that is
based on speed, agility, and
quality of services.
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QIC GROUP’S MULTI-PILLAR BUSINESS

QIC GROUP’S MULTI-PILLAR BUSINESS
01. Direct Insurance
Qatar Insurance Company (QIC),
a part of QIC Group is a publicly
listed composite insurer with a
consistent performance history of
55 years and a global underwriting
footprint. Founded in 1964, QIC
was the first domestic insurance
company in the State of Qatar. Since
its inception, QIC has consistently
navigated individuals and businesses
through economic cycles by offering
a diverse portfolio for personal
(car, home, travel, boat, personal
accident benefit) and commercial
(energy, marine & aviation, property
& commercial, medical & motor)
insurances, combining distribution
with excellent service delivery. Today
QIC is the market leader in Qatar
and the leading insurer in the MENA
region. QIC is one of the highest
rated insurers in the Gulf region with
a rating of A/Stable from Standard
& Poor’s and A(Excellent) from A.M.
Best. In terms of profitability and
market capitalization, QIC is also the
largest insurance company in the
MENA region. It is listed on the Qatar
Stock Exchange and has a market
capitalization of over USD 3 billion.

02. Reinsurance
Qatar Re, licensed as a Class 4 Insurer
by the Bermuda Monetary Authority,
is a global multi-line reinsurer
writing all major property, casualty
and specialty lines of business.
Qatar Re serves its clients through
teams of seasoned underwriting and
finance professionals combining
in-depth technical and business
expertise with industry experience

14
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across all markets. Through its
headquarters in Bermuda, branch
offices in Zurich and London, Qatar
Re is close to the world’s major
reinsurance markets and the core
operations of its clients.
Qatar Re is backed by a parental
guarantee from Qatar Insurance
Company S.A.Q. (QIC) and benefits
from QIC’s substantial and growing
capital base. Qatar Re is rated
“A/Stable” by S&P Global and “A
(Excellent)” by A. M. Best.

04. Life & Medical
QLM Life & Medical Insurance W.L.L.
differentiates itself from its peers
by offering innovative, tailor-made
insurance solutions that are coupled
with world class level of customer
service. The company’s core strength
lies in a strong financial base, 24/7 inhouse operations, a highly qualified
workforce with in-depth knowledge
of local and international markets
and a diversified product range that
provides premier services through a
worldwide network of providers.

03. Specialty Insurance
Antares, a subsidiary of QIC Group
is a specialist insurer and reinsurer
operating at Lloyd’s in London,
Shanghai and Singapore.
Lloyd’s is the world’s global
insurance and reinsurance market of
choice. Antares delivers a worldwide
diversified range of Property,
Reinsurance, Casualty, Specialty and
Marine and Aviation underwriting
services
through
its
highly
experienced team of underwriters.
Antares is dedicated to provide an
efficient and effective service to its
clients ensuring quality, security,
continuity and a consistent approach
to risk transfer. Antares benefits
from the consistently strong security
ratings assigned to Lloyd’s “A+” from
Standard & Poor’s and “A” from A.M.
Best.

05. Asset Management
QIC Asset Management (QICAM)
is the investment division of QIC
Group. QICAM manages the Group’s
proprietary investments as well as
various investment funds on behalf
of third party clients. It has a highly
experienced and qualified team
of professionals with a collective
investment experience of over 100
years. QICAM has played a vital role
in making exceptional contributions
to the Group’s continued profitability
and unparalleled success.

06. Real Estate
QICR is a 100% subsidiary of QIC
Group, focusing on real estate
investments. QICR’s portfolio consists
of high quality real estate assets,
mostly in Qatar. The company focuses
on investing in income generating
real estate assets with strong anchor
tenants, with an intention to earn
rental income.
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& MANAGING
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CHAIRMAN & MD’S MESSAGE

Dear Shareholder,
I am delighted to present to you our Annual Report for the year ended 31st December 2018,
which highlights the developments within your Company.
Emerging valiantly through challenging times, in 2018, Qatar’s economy demonstrated stable
growth and resilience under the directives of the Amir His Highness Sheikh Tamim bin Hamad
Al Thani. The policies and measures adopted by Qatar have been a cornerstone in achieving
further economic diversification and self-sufficiency. Not only that, but it has also supported
the success of the nation’s private sector and facilitated in achieving sustainability.
With the aim to further boost its contribution towards the nation’s economy, your Company
has made consistent efforts in achieving its targeted growth. As reaffirmed through its slogan,
“Expanding Globally, Leading Regionally”, your Company has further widened its book of
business while strengthening its foundation in its home turf.
Amidst prevailing turbulences across markets, last year QIC demonstrated a stable financial
performance. I am pleased to report a rise of 8% in Gross Written Premium (GWP) to QAR 12.6
billion from QAR 11.7 billion in 2017. In comparison to many other insurers with a comparable
global footprint, your Company generated a positive Return on Equity (ROE) of 8.2% with
Earnings per Share (EPS) of QAR 1.78 in 2018.
To ensure a sustainable future for its customers and shareholders, your Company has
implemented best- in- class standards in service excellence and product innovation, not only
in the region but increasingly so across all markets.
Through the right mix of value propositions, your Company pledges its unwavering support
to achieve the Qatar National Vision 2030. I am confident that under the wise leadership of
the Amir, your Company will continue to prosper and record steady growth and development.
Together with your continued support and trust, QIC will remain fully committed to fulfilling
its growth strategy and renewing focus on maximizing shareholder value for the long haul.
Sheikh Khalid bin Mohammed bin Ali Al-Thani
Chairman & Managing Director

Sheikh Khalid bin Mohammed bin Ali Al-Thani
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BOARD OF
DIRECTORS
Geographic expansion, product
diversification, prudent pricing,
and brand extensions are
instrumental to QIC Group’s
exceptional performance.
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Sheikh Khalid bin
Mohammed bin Ali
Al-Thani
Chairman & Managing
Director

Abdulla bin Khalifa
Al-Attiya
Deputy Chairman

Sheikh Jassim bin Hamad bin
Jassim bin Jabor Al-Thani
Board Member

Hussain Ibrahim
Al-Fardan
Board Member

Sheikh Saoud bin Khalid
bin Hamad Al-Thani
Board Member

Ali Youssef Hussein Ali Kamal
Board Member
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Jassim Mohammed
Al-Jaidah
Board Member

Sheikh Hamad bin Faisal
bin Thani Al-Thani
Board Member

Sheikh Faisal bin Thani bin
Faisal Al-Thani
Board Member

Khalaf Ahmed
Al-Mannai
Board Member

Sheikh Abdul rahman bin
Saoud bin Fahad Al Thani
Board Member

Khalifa Abdulla Turki Al Subaey
Group President & CEO
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BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

QIC Group’s acquisition, through its subsidiary Qatar Re, of Markerstudy Group’s Gibraltarbased insurance companies was another important milestone on our journey towards
becoming a Global Top-50 Insurance Group. This is the vision the Board of Directors
formulated back in 2011 when QIC Group’s non-MENA business represented just 20%
of its total portfolio. In January 2018, when the acquisition was announced, Markerstudy
underwrote more than 5% of the U.K. motor insurance market, generating annual premiums
of about GBP 750 million. Through this acquisition, which obtained regulatory approvals
in July 2018, Qatar Re has assumed a balanced portfolio in a line of business in which it has
significant experience and understanding. For QIC Group, the transaction was a milestone
not only in terms of growth but also in respect of portfolio composition and its shift towards
lower volatility business which affords us predictable and long-term profitability.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’
REPORT

Weathering challenging global market conditions
Dear Esteemed Shareholders,
54th

The Board of Directors of QIC is pleased to present the Group’s
Annual Report, which
details the Group’s activities, its consolidated financial statements for the year 2018 and its
plans for the future.

Expanding our global footprint and maintaining
robust profitability
In 2018, QIC further strengthened its position as a global player, with about three quarters of
our Group’s revenues generated outside the MENA region. QIC now operates as an organization
with a local presence in 13 geographies across the Middle East, Europe, the Americas and Asia.
This geographical expansion went hand- in- hand with the establishment of a well-diversified
and resilient book of business.
Overall, in 2018, our Group posted growth in Gross Written Premiums of 8% to QAR 12.6 billion,
compared with 2017. Our international carriers recorded above-average premium growth of
11% and now account for about 77% of the Group’s total premium base. As a result of its
strategic global expansion, Qatar Re ranks 27th amongst the global top 50 reinsurers, up from
rank no. 35 in 2016, according to international credit rating agency A.M. Best.
QIC Group’s net underwriting result came in at QAR 576 million, a steep increase of 401%
compared with 2017, the third quarter of which saw the devastating series of hurricanes
Harvey, Irma and Maria. QIC achieved a combined ratio of 101.3% for 2018, reflecting Qatar
Re’s and Antares’ share in a series of CAT losses including hurricane Michael, Florence,
typhoon Jebi, Trami etc. as well as the unprecedented Californian wildfires later in the year.
In addition, Antares was impacted by a major marine loss in Germany (Lürssen shipyard). On
a normalized basis, excluding any prior-year reserve developments as well as natural and
man-made catastrophe losses, the 2018 combined ratio was 98.7%. This robust underwriting
performance also reflects the successful completion of a comprehensive re-underwriting and
de-risking effort across our international operations.
Going forward, QIC’s international expansion drive is set to further accelerate on the back of
QIC Global, a newly formed brand under which we are consolidating our Group’s international
entities (Qatar Re, Antares, QIC Europe Ltd. and the Gibraltar-based insurers acquired from
Markerstudy). QIC Global will benefit from an integrated approach to back office services
which, in turn, is expected to further enhance QIC Group’s overall cost-efficiency.
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In light of continued structural pressure on (re)insurance margins in global catastrophe and
specialty segments throughout 2018, QIC’s portfolio shift has proven the right decision.
Given low risk free rates, alternative capital continued to be abundant and rate increases
following the devastating catastrophe year 2017 were elusive. The catastrophe loss activity
witnessed in 2018 lifting the past 18 months’ overall tally of insured losses to almost USD
230 billion, is likely to be sufficient to ensure that reinsurance companies’ return on capital
in 2018 will not materially exceed their cost-of-capital, following the year 2017 where returns
fell severely short of cost-of-capital.
Overall, insured catastrophe losses amounted to an estimated USD 80 billion in 2018. Even
though this is a sharp reduction from the USD 150 billion recorded in the previous year, 2018
is projected to be the fourth most expensive year on records for insurance. Having said this,
signs of a broad-based hardening of rates remain scant.

Continued regional leadership
Closer to our home, as Qatar’s dominant insurer and a leading operator and investor across
the MENA region, our Group continued to be affected by the economic blockade imposed
on our country in June 2017. In the meantime, however, Qatar has impressively recovered
from the blockade. Its key economic and market indicators are close to or even above prestandoff levels. Our country has forged new economic and trading ties, embarked on reforms
to the investment and business environment and set in motion a further expansion of LNG
production which will boost investment and consumption through the 2020s.
QIC’s domestic and MENA operations growth remained stable, while our Life and Medical
insurance subsidiary, QLM, headquartered in Doha continued to expand. In 2018, we have
moved QLM from the Qatar Financial Centre under the jurisdiction of the Qatar Central
Bank in order to align better with the group-wide regulatory framework and fall under the
jurisdiction of a single regulator. Similarly, OQIC, the Group’s listed subsidiary in Oman,
continued to grow robustly. Our QIC UAE Operations which was established in Dubai in 1968,
successfully completed 50 years of operations during the year, making us one of the oldest
licensed insurers in the emirate.
As a testament to OQIC’s achievements the company has been awarded “The best performing
company in Small Cap” (below OMR 25 million) category in Oman. This prestigious award
was announced in September 2018 by Alam al-Iktisaad Wal A’mal (AIWA), published by United
Media Services, the leading Arabic business magazine in the Sultanate of Oman.

QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

25

BOARD OF DIRECTORS’ REPORT

Technology and innovation are key contributors to QIC’s sustained domestic and regional
leadership. On the back of our fully digitized approach to customer service, in November 2018,
QIC was recognized as the “Best Motor Insurance Company MENA 2018” at the Global Banking
& Finance Review awards conducted by the Global Banking & Finance review magazine. For
QIC, this prestigious ranking serves as a testament to the resounding success of our customercentric and technologically progressive approach towards our products and services. We
have garnered a lot of success by embracing digital transformation and embedding Artificial
Intelligence (AI) to automate systems and processes for simplifying customer journeys. Our
retail portal has been a key driver in enhancing our products and services-right from getting
quotes, to purchasing motor insurance online, to bespoke Insurance-on-Call services, to filing
and managing a motor claim digitally.
Another example of successful product innovation in retail business is QIC Anaya, a unique
initiative in medical insurance. For citizens and residents in the State of Qatar, Anaya provides
access to health services from private-sector medical service providers such as health centres,
private clinics, dental centres and pharmacies at competitive rates. Anaya’s strengths lie in its
comprehensiveness and inclusiveness, benefiting all segments of the society. Through Anaya,
QIC aims to replicate its dominant position in group medical business achieved through QLM.
We also believe that promoting young Qatari nationals to key management roles within QIC
Group will add to the sustainability of our success as a leading regional and aspiring global
insurer. A number of significant recent promotions form an integral part of our strategic
succession plan, Qatarisation and consistent efforts towards the realization of the Qatar
National Vision (QNV) 2030. Delving further on this initiative, QIC Group launched the QIC
Learning Academy to empower its Qatari staff with the right mix of technical know-how,
business acumen and capabilities to achieve operational excellence in their respective fields.

Investment management - An outstanding strength of QIC
Efficient and effective management of our cash flows and shareholder funds is critical to
our business. Weathering heightened global market volatility and tightening monetary policy
conditions, our investment team has once more performed exceptionally well, living up to
QIC’s consistent track record of being a highly successful investment manager. It is owing to
the team’s prudence and outstanding professional skills that QIC continues to be conferred
many prestigious awards and titles. One example from 2018: QIC has been recognized as the
“Top Investment House” during a survey conducted by The Asset magazine in collaboration
with Benchmark Research. The survey ranked top investment houses in Asian G3 bonds (issued
by Asian issuers in USD, EUR and JPY) based on the number of votes won by their investors. More
than 290 different institutions including asset managers, hedge funds, private banks, banks
and insurance companies/sovereign wealth funds were evaluated and shortlisted during the
survey. Another example: The QIC GCC Equity Fund won the award for the Best GCC Fund
Performance in 2017 for a GCC Fund with over USD 75 million in assets at the annual MENA
Fund Manager Award ceremony in Dubai. The Fund posted a return of 7.5% in USD terms
versus its benchmark performance of 3.3% and topped its category’s peer group for the year.
The prestigious annual awards was organised by the MENA Fund Manager magazine and over
fifty different funds entered the various competition categories.
Overall, investment income came in at QAR 780 million in 2018, compared with QAR 903 million
in the previous year. The year-on-year decline is mainly due to certain one-off investment gains
booked in 2017. Also, a reclassification of certain types of investment securities following the
adoption of IFRS 9 from 1 January 2018 resulted in some mark-to-market losses.
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QIC Group’s current investment return amounted to 4.6%, compared with 5.4% for 2017.
Our investment performance remains unrivalled by any of our peers. In total, improved
underwriting results and resilient investment income translated into a consolidated
net profit for 2018 of QAR 664 million (2017: QAR 424 million), after Board of Directors
Remuneration of QAR 21.5 million (2017: QAR 21.5 million), resulting in Earnings per Share of
QAR 1.78/share (2017: QAR 1.11/share).

Further strengthening of our ERM framework
In line with our global expansion, we have further enhanced our capabilities in compliance,
risk management and actuarial group wide systems to match global best practices. For QIC,
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) is a core element for its sustained success, comprising
the three pillars of risk management, exposure management and capital management. One
example is QIC’s diligent application of a strengthened reserving governance and philosophy,
resulting in a more cautious view of ultimate loss projections and a slower release of prioryear reserves.
When, in 2018, we were reaffirmed with the coveted ‘A’ financial strength rating from Standard
& Poor’s and A.M. Best, both agencies also explicitly recognized QIC’s ERM framework.
As part of the Group’s overall risk management approach we have also restructured our
reinsurance retrocession programmes within the risk appetite approved by the Board of
Directors. Current retrocession market conditions enable us to manage earnings volatility in
a more cost-efficient way.

Shareholder returns balanced with Corporate Social
Responsibility
The Board is pleased to recommend a total cash dividend of 15% for the year ended 31
December 2018. In addition to serving its shareholders, QIC continues to value its Corporate
Social Responsibility and provides support to the community in cultural, sporting and
educational initiatives. For the year, QIC has allocated 2.5% of its profits generated from its
Qatar operations (QAR 9.9 million) towards such initiatives.

Cautiously optimistic outlook for 2019
On the back of our leading regional and growing global footprint, we are cautiously optimistic
about QIC’s prospects for the year 2019. On one hand, global financial markets are poised to
remain volatile as economic growth is slowing, trade conflicts are brewing and central banks
are adopting a less accommodative stance. On the other hand, we are encouraged by Qatar’s
strengthened economic resilience and the fading impact of the blockade as well as signs of
improving trading conditions in global insurance and reinsurance markets.
We will adhere to our time tested strategies and will explore underwriting and investment
opportunities to achieve a prudent and sustainable bottom-line driven growth, generating
attractive returns for our shareholders. The entire Board of Directors would like to express its
appreciation to the Group’s management team and our employees for their tireless efforts
and determination. Our sincere thanks also go to you, our Esteemed Shareholders, for your
continued support to ensure the progress of the Group. Finally, we would like to express our
deepest appreciation and gratitude to the wise leadership of H.H. Sheikh Tamim bin Hamad
Al Thani, the Amir of the State of Qatar for his continued support and guidance.
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MILESTONES
ACHIEVED
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MILESTONES ACHIEVED

1964

1986

1968

QIC established

QIC Dubai branch
established

2002

2003

QIC Abu Dhabi
branch opened

Standard & Poor’s rating
obtained

2009
Q-Re, our specialist
reinsurance company
established

2011
Q Life & Medical
Insurance Company LLC
established

New management,
new vision

Oman Qatar Insurance Co.
established
Kuwait branch
established

2012
A.M. Best Rating obtained
Qatar Re opened branches
in Zurich & Bermuda
& a representative
office in London

QLM established a branch in Labuan, Malaysia
Qatar Re relocated to Bermuda
Gross Written Premium (GWP)
crossed USD 2 billion for
the full year
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LNG came to Qatar &
QIC was the insurer of
choice

2006
Premium income crossed
QAR 1 billion

2008

QIC International
established

Qatar Insurance Group
established

QIC established
QIC Europe Ltd (QEL)

Premium income crossed
US$ 1 billion

Antares Acquisition
Net profit crossed
QAR 1 billion
QIC’s 50th
Anniversary

Qatar Re placed USD 450mn
perpetual non-call 5.5
subordinated 2 Tier notes

2016
Qatar Re ranked 35th
amongst top 50 global reinsurers

OQIC IPO was oversubscribed

Gross Written Premium(GWP)
crossed QAR 9.9 billion
for the full year

Declaration of our
Millennium Vision

2007

2013

QIC ranked as Top Investment
House from MENA Region

Antares joined the LIoyd’s
China platform in Shanghai

2000

2014

2017

Qatar Re ranked
amongst global top 50
reinsurers

Qatar Re opened a representative office in
Singapore & a branch office in Dubai

1994

Premium income reached
QAR 100 million

2004

2015
Antares Asia a LIoyd’s Asia Platform
was established in Singapore

1990

1.4 times
Qatar Re, reinsurance arm
of QIC won Bond Deal of the
Year Award

2018
Qatar Re’s Markerstudy
acquisition marked a significant
step towards QIC’s global expansion
strategy
Qatar Re opened a branch office in London
QIC won 2017 MENA Fund Manager Performance Award
Qatar Rail West Bay Station to be named Qatar Insurance Company
QIC ranked as Top Investment House from MENA region
QIC Group launched QIC Learning Academy
OQIC won Best Performing Company at AIWA awards
Qatar Re ranked 27th amongst top 50 global reinsurers
QIC Group’s representation at the
Labour Law reform forum hosted
by the Qatar Chamber of
Commerce & Industry &
International Labour
Organisation
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GROUP PRESIDENT
& CEO’S MESSAGE
The definition of growth has
transformed with changing
times. Evolving with this new
trend, QIC Group has been
realigning resources for more
aggressive growth opportunities
and markets.
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GROUP PRESIDENT & CEO’S MESSAGE
On a normalized basis, excluding any prior-year
reserve developments as well as natural and manmade catastrophe losses, the combined ratio for
2018 was 98.7% vis-à-vis 99% in 2017. The Return on
Equity (RoE) for the reporting period stood at 8.2%.
The Group achieved a net profit of QAR 664 million,
up by 57% (2017: 424 million) after Board of Directors
Remuneration of QAR 21.5 million (2017: QAR 21.5
million) resulting in Earnings per Share of QAR 1.78/
share (2017: QAR 1.11/share). The robust underwriting
performance highlighted the successful completion of
a comprehensive re-underwriting and de-risking effort
that was conducted across the Group’s international
operations.

International Operations

Khalifa Abdulla Turki Al Subaey
Dear Shareholders,
I am pleased to take you through the strategic
developments of QIC Group for 2018 – a significant
year, which exhibits our business resilience and strong
operating performance despite the turbulences faced
across regional and international markets.

Economic Outlook
In 2018 the global economic growth continued to remain
above potential. As in previous years, China and India
were the world’s engines of growth, with GDP expansion
rates remaining above the 6% threshold. At the same
time, driven by the Federal Reserve in the US, the
journey towards gradual monetary policy normalization
had gathered pace. With a certain lag, the associated
increase in yields benefitted insurers, including QIC
Group in the form of higher investment returns. Having
said this, we were reminded of major downside risks for
the economy such as the prospect of escalating US-China
trade tensions and the vulnerability of the Eurozone to
populist movements. Amidst this backdrop, QIC Group
continued to expand and established a well-diversified
and resilient book of business, cementing its position as
a global player. On the domestic front, QIC continued to
show resilience and stable growth whilst mitigating the
impact of the ongoing political standoff.

34

QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

Financial Performance
QIC Group through its international subsidiaries Qatar
Re, Antares and QIC Europe Ltd (QEL) were impacted
by a series of natural catastrophic events in 2018.
Despite these adverse events, QIC Group posted steady
growth in Gross Written Premiums of 8% to QAR 12.6
billion, compared with 2017. Our international carriers
recorded a premium growth of 11% and now account
for approximately 77% of the Group’s total premium
base. In fact, our reinsurance arm Qatar Re was ranked
27th amongst the global top 50 reinsurers, up from rank
no. 35 in 2016, according to international credit rating
agency A.M. Best.
During the reporting period, QIC Group’s net
underwriting result came in at QAR 576 million, a steep
increase of 401% compared with 2017, the third quarter
of which reflected the devastating effects of hurricanes
Harvey, Irma and Maria. QIC achieved a combined ratio of
101.3% for 2018, reflecting Qatar Re’s and Antares’ share
in hurricane Florence and typhoon Jebi in September as
well as the unprecedented Californian wildfires later
in the year (with total industry-wide insured losses for
these three events alone expected to exceed USD 25
billion). In addition to weathering the effects of these
NatCats, Antares was also impacted by a major marine
loss in Germany (Lürssen shipyard).

Albeit a challenging year, QIC Group maintained its
momentum for consistent overseas expansion and
further development of its international business in the
global specialty reinsurance segment. As a result of its
relentless global expansion, I am delighted to report
that Qatar Re ranked 27th amongst the global top 50
reinsurers, up from rank no. 35 in 2016, according to
international credit rating agency A.M. Best.
Going forward, the Group’s drive for international
expansion is expected to gather more impetus on the
back of QIC Global, a newly formed brand under which
we are consolidating QIC Group’s international entities
namely Qatar Re, Antares, QEL and the Gibraltar-based
insurers acquired from Markerstudy. Moreover, QIC
Group’s acquisition, through its subsidiary Qatar Re,
of Markerstudy Group’s Gibraltar-based insurance
companies was an important achievement on its journey
towards becoming a Global Top-50 Insurance Group.
Through this strategic acquisition, Qatar Re had assumed
a balanced portfolio in a line of business in which it had
significant experience and exposure. Besides expansion,
the acquisition also underpinned the Group’s strategy
of shifting towards a lower volatility business portfolio
composition for long-term profitability.
QIC Global will benefit from an integrated approach to
back office services which, in turn, will further enhance
QIC Group’s overall cost-efficiency and facilitate the
shift towards writing lower volatility business. In fact the
Group’s continuing diversification, both geographically
and in terms of products and services, positively
contributes to lowering the risk and volatility of risks it
underwrites. For 2019, QIC Group aims to continue its
expansion through organic and inorganic growth and
progress towards its vision of becoming a top-50 global
insurer by 2030.

Developments in Qatar & across the
region
Unaffected by the prevailing political situation in the
MENA region, QIC recorded stable growth in the regional
markets, in line with its growth target. Collaborative
efforts, streamlined processes, implementation &
integration of disruptive technology including big data,
Artificial Intelligence (AI) into our day-to-day operations
catalyzed the growth of our customer base.

Operations
Leveraging our Group - wide restructuring exercise,
which was implemented earlier, we were successful at
maintaining our leading position both domestically &
in the wider region. Remaining focused on a few core
areas – a structured approach with synergized functions
and capabilities, enhanced agility whilst embedding
technological changes to optimize operational
efficiency, we continued to outperform our peers and
post improved profitability.
Our Life and Medical insurance subsidiary, Q Life &
Medical Insurance Company W.L.L. QLM continued to
expand and added buoyancy to the Group’s overall
performance. In 2018 we expanded our providers’
network in Russia to ensure coverage for customers who
traveled to Russia to witness the FIFA World Cup 2018.
Further, in order to align better with the group-wide
regulatory framework and fall under the jurisdiction of a
single regulator, in 2018, we moved QLM from the Qatar
Financial Centre (QFC) to the jurisdiction of the Qatar
Central Bank.
Similarly, Oman Qatar Insurance Company (OQIC), the
Group’s listed subsidiary in Oman, continued to grow
robustly. The successful listing of OQIC in the Muscat
Securities Market (MSM) underpinned the group’s
strategy of strengthening its presence in the Sultanate
of Oman. As a testament to OQIC’s achievements, the
company was awarded “The Best Performing Company
in Small Cap” (below OMR 25 million) category in Oman.
This prestigious award was announced in September
2018 by Alam al-Iktisaad Wal A’mal (AIWA), published by
United Media Services in the Sultanate of Oman.
Alongside these developments, our retail arm continued
to report exponential growth through the introduction of
innovative products & services, strategic collaborations,
and enhanced distribution channels. Applying AI-based
algorithms and predictive analysis across all verticals, we
successfully optimized operations that in turn enhanced
customer satisfaction and facilitated cutbacks on time
for claims settlements. Moving forward, we firmly
believe that through digital transformation we will
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continue to boost our performance further and report
sustained growth and ensure maximum customer
satisfaction and shareholder value. On the back of our
fully digitized product offering, in November 2018, QIC
was recognised as the “Best Motor Insurance Company
MENA 2018” at the Global Banking & Finance Review
awards conducted by the Global Banking & Finance
review magazine.
In 2018 we rolled out another successful product
innovation, Anaya, a unique medical program. For
citizens and residents in the State of Qatar, Anaya
provided access to health services from private-sector
medical service providers such as health centres,
private clinics, dental centres and pharmacies at highly
competitive rates. Anaya provided comprehensive and
inclusive medical services, which catered to all segments
of the society.

Ratings
During 2018 we were reaffirmed with the coveted ‘A’
financial strength rating from Standard & Poor’s and
A.M. Best. The ratings recognized QIC Group’s balance
sheet strength, robust business profile, strong operating
performance, robust actuarial capabilities, and effective
Enterprise Risk Management (ERM) framework.

Enterprise Risk Management
At QIC we believe in a “risk advantaged approach” and
put a lot of emphasis on strengthening our Enterprise
Risk Management (ERM) capabilities, comprising the
three pillars of risk management, exposure management,
and capital management on an ongoing basis. We
consistently re-examine our risk appetite to ensure
risks are appropriately managed within the Group.
This allows us to have a deeper insight into the nature
of the risk we underwrite. Data coupled with analytics
and expert insight allow us to delve deeper into the risk
to manage volatility and mitigate the risk in the most
suited manner. As we continue to grapple with risks that
pose greater complexity, we ensure to put into practice
effective ERM to identify the key controls and the areas
for effective risk mitigation. For QIC, Enterprise Risk
Management (ERM) is a core element for its sustained
success.

Corporate Governance
QIC is committed to complying with the requirements
and principles of Corporate Governance, according to
the Corporate Governance principles issued by the Qatar
Financial Markets Authority (QFMA), and the principles
of Corporate Governance of insurance companies issued
by the Qatar Central Bank (QCB). The Annual Report
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includes the Annual Report of Corporate Governance
for the year 2018, which has been presented to the
Ordinary & Extraordinary General Assembly for approval
and then will be submitted to the Qatar Financial
Markets Authority (QFMA). It includes the company’s
position from compliance with the rules and principles
of Corporate Governance.

Investment Management
For QIC Group efficient management of cash flows and
shareholder funds is vital for the sustainability of our
business. Despite increased global market volatility and
tightening monetary policy conditions, our investment
team performed exceptionally well, living up to its track
record of being a highly successful investment manager.
It is owing to the team’s prudence and outstanding
professional skills that QIC continues to be conferred
many prestigious awards and titles. One example from
2018: QIC was recognized as the “Top Investment House”
during a survey conducted by The Asset magazine in
collaboration with Benchmark Research. The survey
ranked top investment houses in Asian G3 bonds (issued
by Asian issuers in USD, EUR, and JPY) based on the
number of votes won by their investors. More than 290
different institutions including asset managers, hedge
funds, private banks, banks, and insurance companies/
sovereign wealth funds were evaluated and shortlisted
during the survey. Another example: The QIC GCC
Equity Fund won the award for The Best GCC Fund
Performance in 2017 for a GCC Fund with over USD 75
million in assets at the Annual MENA Fund Manager
Award ceremony in Dubai. The Fund posted a return of
7.5% in USD terms versus its benchmark performance of
3.3% and topped its category’s peer group for the year.
The prestigious annual awards were organised by the
MENA Fund Manager magazine and over fifty different
funds entered the various competition categories.
Overall, investment income came in at QAR 780 million
in 2018, compared with QAR 903 million in the previous
year. The year-on-year decline is mainly due to certain
one-off investment gains that were booked in 2017.
Also, a reclassification of certain types of investment
securities following the adoption of IFRS 9 from 1
January 2018 resulted in some mark-to-market losses.
QIC Group’s current investment return amounted to
4.6%, compared with 5.4% for 2017. Our investment
performance remains unrivalled by any of our peers.
In total, improved underwriting results and resilient
investment income translated into a consolidated net
profit for 2018 of QAR 664 million (2017: QAR 424
million), after Board of Directors Remuneration of
QAR 21.5 million (2017: QAR 21.5 million), resulting in
Earnings per Share of QAR 1.78/share (2017: QAR 1.11/
share).

Human Capital
Taking a step further towards nurturing human capital, in
2018 QIC founded an in-house development programme
- the QIC Learning Academy. Established to motivate,
develop and retain Qatari talent, the Academy focused
on providing the right mix of technical know-how and
business acumen via intensive training and work-based
programmes. Not only did this accelerate personal
development and enhance the career progression of the
local workforce, but it also empowered them to achieve
operational excellence in their respective fields.

Qatarisation
Remaining true to its objective of being a talent-driven
organization, QIC continues to give a lot of importance
to local talent identification, training, and retention.
In fact, it forms an integral part of major strategic
decisions that ensure that the focus on local talent and
competencies is well woven into the success fabric of
QIC Group. As part of its strategic succession plan, in
2018 QIC promoted many talented young Qataris to
assume senior leadership and specialist positions within
the Group.

Corporate Social Responsibility

Alongside these developments, we will continue to
attract and retain diverse talent, ideas, which will add
further impetus to our growth and facilitate adaptability
to external shocks or market movements.
For 2019 we will continue to deploy technology for
developing new products and introducing innovative
services. Moving ahead with the same momentum, we
will continue to identify and unlock new efficiencies
within our business units and expand our portfolio and
presence across suitable growth markets.
On this note, I express my sincere gratitude to His
Highness the Amir, Sheikh Tamim bin Hamad Al-Thani,
whose leadership has ensured continued prosperity
for the State of Qatar. I extend my appreciation for His
Excellency, the Governor of Qatar Central Bank, Sheikh
Abdullah Saud Al-Thani for his guidance.
I am thankful to our customers and shareholders for
demonstrating their unwavering trust and faith in
our company. We hope that with your support and
patronage, QIC Group will reach new heights.
Khalifa Abdulla Turki Al Subaey
Group President & CEO
QIC Group

QIC values its Corporate Social Responsibility and
provides support to the community in cultural, sporting
and educational initiatives. For 2018, QIC Group
allocated 2.5% of its profits generated from its Qatar
operations (QR 9.9 million) towards such initiatives.

Looking forward
Subsequent to the series of NatCat losses which
impacted most insurers globally, we expect the rates
across global insurance and reinsurance markets to
harden. On the domestic front Qatar’s strengthened
economic resilience and the fading impact of the
blockade reaffirms our outlook for 2019 as upbeat and
cautiously positive. Especially in preparation of the
World Cup FIFA 2022, all the indicators for the Qatari
economy appear to be positive, with multiplier effects
expected in most sectors of the economy.
Progressing further on our growth strategy in 2019,
we will continue to enhance our proposition and for
the long-term, sustainable and profitable growth and
development. We will continue to strengthen our ERM
capabilities for achieving operational excellence. We
will continue to sharpen our focus on adjusting the risk
portfolio composition towards lower volatility business,
which is expected to create more room for predictable
and long-term profitability.
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Varghese David
Group Chief Financial
Officer & Executive Vice
President

Stephen Redmond
MD, Antares
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Gunther Saacke
CEO, Qatar Re

Ali Saleh Al Fadala
Senior Deputy Group
President & CEO

Sunil Talwar
Group CEO - International
Operations

Khalifa A. Al Subaey
Group President & CEO

Abdulla Al Mulla
Group Chief Administrative
Officer

Salem Khalaf Al Mannai
Deputy Group President &
CEO - QIC Group

Ahmed El Tabbakh
EVP International
Operations & Advisor to the
Group President & CEO

P.E. Alexander
Advisor to the Group
President & CEO

Mark Graham
Group Chief Risk
Officer & Executive
Vice President

Sandeep Nanda
Group Chief Investment
Officer & Executive Vice
President
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Qatar Insurance Group’s strategy has proven effective for us. By championing
transformations, digitization, and capability building, we have consistently
differentiated ourselves from our peers. Moreover, by diversifying our revenue streams
and achieving growth beyond the region, Qatar Insurance Group has carved a niche for
itself in the global markets.

Qatar Insurance Group follows an effective and integrated Enterprise Risk
Management process. Synergies within the Group bring deeper insight into the nature of
risk, its analysis and allow the Group to have a flexible approach in reacting to nuanced
changes in the market. This is clearly reflected through QIC Group’s solid balance sheet. It
also showcases the Group’s outstanding capabilities at managing its investments.

Ali Saleh Al Fadala
Senior Deputy Group President & CEO - QIC Group

Sunil Talwar
Group CEO - International Operations

Big is beautiful – really? What used to be a unilaterally accepted truism in our
industry is not true any longer. Size has ceased to stand for the unquestionable success
factor that it was widely believed to be over many decades. Instead the reinsurance
world is painfully coming to terms with its true, all-encompassing challenge: Efficiency
in everything we do.

A true testament to QIC Group’s success lies in its business philosophy-to add
value and maintain credibility. Over 50+ years the Company has consistently been
acknowledged for its robust performance, business acumen, and ethics. We have
created a niche’ in the insurance space through our ability to identify, understand,
evaluate risks and find the best solutions. We have persistently expanded our lines
of business to include new geographies by building capabilities and efficient capital
management. The Group’s solid performance reflects synergy – one that is built on the
commitment towards our shareholders and trusted customers.
Salem Khalaf Al Mannai
Deputy Group President & CEO - QIC Group

The population of risks that we select at portfolio level, both on the underwriting side as
on the investment side, our processes and procedures and, increasingly important, our
capital management are the dimensions of a fierce and unforgiving race to create the
highest available level of efficiency.
From the outset, efficiency has been the overarching strategic value driver that Qatar
Re has focussed on. Together with our parent QIC we have introduced envied capital
efficiency through a highly successful issuance of Tier 2 capital in early 2017. At the
same time we have engaged in reviewing our underwriting portfolio. Inefficient and
unsustainable segments were uncompromisingly discontinued. Our cost ratio of 3% is
best-in-class with further operational efficiencies becoming available as we are unlocking unused synergies across our growing international group of companies. Qatar
Re is well prepared to weather the challenges ahead.
Gunther Saacke
CEO - Qatar Re

Unbundling insurance to make it more ‘personalized’ will meet customers’
needs and expectations in a more effective way going forward. Embracing these trends
in 2019, we aim to provide a sharper focus on potential growth while matching the
market’s demands.

Fahad Al Suwaidi
Deputy CEO - QIC

The Antares client focused attitude to risk acceptance, and service has remained
paramount in Antares approach to business. The business has continued to grow and
develop, in a controlled environment as it successfully meets the trading challenges of
the markets in which it operates.
As part of QIC Global, Antares has actively participated in the harmonisation of the
international business throughout 2018. Antares, and the QIC Global team looks
forward to 2019 with optimism, as improved efficiencies through the continued delivery
of supreme service to its client base, is the product of its 2018 endeavours.
Stephen Redmond
MD - Antares

At QLM, our primary focus is on raising awareness about good health &
encouraging people to lead a well-balanced & healthy lifestyle. Aligning our objectives
with the National Health Strategy, we will continue to empower our members with
outstanding services and access to the best healthcare providers to build healthier
communities. Placing our goals into the heart of what we do, we will consistently
encourage people to secure the future of their dependents through our unique life
insurance product.

Ahmad Mohamed Zebeib
Deputy CEO - QLM Life and Medical Insurance Company W.L.L.
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QICAM’s active investment management has been instrumental in generating
stable, recurring investment returns and has also facilitated the dynamic growth of the
Group’s core insurance and reinsurance businesses.
We strive to ensure that quality, liquidity, duration and diversification of QIC’s
investment portfolio aligns with the requirements of the Group’s businesses whilst
preserving capital and solvency. The combination of our investment processes and
strategy, coupled with a culture of risk management, asset and risk diversification and
compliance, has resulted in outperforming significantly our regional peers over time.
Sandeep Nanda
Chief Investment Officer & EVP Investment & Strategy
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QIC Group Expanding Globally.
Leading Regionally.
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Our CSR Engagements in 2018
1. QIC Group sponsored Gyer category of Katara’s Hunting & Falconry
Exhibition S’hail
As the leading insurer in Qatar, QIC Group has a long standing commitment to acting as
a trusted and ethical partner with the Qatari community and to playing a vital role in the
sustainability of Qatar’s social fabric.

Committed to Creating
Scalable Impact
For QIC Group, Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is all about creating scalable impact
for the society, environment and its people. Like all other businesses, QIC Group considers
CSR as a cornerstone for the sustainable development of the society and spares no effort
to fulfil its CSR duties. By supporting and participating in various social service initiatives
and environmental engagements, QIC has been consistent in demonstrating its commitment
towards its societal mission.
To promote and further our CSR, we have ensured that the core values of our business and
operating principles align with the noble mission for the greater good. In fact, being socially
conscious has allowed us to respond, engage and solve the common concerns of the society
along with the cooperation of our customers, business partners and affiliates. By unlocking
our full potential as a business powerhouse, we pledge to continue to create resilient
communities, which would inherently create a stable society and a sustainable Nation.

Owing to its eagerness towards supporting activities that showcase Qatar’s rich culture and
enhance the Qatari individual’s connection with the environment and heritage, QIC Group
sponsored the Gyer category of Katara’s International Hunting & Falconry Exhibition S’hail,
which exhibited a vivid array of falcons and its handling equipment. The exhibition boasted
of participants from twenty countries, namely, Kyrgyzstan, Pakistan, Spain, Kuwait, China,
Oman, Kazakhstan, UK, United States, Portugal, Turkey, Germany, Sweden, Italy, Azerbaijan,
Iran, Morocco, Uzbekistan, Netherland, and Qatar.
Contribution to and participation in S’hail demonstrates our relentless efforts in highlighting
the culture and traditions of the Nation. It also underpins our keenness towards maintaining
and reviving the legacy of falconry for our future generation.

2. QIC Group reaffirmed its commitment
to CSR through partnership with
Dreama
CSR is an integral pillar for achieving
sustainable development; not only
in business, but also in the society it
operates in. In fact, QIC firmly believes
that engaging with the society through
various CSR initiatives is a two-way
process.
First is when the organization benefits from
a business perspective and second, when
the company gives back to the community,
developing strong relationships and building trust.
QIC Group has made giant strides by engaging in multiple
CSR collaborations that make significant developments in the fields of human and social
development. For example, in 2018, Qatar Insurance Group collaborated with Dreama to
provide sponsorship for quality housing refurbishment for the orphans, thus realizing its CSR
objectives through an effective community partnership.
Qatar Insurance Group’s initiative to provide financial support to the Orphan Care Center
was in line with the Group’s keenness to raise the profile and ensure integration of the
orphans within the various segments of the society. It also provided for all basic needs of the
children and enhanced their abilities, either by educational support or by involving them in
programmes that develop their skills in sports, scientific, cultural and other fields.
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3. QIC Group hosted a Workplace
Wellness workshop for its
staff

5. QIC Group celebrated victory of
team Al Annabi with Qatar
Handball Federation

In celebration of Global
Wellness Day, QIC Group
hosted a Workplace Wellness
workshop for its employees.
The workshop comprised
a
short
presentation
on wellness and various
wellness practices. The
workshop also addressed the
elements of wellness, which
cater to the needs of today’s
generation.

QIC has consistently extended
its relentless support to all
kinds of sports and sporting
activities. In 2018 Qatar
Insurance celebrated the
glorious victory of Al Annabi
team with Qatar Handball
Federation. To celebrate the
much coveted win, the Group
hosted a celebratory event to
congratulate the winners.

Typically people think about a few
aspects that come under the banner
of wellness such as diet and fitness but
the scope of wellness is far wider. To feel
really well, people need to understand how certain changes in their daily lives can affect
them, their wellness and overall output. The Wellness Workshop encouraged QIC staff to
make conscious efforts towards adopting a healthy lifestyle and managing their day- to-day
chores in a more efficient manner.

4. QLM organized free medical
check-up in celebration of
The World Health Day
In commemoration of The World
Health Day, Q Life & Medical
(QLM) organised a free medical
check-up for all nationals and
residents living in Qatar.
Initiated for the second
year in a row, participants
benefitted from the free
medical check-up services that
were made available at various
medical centres, clinics and
hospitals across Qatar.
The
free
medical
check-up
conducted on The World Health Day
demonstrated the Group’s efforts to
ensure that all people of Qatar had access
to crucial medical tests which helped them to assess the condition of their health, regardless
of whether they had access to insurance or not. Participants expressed deep appreciation for
this CSR initiative as they learnt about their health condition which otherwise would have
been undiagnosed. They were also able to take necessary steps prescribed by the doctors to
prevent the onset of lifestyle diseases which are rampant in today’s society.
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6. QLM hosted a Cancer Awareness Forum at Qatar Foundation
Strengthening its position as a pioneer in Corporate Social Responsibility, QLM has been
consistent in increasing medical awareness about various diseases, ways to prevent them and
methods for their early detection. In view of this, in 2018, QLM hosted an awareness forum on
cancer for the community members of Qatar Foundation. The forum covered discussions on
cancer, its symptoms, early detection, ways to overcome the disease, preventive measures for
developing the disease and its treatment. In addition, the forum also highlighted techniques
pertaining to adopting a healthy lifestyle and pursuing regular medical check-ups and
analyses.

7. QIC Group conducted The
Pink Month campaign
With an aim to highlight the
importance of early detection
of Breast Cancer amongst its
female workforce, QIC Group
ran a month-long campaign
themed as The Pink Month.
During the campaign a
pink awareness ribbon was
distributed amongst staff
and HR department shared
a presentation by the Hamad
Medical Corporation medical
team which detailed the risk
factors, FAQs, prevention and early
screening methods of Breast Cancer.
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8. QIC Insured commissioned surveys for Safer Roads in Qatar & the region
QIC Insured - QIC Group’s retail arm firmly believes in playing a key role in raising awareness
about safe driving. To show its support for the National Road Safety Strategy and promote
safe driving in Qatar and the wider region, QIC Insured commissioned various surveys for
developing Road Safety Monitors for Qatar, Kuwait, UAE and Oman. The surveys captured
various perceptions people have about driving and also highlighted areas which require
greater focus and cooperation from all stakeholders in order to ensure safety for all road users.

10. Qatar Insurance organized
workshop on Diabetes for
World Diabetes Day
QIC Group in collaboration with
the Syrian American Medical
Center
commemorated
World Diabetes Day by
organizing an awareness
workshop for its staff.
The workshop included
a presentation on the risk
factors for Diabetes, its
symptoms and early detection
signs, strategies for prevention
and treatment of the disease.
The session also included free
medical check-up for all QIC staff.
Attendees also benefitted from the
talk given by Diabetes educators and
therapeutic nutritionists, who spoke at
length about following a healthy diet and lifestyle.
The awareness campaign aligned with QIC Group’s efforts towards realizing the Qatar
National Diabetes Strategy, which was launched by The Supreme Council of Health last year.
It also put a spotlight on the Group’s mission in ensuring wellness of its entire staff.

11. QIC is the Official Sponsor of
the Asian Gymnastics Union

9. QIC Group renewed membership with The Abdulla Bin Hamad Al-Attiyah
(ABHA) International Foundation
With the aim to uphold global best practices and international standards in the sustainability
space, QIC Group renewed its annual membership with The Abdulla Bin Hamad Al-Attiyah
International Foundation for Energy & Sustainable Development (Al-Attiyah Foundation),
the only independent think tank focused on Energy and Sustainable Development in Qatar.
Through this distinctive collaboration, QIC Group renewed its commitment to seek solutions
for achieving sustainability.
Driven to support the Qatar National Vision 2030 (QNV 2030) and the global Oil and Gas
industry, the Al-Attiyah Foundation firmly embraces its ongoing responsibility to deliver on
its mission: to provide robust and practical knowledge and insights on global energy and
sustainable development topics to the Foundation’s members and community.
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Qatar Insurance Group signed
an agreement with the Asian
Gymnastics
Union
(AGU)
to be the Official Sponsor
of the Federation. The
Asian Gymnastics Union
organizes Asian Gymnastics
Championships for the
gymnastic discipline that
unites the Federations of
the Asian continent and is
practiced according to the
statutes of the AGU.
Moving beyond the role of being the
Official Sponsor of the yearly activities
of the AGU, QIC Group considers such
initiatives as a way of demonstrating its
commitment and efforts towards CSR.
It also serves as a platform to showcase the incredible sporting talent Qatar has.
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PERFORMANCE OF
QIC’S SHARE IN 2018

KEY CAPITAL MARKET DEVELOPMENTS
QIC intends to make QIC Capital a wholly owned subsidiary (currently 95.74% owned) through
a private share issuance to the existing minority shareholders in QIC Capital. This private
share issuance, which would raise the capital by QAR 77,042,580, would be satisfied by QIC
issuing 7,704,258 new shares to the existing minority shareholders in QIC Capital.

QATAR EMERGES AS 2ND BEST PERFORMING MARKET IN THE WORLD
Qatar equities rose 20.8 per cent in 2018, helped by improved macro fundamentals as the
economy quickly adjusted to the impact of the blockade. Continued infrastructure spending
ahead of 2022 FIFA World Cup and improvement in natural gas and oil prices will continue
to drive long term growth. Additionally, easing of restrictions on foreign ownership limits,
sturdy US dollar pegs, low debt levels, and robust foreign reserves make Qatar an attractive
investment destination for global investors.

QIC’s SHARE PRICE PERFORMANCE

GCC bucked the emerging market trend in 2018, with the S&P GCC Composite index rising 8.2
per cent outperforming the MSCI Emerging Markets by 24.9 per cent. Major developed and
emerging global indices posted negative returns.

For the global insurance industry, 2017 and 2018 were challenging years. Insurers and
reinsurers had to digest catastrophic losses close to US$230 billion. Further challenges
beyond control were the vagaries of global re/insurance losses and pricing cycles, geopolitical
situation in the Middle East, intensification of political volatility, the negative effects on the
investment environment, growing concerns over trade war and volatility of the commodity
prices (including oil and gas). To tackle this backdrop QIC announced comprehensive derisking strategy to shift underwriting focus to a lower volatility exposure. This was successfully
completed towards the end of 2018 and is expected to reap the fruit in 2019 and beyond.

The performance of QIC shares remained volatile in 2018 as against the performance of QE
index and other major GCC markets. QIC shares fell 20.6 per cent in the year vs. a 20.8% gain
recorded by the QE index. Adjusting for the dividends, QIC’s total returns for 2018 would
have been -18.1%. QE insurance index also declined 13.5 per cent in 2018.

Abu Dhabi (up 11.7 per cent), Saudi Arabia (up 8.3 per cent) and Kuwait (up 5.2 per cent) also
reported positive returns, while, Dubai and Oman ended in red, falling 24.9 per cent and 15.2
per cent, respectively.
Qatar has bounced back from the blockade imposed in June 2017 by neighboring countries.
The Qatari economy rebalanced, as supply chain disruptions recovered rapidly following the
blockade through establishment of new trade routes. Banks adjusted their “funding profile”
with the reduced liquidity from

QIC is the only MENA composite insurer with sizable international footprint, contributing
around 77% to the Groups total GWP. QIC is continuing its global expansion and regional
consolidation. QIC is set to benefit from Qatar’s massive hydrocarbon expansion over the
next few years. Other significant industry specific catalysts such as low insurance penetration,
rising population and continuously increasing insurance awareness in the region would
continue to support growth. Specifically, QIC also benefits from its very strong risk-adjusted
capitalisation, robust underwriting performance and spirited expansion strategy that
supports the company in diversifying its business globally.

GCC sources offset by inflows from government and related entities. The nation enacted
measures to bolster investments, such as allowing rise in foreign ownership.

QATI QD Equity
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DSM Index

Month12-18

Month12-18

Month11-18

Month10-18

Month9-18

Month9-18

Month8-18

Month7-18

Month7-18

Month6-18

Month5-18

Month5-18

Month4-18

40.00

Month3-18

In 2019, US$13.2 billion of new projects are expected to be awarded out of a portfolio of
committed projects worth US$115.7 billion. These new projects will boost economic growth
in the country, especially in the non-oil sector.

65.00

Month3-18

Qatar is expected to enjoy a US$1.2 billion surplus in 2019 as a result of higher energy prices in
international markets along with increasing non-oil revenues. Revenue in 2019 is anticipated
to be 20.5 per cent ahead of the US$48.1 billion budgeted in 2018.

90.00

Month2-18

Qatar’s 43 per cent LNG expansion requires considerable investment, which is expected to
drive growth after the completion of the World Cup stadiums and associated infrastructure.
In addition to expanding LNG production, several large projects will continue after the 2022
World Cup, including expansion of Qatar integrated rail and Hamad Port and the Lusail “smart
city,” which aims to become one of the world’s most technologically advanced cities.

115.00

Month1-18

Also, major rating agencies revised Qatar’s outlook to “Stable” from “Negative” affirming its
macroeconomic resilience.

140.00

Month12-17

Qatar announced some key measures such as amended FDI laws, new laws allowing foreigners
to own property in Qatar and introduction of visa free entry, focusing on the industrial,
agricultural, information technology, education, health, real estate and tourism sectors.
Qatar is also supporting several private-sector initiatives to make the economy self-sufficient
in the areas of food production, logistics and manufacturing to ensure long-term economic
sustainability.

QINS Index
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QIC GROUP’S BUSINESS
PERFORMANCE OVERVIEW

INSURANCE
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Net technical reserves/net
premium written (%)
Net loss reserves/net
premium written (%)
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2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

86

82

87

86

77

138

146

129

135

117

95

94

80

76
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INVESTMENTS
Distribution of investments by type

Investment & Treasury (QR million)

INVESTED ASSETS

INVESTMENT INCOME

FINANCIAL STRENGTH

YIELD ON INVESTMENTS

Invested Assets is presented net of short term borrowings

Capital Structure (%)

Investment income is total of investment and other income and profit
from equity accounted investments
QR Million

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Interest income

618

444

345

261

189

Dividends

100

65

103

121

110

7

318

109

434

541

Rental income

49

51

39

46

50

Advisory fee income

17

15

51

123

116

Gain on sale of investment
properties

55

-

191

-

-

Others

17

Profit on sale of investments

Impairment

160

88

59

25

(67)

(2)

(145)

(4)

2018

2017

2016

2015

2014

Invested assets to net technical
reserves

125

131

139

119

188

Cash and bank deposits to net
technical reserves

54

57

63

37

52

Group Equity (QR Million)

2016

2017

2018

Share capital

2,411

2,773

3,189

Share Premium

2,554

2,554

2,554

Legal reserve

591

701

635

General reserve

287

287

287

Fair value (loss) reserve

111

(92)

(314)

Catastrophe special reserve

330

381

32

Foreign currency translation reserve

(15)

(7)

(37)

Retained earnings

1,967

1,419

1,380

Equity attributable to parent

8,236

8,017

7,726

232

256

245

--

1,616

1,616

8,468

9,889

9,587

Non-controlling interest
Subordinated Perpetual Debt
Total equity

Total
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986

925

899
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
QATAR INSURANCE COMPANY Q.S.P.C.

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF
QATAR INSURANCE COMPANY Q.S.P.C.

Key Audit Matter

Report on the audit of the consolidated financial
statements

Estimation of insurance contract
liabilities

Opinion
We have audited the consolidated financial statements of Qatar Insurance Company Q.S.P.C.
(the “Parent Company”) and its subsidiaries (collectively “the Group”), which comprise
the consolidated statement of financial position as at 31 December 2018 and the related
consolidated statement of income, consolidated statement of comprehensive income,
consolidated statement of cash flows and consolidated statement of changes in equity for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated financial statements present fairly, in all
material respects, the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2018,
and its consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRSs).

Basis of opinion
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our
responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities
for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report. We are
independent of the Group in accordance with the International Ethics Standards Board for
Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IESBA Code) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements in Qatar, and
we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IESBA Code. We
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters
Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current year. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements
as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on
these matters. For each matter below, our description of how our audit addressed the matter
is provided in that context.
We have fulfilled the responsibilities described in the Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit
of the consolidated financial statements section of our report, including in relation to
these matters. Accordingly, our audit included the performance of procedures designed to
respond to our assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures performed to
address the matters below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
consolidated financial statements.
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Insurance technical reserves include
Outstanding Claims reserve (“OCR”),
Unearned Premiums Reserve (“UPR”)
and Incurred But Not Reported reserve
(“IBNR”). As at 31 December 2018,
the insurance technical reserves are
significant to the Group’s total liabilities.
As disclosed in Note 7 to the consolidated
financial statements, the determination
of these reserves involves significant
judgment
over
uncertain
future
outcomes related to loss payments and
changing risk exposure of the businesses,
including ultimate full settlement of
long term policyholder liabilities. The
Group uses several valuation models to
support the calculations of the insurance
technical reserves. The complexity of
the models may give rise to errors as a
result of inadequate/incomplete data,
inappropriate methods and assumptions,
or the design or application of the models.
Economic assumptions such as investment
return, inflation rates and interest rates
and actuarial assumptions such as claims
reported patterns, loss payment patterns,
frequency and severity trends, customer
behavior, along with Group’s historical
loss data are key inputs used to estimate
these long-term liabilities.
Due to the significance of estimation
uncertainty associated with determination
of insurance technical reserves, this is
considered a key audit matter.

How our audit addressed
the key audit matter

Our audit procedures focused on
analyzing the rationale for economic
and actuarial assumptions used by
management along with comparison
to applicable industry benchmarks in
estimating insurance contract liabilities
and evaluating the competence,
capabilities and objectivity of the
experts used by management in
estimation.
We involved internal actuarial experts to
assist us in evaluating the reasonableness
of key inputs and assumptions. We
assessed the validity of management’s
liability adequacy testing.
Our work on the liability adequacy tests
included assessing the accuracy of the
historical data used, and reasonableness
of the projected cash flows and
assumptions adopted, and recalculating
the insurance technical reserves on
a sample basis, in the context of both
the Group and industry experience and
specific product features.
Our procedures also include testing
controls over initiation, review and
approval process on claims across
different lines of business, including
claim settlement process. Additionally,
we
have
performed
substantive
procedures to test, on a sample basis,
the provision for reported claims by
policyholder recorded by Management
by reviewing loss assessors’ reports,
internal policies for reserves, and other
assumptions made by Management.
Furthermore, we assessed the adequacy
of the disclosures relating to these
reserves given in Note 7 to the
consolidated financial statements
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Other information

•

Other information consists of the information included in the Group’s 2018 Annual Report other
than the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Management
is responsible for the other information. The Group’s 2018 Annual Report is expected to be
made available to us after the date of this auditor’s report.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control.

•

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

•

Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s
ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists,
we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our
opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to
continue as a going concern.

Responsibilities of management and those charged with governance for the financial
statements

•

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated
financial statements in accordance with IFRSs, and for such internal control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated financial
statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves
fair presentation.

•

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related
to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management either
intends to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do
so.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the
entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated
financial statements. We are responsible for the direction, supervision and performance
of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other information
and we will not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our responsibility
is to read the other information identified above when it becomes available and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated
financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated.

Those charged with governance are responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated financial statements
Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as
a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an
auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance,
but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with ISA will always detect a
material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial
statements.
As part of an audit in accordance with ISA, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:
•
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Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal
control.

QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements
of the current year and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our
auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or when,
in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be communicated in
our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.
Report on other legal and regulatory requirements
We have obtained all the information and explanations we required for the purpose of our
audit, and are not aware of any violations of the Parent Company’s Articles of Association
and the applicable provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies Law No. 11 of 2015, during
the financial year that would materially affect the Group’s activities or its financial position.
Ziad Nader
of Ernst & Young
Auditor’s Registration No. 258
Doha, State of Qatar
Date: 10 February 2019
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF FINANCIAL POSITION

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF INCOME

AT DEC 31, 2018

Notes

2018

2017

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

ASSETS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC 31, 2018

Notes

2017

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

Gross premiums

23 (a)

12,605,835

11,658,698

23 (a)

(1,796,793)

(2,108,769)

10,809,042

9,549,929

Cash and cash equivalents

5

8,011,163

7,914,054

Premiums ceded to reinsurers

Insurance and other receivables

6

9,345,951

8,194,344

Net premiums

Reinsurance contract assets

7

5,467,185

3,774,868

Movement in unexpired risk reserve

Equity accounted investments

8

145,267

142,520

Investments

9

14,876,164

13,654,503

Investment properties

10

606,372

585,789

Property and equipment

11

52,033

52,538

Goodwill and intangible assets

12

660,488

415,668

39,164,623

34,734,284

TOTAL ASSETS

2018

23 (a)

Net earned premiums

536,927

(650,428)

11,345,969

8,899,501
(6,555,609)

Gross claims paid

23 (a)

(8,201,224)

Reinsurance recoveries

23 (a)

1,217,899

1,200,935

Movement in outstanding claims

23 (a)

(882,578)

(1,719,960)

Net commission

23 (a)

(2,911,354)

(1,722,549)

Other insurance income

23 (a)

7,596

12,646

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Net underwriting result

576,308

114,964

LIABILITIES

Investment income

24

894,954

970,649

Short term borrowings

13

4,881,821

3,975,446

Finance costs

24

(114,783)

(67,881)

Provisions, reinsurance and other payables

14

4,142,016

3,012,867

Net investment income

780,171

902,768

Advisory fee income

17,218

14,925
51,472

Insurance contract liabilities

7

20,420,997

17,717,987

Long term borrowings

15

132,554

138,795

Rental income

48,904

24,845,095

Other income

489

1,227

846,782

970,392

1,423,090

1,085,356

(742,061)

(642,046)

TOTAL LIABILITIES

29,577,388

Total investment and other income

SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Share capital

16

3,189,059

2,773,095

TOTAL INCOME
Operating and administrative expenses

25

Share premium

16

2,554,492

2,554,492

Legal reserve

17

634,567

701,321

Depreciation and amortisation

(32,733)

(35,334)

PROFIT BEFORE SHARE OF RESULTS FROM EQUITY ACCOUNTED
INVESTMENTS

648,296

407,976

15,872

15,631

664,168

423,607

645,942

417,593

General reserve

18

287,000

287,000

Fair value reserve

19

(313,851)

(92,410)

Catastrophe special reserve

20

32,017

381,227

(37,088)

(6,826)

Retained earnings

1,379,627

1,419,358

Equity attributable to shareholders of the parent Company

7,725,823

8,017,257

245,816

256,336

Foreign currency translation reserve

Non-controlling interests
TOTAL SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Subordinated perpetual debt
TOTAL EQUITY
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

22

7,971,639

8,273,593

1,615,596

1,615,596

9,587,235

9,889,189

39,164,623

34,734,284

Share of profit from equity accounted investments

8

PROFIT FOR THE YEAR
Attributable to:
Equity holders of the parent
Non-controlling interests

18,226

6,014

664,168

423,607

26

1.78

1.11

27

1.50

1.50

Earnings per share
Basic and diluted earnings per share attributable to ordinary equity holders
of the parent in Qatari Riyals (2017: Restated as a result of bonus shares)
Cash dividend per share in Qatari Riyals

These consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors and signed on its behalf by the
following signatories on 3 February 2019.

H.E. Sheikh Khalid Bin Mohammed
Bin Ali Al-Thani

Khalifa Abdulla Turki Al Subaey

Chairman and Managing Director

Group President and Chief Executive Officer
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Share
premium

(QR ‘000)

Legal
reserve

(QR ‘000)

General
reserve

(QR ‘000)

Fair value
reserve

(QR ‘000)

Catastrophe
special
reserve

(QR ‘000)

Foreign
currency
translation
reserve

(QR ‘000)

Retained
earnings

(QR ‘000)

Attributable
to owners of
the parent
Company

(QR ‘000)

Non-controlling
interests

(QR ‘000)

Total equity

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC 31, 2018

QR (‘000)

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CHANGES IN EQUITY

Share
capital

8,307

(205,249)

(QR ‘000)

(1,969)
226,665

423,607

-

8,468,223

(203,280)
4,045

6,014

8,307

-

(361,708)

232,117

222,620
-

417,593

-

-

8,236,106

417,593
-

(361,708)

417,593

8,307
(361,708)

1,966,833

8,307
(361,708)

-

-

(15,133)

(203,280)
-

-

-

329,526

(203,280)
-

-

-

110,870

-

-

-

287,000

-

-

-

591,131

-

-

Profit for the year
-

2,554,492

Net change on available for sale investments
-

-

Foreign currency translation
-

2,411,387

Total comprehensive income for the year
361,708

Balance as at January 1, 2017

Dividend for the year 2016 (Note 27)

Transfer to legal reserve (Note 17)

Interest on Subordinated perpetual debt (Note 22)

Dividend for the year 2017 (Note 27)

Total comprehensive income for the year

Foreign currency translation

Net change in investments at fair value through
other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

Profit for the year

Transfer to catastrophe special reserve (Note 20)

Contribution to social and sports fund (Note 21)

Effect of sale of stake in a subsidiary

Transfer to legal reserve (Note 17)

Interest on Subordinated perpetual debt (Note 22)

-

-

-

-

415,964

-

-

-

-

-

2,773,095

-

2,773,095

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

2,554,492

-

2,554,492

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

(66,754)

-

-

-

-

-

701,321

-

701,321

-

-

2,800

107,390

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

287,000

-

287,000

-

-

-

-

-

-

(2,992)

-

-

-

-

(361,710)

-

(361,710)

-

50,851

143,261

(92,410)

-

-

-

-

-

32,017

-

-

-

-

-

(349,210)

-

-

-

-

-

381,227

-

381,227

51,701

-

-

-

-

(37,088)

-

-

(13,166)

-

-

-

-

(17,096)

(17,096)

-

-

(6,826)

-

(6,826)

-

-

-

-

-

1,379,627

-

(9,959)

(32,996)

-

(77,028)

-

(415,964)

645,942

-

-

645,942

1,269,632

(149,726)

1,419,358

(51,701)

(9,409)

(10,834)

(107,390)

(62,318)

7,725,823

-

(9,959)

(49,154)

-

(77,028)

-

(415,964)

267,136

(17,096)

(361,710)

645,942

8,010,792

(6,465)

8,017,257

-

(9,409)

(8,034)

-

(62,318)

245,816

-

-

(1,964)

-

(3,427)

-

(7,614)

2,754

(488)

(14,984)

18,226

256,067

(269)

256,336

-

-

22,947

-

(2,773)

7,971,639

-

(9,959)

(51,118)

-

(80,455)

-

(423,578)

269,890

(17,584)

(376,694)

664,168

8,266,859

(6,734)

8,273,593

-

(9,409)

14,913

-

(65,091)

Issuance of bonus shares (Note 27)

Effect of acquisition/sale of stake in subsidiaries
-

Net changes in fair value during the year

Impact of adopting IFRS 9 (Note 3.1 (c))

OCI to be reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent periods

Adjusted balance at 1 January 2018

Other comprehensive income (OCI)

Issuance of bonus shares (Note 27)

Debt instruments at fair value through other comprehensive income
Available-for-sale financial assets

Balance as at 31 December 2017

Contribution to social and sports fund (Note 21)
(313,851)

QR (‘000)

73
QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018
QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

72

-

226,665

287,000

269,890

-

4,045

634,567

222,620
2,754

-

267,136

2,554,492

Attributable to:

-

226,665

3,189,059

8,307
269,890

Total comprehensive income for the year

(205,249)

Transfer to catastrophe special reserve (Note 20)

(17,584)
Total comprehensive income for the year

Non-controlling interests

QR (‘000)

Balance as at 31 December 2018

Foreign currency translation differences foreign operations

Equity holders of the Parent

(376,694)
Net changes in fair value during the year

2017
2018

423,607
664,168
Profit for the year

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC 31, 2018

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT
OF CASH FLOWS

FOR THE YEAR ENDED DEC 31, 2018

		
Notes

2018

2017

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

Notes

OPERATING ACTIVITIES
664,168

423,607

Adjustments for:
Amortization of intangible assets, net
8

Investment income and other finance income
Impairment loss on doubtful receivables
14

Net foreign exchange loss (gain) on property and equipment and investment
properties
Gain on sale of investment properties

24

Loss on sale of property and equipment
Impairment loss on financial investments
Net unrealised gain on financial investments
Operating loss profit before working capital changes

Purchase of investment properties

10

(77,809)

(9,059)

Acquisition of stake in subsidiaries

38

(179,937)

-

Dividend received from equity accounted investment

8

(15,872)

(15,631)

(774,619)

(1,005,367)

16,400
11,124

13,125

11,952

Interest income and other finance income

774,619

1,005,367

8,203

Proceeds from sale of investment properties

108,138

-

6,142

Net cash used in investing activities

(331,196)

(1,547,730)

(81,081)

(40,541)

(19,469)

(54,947)

-

1,491

1,135

Net movement interest bearing borrowings

Interest paid on subordinated perpetual debt
Increase in non-controlling interest

-

67,364

Proceeds from subordinated perpetual debt

(65,388)

35,235

Dividends paid

(174,283)

(463,447)

(218,537)

2,853,275

(1,300,631)

512,719

Cash generated from operations

74,433

1,352,577

Payment of social and sports fund contribution

(9,409)

(6,207)
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FINANCING ACTIVITIES

10,627

Change in insurance reserves – net

74

(28,704)

1,446

(1,549,970)

14

(2,527,286)

(17,416)

33,888

1,767,884

Employees’ end of service benefits paid

(951,916)

1,446

Change in insurance and other receivables
Change in provisions, reinsurance and other payables

11

31,287

Working capital changes

Net cash generated from operating activities

Net cash movements in investments
Purchase of property and equipment

Depreciation of property and equipment and investment properties

Accrual for employees’ end of service benefits

2017
(QR ‘000)

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Profit for the year

Share of profit from equity accounted investments

2018
(QR ‘000)

(858)

(5,197)

64,166

1,341,173

(7,614)

14,913

906,375

(89,865)
1,615,596

27

(415,964)

(361,708)

Net cash generated from financing activities

401,716

1,138,395

Net increase in cash and cash equivalents

134,686

931,838

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

(37,577)

19,906

Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year

5

7,914,054

6,962,310

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AT THE END OF THE YEAR

5

8,011,163

7,914,054
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Name of the subsidiary

AT DEC 31, 2018

2018

2017
100%

Malta

Primarily engaged in insurance business and reinsurance
and has a branch offices in Italy and the United Kingdom

100% (owned
through QICI)

100% (owned
through QICI)

UAE

Was primarily engaged in Real Estate activities in the UAE
and currently is in the process of liquidation.

Qatar Insurance Company Real Estate
W.L.L.

100%

100%

State of Qatar

Primarily engaged in Real Estate activities in the State
of Qatar.

Qatar Economic Advisors W.L.L. (“QEA”)

100%

100%

State of Qatar

Primarily engaged in financial and other advisory
services.

Qatar Insurance Group W.L.L.

100%

100%

State of Qatar

Primarily engaged in the management of QIC Group
entities.

CATCo Investment Management Ltd.
(“CATCO-IM”)

100%

100%

Bermuda

In the process of liquidation.

100% (owned
through CATCO-IM)

100% (owned
through CATCO-IM)

Bermuda

In the process of liquidation.

100% (owned
through QEA)

100% (owned
through QEA)

Cayman Islands

Holding company for investment assets.

100%

100%

Cayman Islands

Primarily engaged in financial and other advisory
services.

100%

100%

B.V.I.

100% (owned
through QEA)

100% (owned
through QEA)

Cayman Islands

QANIT Ltd.

Qatar Insurance Company Q.S.P.C. (the “Parent Company”) is a public shareholding company incorporated in the
State of Qatar in the year 1964 under Commercial Registration No. 20 and governed by the provisions of the Qatar
Commercial Companies’ Law and Qatar Central Bank’s insurance regulations. The Parent Company and its subsidiaries
(the “Group”) are engaged in the business of insurance, reinsurance, real estate and financial advisory services. The
head office of the Group is at QIC Building, Tamin Street, West Bay, P.O. Box 666, Doha, State of Qatar.
The Parent Company’s shares are listed on Qatar Stock Exchange. Qatar Reinsurance Company Limited, a subsidiary,
has issued a subordinated Tier 2 qualifying capital notes that were issued through the Irish Stock Exchange (Note 22).

CATCo-Re Ltd.

The Group operates in the State of Qatar, United Arab Emirates, Sultanate of Oman, State of Kuwait, United Kingdom,
Switzerland, Bermuda, Singapore, Labuan (Malaysia), Gibraltar, Italy, Jersey and Malta. The details of subsidiaries are
given below:
Name of the subsidiary

Ownership
2018

2017

95.74%

95.74%

100% (owned
through QICC)

QIC Capital L.L.C. (“QICC”)
QIC International L.L.C. (“QICI”)
Oman Qatar Insurance Company
S.A.O.G. (“OQIC”)

1

Kuwait Qatar Insurance Company
K.S.C.C. (“KQIC”)
Qatar Reinsurance Company Limited
(“Qatar Re”)

Country of incorporation

58.82%

82.04%

100%

Jersey

Primarily engaged in real estate activities.

100% (owned
through AREL)

Jersey

Primarily engaged in real estate activities.

100% (owned
through AREL)

-

Jersey

Primarily engaged in real estate activities.

100%

-

State of Qatar

Markerstudy Insurance Co. Ltd.

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

Primarily engaged in insurance business.

Zenith Insurance Plc

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

Primarily engaged in insurance business.

Ultimate

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

Was primarily engaged in insurance business. The company has been placed into runoff and has been de-registered with the insurance regulator in Gibraltar.

St Julians Insurance Co. Ltd

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

Was primarily engaged in insurance business. The company has been placed into runoff.

Incorporated to provide capital supporting the underwriting capacity at Lloyds.

Mayflower Limited

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

Primarily engaged in real estate activities.

Primarily engaged in life and medical insurance business
and has a branch office in Labuan, Malaysia (in runoff).

North Town Management Limited

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

-

Gibraltar

A property management company (limited by guarantee
having no share capital). This entity is dormant.

100% (owned
through QICC)

State of Qatar

Was primarily engaged in insurance and reinsurance.
However, it has now been de-authorised.

58.82%

Sultanate of Oman

Primarily engaged in insurance and reinsurance.

82.04%

State of Kuwait

Primarily engaged in insurance and reinsurance.

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

100% (owned
through Qatar
Re)

State of Qatar

100% (owned
through QICC)

100% (owned
through QICC)

United Kingdom

Q Life & Medical Insurance Company
LLC

85%

85%

State of Qatar

QIC Global Holdings Limited (“QGHL”)
( previously, Antares Group Holdings
Limited (“AGHL”)

100% (owned
through QICC)

100% (owned
through QICC)

United Kingdom

Incorporated as a holding company.

Antares Underwriting Limited

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated to provide capital supporting the underwriting capacity of Antares Syndicate 1274.

Antares Managing Agency Limited
(“AMAL”)

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated to act as the managing agent for Antares
Syndicate 1274.

Antares Underwriting Asia Pte. Limited

100% (owned
through AMAL)

100% (owned
through AMAL)

Singapore

QIC Global Services Limited (“QGSL”)
(previously, Antares Underwriting
Services Limited)

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated as a services company to provide services
to the international insurance and reinsurance entities of
the Group.

Antares Capital I Limited

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated to provide capital supporting the underwriting capacity of Antares Syndicate 1274.

Antares Capital III Limited

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated to provide capital supporting the underwriting capacity of Antares Syndicate 1274.

Antares Capital IV Limited

100% (owned
through QGHL)

100% (owned
through AGHL)

United Kingdom

Incorporated to provide capital supporting the underwriting capacity of Antares Syndicate 1274.

100%

100%

Bermuda

Antares Holding Limited
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Synergy Frimley Limited
Synergy Bristol Limited
QLM Life & Medical Insurance W.L.L.

Primarily engaged in reinsurance. Qatar Re manages
the reinsurance operations of the Group and has branch
offices in Switzerland, Dubai, the United Kingdom and
Singapore (in runoff).

100% (owned
through QICC)

Qatar Re Underwriting Limited

Arneb Real Estate Limited (“AREL”)

Primarily engaged in financial and other advisory
services.

100%

100% (owned
through QICC)

Qatar Reinsurance Services LLC

Taleem Advisory Ltd.

Primarily engaged in providing investment management
services.

100% (owned
through AREL)

Holding company having equity interest in the Group’s
international insurance and reinsurance entities.

Bermuda

Education Company 2 Ltd.
Epicure Managers Qatar Ltd.

State of Qatar

1

QIC Asset Management Ltd (“QICAM”)

Principal activities

Principal activities

100% (owned
through Qatar Re)

QIC Europe Limited (QEL)

1 STATUS AND OPERATIONS

Country of
incorporation

Ownership

Primarily engaged in providing services to Qatar Re.

Incorporated to participate in Lloyds Asia Scheme.

Incorporated as a holding company.

Direct ownership of the Parent Company in OQIC is
52.50% whereas the remaining shares are held through
group entities.

1

In 2018, the shares of QEL were transferred from the
Parent Company to QICC and thereafter from QICC
to Qatar Re. As on 31/12/2018, QEL is a wholly owned
subsidiary of Qatar Re. The transaction is considered as
transaction under common control and hence, there is
no gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss of the
Group.
Also in 2018, Qatar Re completed the acquisition of
Gibraltar based entities; (i) Markerstudy Insurance Co.
Ltd, (ii) Zenith Insurance Plc, (iii) Ultimate, (iv) St Julians
Insurance Co. Ltd., (v) Mayflower Limited; and (vi) North
Town Management Limited. The related details are set
out in Note 38.

Newly formed entity to carry on life and medical insurance business.

During 2017, Oman Qatar Insurance Company
completed its initial public opening and its shares were
listed on the Muscat Securities Market, accordingly
Group’s ownership percentage decreased from 70% to
58.82% after listing, without loss of control.
As a part of Group restructuring, investments in Oman
Qatar Insurance Company & Kuwait Qatar Insurance
Company including the beneficial ownership of Dubai
branch and Abu Dhabi branch have been transferred
from QIC International to the Parent company due to deauthorization of QIC International by the Qatar Financial
Centre Regulatory Authority (the “QFCRA”) in 2017. The
transaction is considered as transaction under common
control and hence, there is no gain or loss recognised in
the profit or loss of the Group.
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2 BASIS OF PREPARATION
Statement of compliance
The consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with International Financial
Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by the International
Accounting Standards Board (IASB) and the applicable
provisions of the Qatar Commercial Companies Law and
Qatar Central Bank regulations.

Basis of preparation
The accompanying consolidated financial statements
have been prepared under the historical cost
convention, except for certain financial instruments that
are measured at fair value at the end of each reporting
period.
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount reported in these consolidated statement of
financial position only when there is a legally enforceable
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, or to realise the assets
and settle the liability simultaneously. Income and
expense are not offset in the consolidated statement of
income unless required or permitted by any accounting
standard or interpretation, as specifically disclosed in
the accounting policies of the Group. The consolidated
financial statements provide comparative information
in respect of the previous period.
The Group presents its consolidated statement of
financial position broadly in order of liquidity. An
analysis regarding recovery or settlement within 12
months after reporting date (no more than 12 months)
and more than 12 months after reporting date (more
than 12 months) is presented in Note 32.

Basis of consolidation
The consolidated financial statements comprise the
financial statements of Qatar Insurance Company
Q.S.P.C. and its subsidiaries as at 31 December (together
referred to as the “Group”).
Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has
rights, to variable returns from its involvement with
the investee and has the ability to affect those returns
through its power over the investee. Specifically, the
Group controls an investee if and only if the Group has:
• Power over the investee (i.e. existing rights that give
it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee)
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• Exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee, and
• The ability to use its power over the investee to affect
its returns
When the Group has less than a majority of the voting
or similar rights of an investee, the Group considers all
relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it
has power over an investee, including:
• The contractual arrangement with the other vote
holders of the investee
• Rights arising from other contractual arrangements
• The Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights
The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an
investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of
control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the
Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases
when the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets,
liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired
or disposed of during the year are included in the
statement of comprehensive income from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to
control the subsidiary.
Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive
income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders of
the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling
interests. Losses applicable to the non-controlling
interest in excess of the non-controlling interests are
allocated against the interest of the Group except to the
extent that the non-controlling interest has a binding
obligation and is able to make an additional investment
to cover losses. These consolidated financial statements
are prepared using uniform accounting policies for like
transactions and other events in similar circumstances.
When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial
statements of subsidiaries to bring their accounting
policies into line with the Group’s accounting policies.
Subsidiaries are fully consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group obtains
control, and continue to be consolidated until the date
when such control ceases. The financial statements of
the subsidiaries are prepared for the same reporting
period as the parent company, using consistent
accounting policies.
A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises
the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities, noncontrolling interest and other components of equity,
while any resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or
loss. Any investment retained is recognised at fair value.

Transactions eliminated on consolidation
Inter-company balances and transactions, and any
unrealised gains arising from intra-group transactions
are eliminated in preparing the consolidated financial
statements.

Non-controlling interests
Non-controlling interests represent the Company’s
portion of profit or loss and net assets not held by the
Group and are presented separately in the consolidated
income statement, consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and within equity in the
consolidated statement of financial position, separately
from the equity of the Company. Losses applicable to the
non-controlling interest in excess of the non-controlling
interests are allocated against the interest of the Group
except to the extent that the non-controlling interest has
a binding obligation and is able to make an additional
investment to cover losses. Acquisitions of noncontrolling interests are accounted for using the parent
extension method, whereby, the difference between the
consideration and the book value of the share of the net
assets acquired is recognised as goodwill.

Functional and presentation currency
These consolidated financial statements are presented
in Qatari Riyal (QR) and rounded to the nearest thousand
(QR ‘000), unless otherwise indicated.

3 CHANGES IN ACCOUNTING POLICIES
AND DISCLOSURES
3.1		 NEW AND AMENDED STANDARDS AND
		INTERPRETATIONS
The accounting policies adopted in the preparation of
the consolidated financial statements are consistent
with those followed in the preparation of the Group’s
annual consolidated financial statements for the year
ended 31 December 2017, except for the adoption of
new standards effective as of 1 January 2018.
Several other amendments and interpretations apply for
the first time in 2018, impact has been disclosed in Note
3.1. The Group has not early adopted any standards,
interpretations or amendments that have been issued
but are not yet effective.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 –
“Financial Instruments” with IFRS 4 – “Insurance
Contracts”
IFRS 4 standard issued September 2016 amendments
to the standard to introduce two alternative options
for entities issuing contracts within the scope of IFRS
4, notably a temporary exemption and an overlay
approach. The temporary exemption enables eligible
entities to defer the implementation date of IFRS 9 for
annual periods beginning before 1 January 2021 at the
latest.

Foreign operations

An entity may apply the temporary exemption from IFRS
9 if:

The individual financial statements of the group entities
are presented in the currency of the primary economic
environment in which they operate (functional currency).
For the purpose of these consolidated financial
statements, the results and financial position of each
subsidiary are expressed in the functional currency of
the parent company.

i) it has not previously applied any version of IFRS 9
before and
ii) its activities are predominantly connected with
insurance on its annual reporting date that immediately
precedes 1 April 2016.

The assets and liabilities of foreign operations
are translated to qatari riyal using exchange rates
prevailing at the reporting date. Income and expenses
are also translated to qatari riyal at the exchange rates
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. The exchange
differences arising on the translation for consolidation
are recognised in OCI.
Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the carrying
amounts of assets and liabilities arising on the acquisition
are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign operation
and translated at the rate of exchange prevailing at the
end of each reporting period. Exchange differences are
recognized in other comprehensive income.

The overlay approach allows an entity applying
IFRS 9 to reclassify between profit or loss and other
comprehensive income an amount that results in the
profit or loss at the end of the reporting period for the
designated financial assets being the same as if an entity
had applied IAS 39 to these designated financial assets.
The temporary exemption from IFRS 9 is available from
1 January 2018 while the overlay approach applies when
IFRS 9 is applied for the first time.
The Group has assessed the above options available and
criterion thereof and concluded to adopt IFRS 9 from 1
January 2018.
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IFRS 9 Financial instruments
IFRS 9 replaces IAS 39 for annual periods on or after 1
January 2018. The Group has not restated comparative
information for 2017 for financial instruments in the
scope of IFRS 9. Therefore, the comparative information
for 2017 is reported under IAS 39 and is not comparable
to the information presented for 2018. Differences
arising from the adoption of IFRS 9 have been recognised
directly in retained earnings as of 1 January 2018 and are
disclosed in this consolidated financial statements.

a)

Changes to classification and measurement

IFRS 9 requires to determine the classification and
measurement category for all financial assets, except
equity instruments and derivatives, to be assessed based
on a combination of the business model for managing
the assets and the instruments’ contractual cash flow
characteristics.
The IAS 39 measurement categories of financial assets
(fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL), available for sale
(AFS), held-to-maturity and amortised cost) have been
replaced by:
• Debt instruments at amortised cost;
• Debt instruments at fair value through other
comprehensive income (FVOCI), with gains or losses
recycled to profit or loss on derecognition;
• Equity instruments at FVOCI, with no recycling of gains
or losses on profit or loss on derecognition; and
• Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
(FVTPL).
The accounting for financial liabilities remains largely
the same as it was under IAS 39, except for the treatment

of gains or losses arising from an entity’s own credit
risk relating to liabilities designated at FVTPL. Such
movements are presented in OCI with no subsequent
reclassification to the income statement.
Under IFRS 9, embedded derivatives are no longer
separated from a host financial asset. Instead, financial
assets are classified based on the business model and
their contractual terms. The Group’s classification of its
financial assets and liabilities is explained in Notes 3.1 (c).
The quantitative impact of applying IFRS 9 as at 1 January
2018 are disclosed in the succeeding disclosures.

b)

Changes to the impairment calculation

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed the
Group’s accounting for impairment by replacing IAS 39’s
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking expected
credit loss (ECL) approach. IFRS 9 requires the Group to
record an allowance for ECLs for debt financial instrument
not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitments and
financial guarantee contracts. The allowance is based on
the ECLs associated with the probability of default in the
next twelve months unless there has been a significant
increase in credit risk since origination. If the financial
asset meets the definition of purchased or originated
credit impaired (POCI), the allowance is based on the
change in the ECLs over the life of the asset. Details of
the Group’s impairment method are disclosed in this
consolidated financial statements.

c)

Transition disclosures

QR (‘000)
Closing balance under IAS 39 – 31 December 2017

1,419,358

IFRS 9

IAS 39

IFRS 9 Impact

IFRS 9

Measurement
category

Carrying
amount

Reclassification

Carrying amount

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

Cash & deposits

AC (L&R)5

AC1

7,914,054

FVTPL (HFT)

FVTPL (D)

1,123,177

-

FVTPL (HFT)6

FVTPL (M)3

17,101

-

17,101

Debt Securities – Bonds

FVTPL (HFT)6

FVTPL (D)2

2,025,284

615,114

2,640,398

Equity Securities – Qatari listed

AFS7

FVTPL (D)2

1,038,564

-

1,038,564

Debt Securities – Bonds

AFS7

FVOCI4

8,710,627

(615,114)

8,095,513

Equity Securities – International listed
Equity Securities – Unquoted & private equity

(1)
(2)
(3)
(4)
(5)
(6)
(7)

AFS

2

FVTPL (D)

82,660

-

82,660

AFS7

FVTPL (D)2

657,090

-

657,090

21,568,557

-

21,568,557

7

Amortised Cost
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Designated)
Fair Value Through Profit or Loss (Mandatory)
Fair Value Through Other Comprehensive Income
Amortised cost (Loans and Receivables)
Fair Value through Profit or Loss (Held for Trading)
Available-for-Sale

Financial liabilities
There were no changes to the classification and measurement of financial liabilities.
Exposures and related ECL Movements:
Stage 1

Stage 2

Stage 3

Total

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

Non- controlling
interest

Fair value
reserve

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

256,336

(92,410)

Due from banks and deposits

7,914,054

-

-

7,914,054

Financial investments - Debt

8,095,513

-

-

8,095,513

Exposure (carrying value) subject to ECL at 31 December 2018
Due from banks and deposits

8,011,163

-

-

8,011,163

Financial investments – Debt

10,639,699

-

-

10,639,699

Opening balance as at 1 January 2018
Due from banks and deposits

-

-

-

-

Financial investments – Debt

-

-

-

-

-

-

6,465

ECL Impact of initial application of IFRS 9
Due from banks and deposits

6,465

Reclassification of AFS debt securities to FVTPL

8,250

Impact of recognition of Expected Credit Losses (ECL)

(2,055)

-

2,055

(132,956)

-

132,956

(14,715)

(269)

8,250

1,269,632

256,067

50,851

Impact of recognition of ECL at Day 1

14,715

Financial investments - Debt – Effect of acquisition (Note 38)

32,943

The Group performed a detailed analysis of its business models for managing financial assets as well as analysing their
cash flow characteristics. The below table reconciles the original measurement categories and carrying amounts of
financial assets in accordance with IAS 39 and the new measurement categories under IFRS 9 as at 31 December 2017:
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8,250
-

-

14,715
32,943

Foreign currency translation for the period
Due from banks and deposits

-

-

-

-

Financial investments – Debt

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

Due from banks and deposits

(3,646)

-

-

(3,646)

Classification and Measurement of Financial Instruments

80

1,123,177

Managed Funds

2

Financial investments – Debt

Restated balance as at 1 January 2018

7,914,054

Derivatives

6

Impact
Reclassification of AFS equity securities to FVTPL

QR (‘000)
-

Exposure (carrying value) subject to ECL at 1 January 2018

Set out below are the IFRS 9 transition impact disclosures
for the Group. Further details of the specific IFRS 9
accounting policies applied in the current period are
described in more detail in Note 4.

Retained
earnings

IAS 39
Measurement
category

Financial investments – Debt

(13,218)

-

-

(13,218)

ECL charge for the period (Net)

(16,864)

-

-

(16,864)

2,819

-

-

2,819

Due from banks and deposits
Financial investments - Debt

27,975

-

-

27,975

ECL as at 31 December 2018

30,794

-

-

30,794
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The adoption of IFRS 9 has resulted in changes in the accounting policies for recognition, classification and measurement
of financial assets and financial liabilities and impairment of financial assets.
Set out below is the reconciliation of the ending impairment allowances in accordance with IAS 39 to the opening loss
allowances determined in accordance with IFRS 9:
Allowance for impairment
under IAS 39 as at
31 December 2017

Remeasurement

QR (‘000)

QR (‘000)

AFS financial asset and due from banks and deposits under IAS
39/Debt instruments at fair value through OCI under IFRS 9

-

ECL under IFRS 9 as at
1 January 2018

14,715

QR (‘000)
14,715

Paragraph 2.1 of IFRS 9 lists the scope exclusions for IFRS 9, which excludes the rights and obligations arising under
insurance contracts that contain discretionary participating feature as per IFRS 4. In the absence of guidance of
impairment of assets under an insurance contract in IFRS 4 including premium receivables existing impairment
accounting policy of the Group will apply to these assets.

IFRIC Interpretation 22 Foreign Currency
Transactions and Advance Considerations
The Interpretation clarifies that, in determining the
spot exchange rate to use on initial recognition of the
related asset, expense or income (or part of it) on the
derecognition of a non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability relating to advance consideration, the date of
the transaction is the date on which an entity initially
recognises the non-monetary asset or non-monetary
liability arising from the advance consideration. If there
are multiple payments or receipts in advance, then the
entity must determine the date of the transactions for
each payment or receipt of advance consideration. This
Interpretation does not have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IAS 40 Transfers of Investment
Property
The amendments clarify when an entity should transfer
property, including property under construction or
development into, or out of investment property. The
amendments state that a change in use occurs when
the property meets, or ceases to meet, the definition of
investment property and there is evidence of the change
in use. A mere change in management’s intentions for the
use of a property does not provide evidence of a change
in use. These amendments do not have any impact on
the Group’s consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 2 Classification and
Measurement
of
Share-based
Payment
Transactions
The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
Payment that address three main areas: the effects
of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
cash-settled share-based payment transaction; the
classification of a share-based payment transaction with
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investment entity associate or joint venture, at the later
of the date on which: (a) the investment entity associate
or joint venture is initially recognised; (b) the associate
or joint venture becomes an investment entity; and
(c) the investment entity associate or joint venture
first becomes a parent. These amendments do not
have any impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.

net settlement features for withholding tax obligations;
and accounting where a modification to the terms
and conditions of a share-based payment transaction
changes its classification from cash settled to equity
settled. On adoption, entities are required to apply
the amendments without restating prior periods, but
retrospective application is permitted if elected for all
three amendments and other criteria are met. These
amendments do not have any impact on the Group’s
consolidated financial statements.

Amendments to IFRS 4 Applying IFRS 9 Financial
Instruments with IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
The amendments address concerns arising from
implementing the new financial instruments standard,
IFRS 9, before implementing IFRS 17 Insurance
Contracts, which replaces IFRS 4. The amendments
introduce two options for entities issuing insurance
contracts: a temporary exemption from applying IFRS 9
and an overlay approach. The Group has implemented
IFRS 9 effective 1 January 2018.

Amendments to IAS 28 Investments in Associates
and Joint Ventures - Clarification that measuring
investees at fair value through profit or loss is
an investment-by-investment choice
The amendments clarify that an entity that is a venture
capital organisation, or other qualifying entity, may elect,
at initial recognition on an investment-by-investment
basis, to measure its investments in associates and joint
ventures at fair value through profit or loss. If an entity
that is not itself an investment entity, has an interest
in an associate or joint venture that is an investment
entity, then it may, when applying the equity method,
elect to retain the fair value measurement applied by
that investment entity associate or joint venture to the
investment entity associate’s or joint venture’s interests
in subsidiaries. This election is made separately for each

IFRS 15 Revenue from Contracts with Customers
IFRS 15 supersedes IAS 11 Construction Contracts, IAS
8 Revenue and related interpretations and it applies,
with limited exceptions, to all revenue arising from
contracts with its customers. IFRS 15 establishes as
five-step model to account for revenue arising from
contracts with customers and requires that revenue be
recognized at an amount that reflects the consideration
to which an entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
transferring goods or services to a customer.
The Group has assessed that it has no complicated
revenue from customer contracts other than those
qualifying under IFRS 4, hence did not assess a significant
impact to its consolidated financial statements.

3.2

NEW AND REVISED IFRSs IN ISSUE BUT
NOT YET EFFECTIVE

The Group has not yet applied the following new and
revised IFRSs that have been issued but are not yet
effective:

IFRS 16 Leases
IFRS 16 was issued in January 2016 and it replaces IAS
17 Leases, IFRIC 4 Determining whether an Arrangement
contains a Lease, SIC-15 Operating Leases-Incentives
and SIC-27 Evaluating the Substance of Transactions
Involving the Legal Form of a Lease. IFRS 16 sets out
the principles for the recognition, measurement,
presentation and disclosure of leases and requires
lessees to account for all leases under a single onbalance sheet model similar to the accounting for
finance leases under IAS 17. The standard includes two
recognition exemptions for lessees – leases of ’lowvalue’ assets (e.g., personal computers) and short-term
leases (i.e., leases with a lease term of 12 months or
less). At the commencement date of a lease, a lessee
will recognise a liability to make lease payments (i.e.,
the lease liability) and an asset representing the right to
use the underlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the
right-of-use asset). Lessees will be required to separately
recognise the interest expense on the lease liability and
the depreciation expense on the right-of-use asset.

Lessees will be also required to remeasure the lease
liability upon the occurrence of certain events (e.g.,
a change in the lease term, a change in future lease
payments resulting from a change in an index or rate
used to determine those payments). The lessee will
generally recognise the amount of the remeasurement
of the lease liability as an adjustment to the right-of-use
asset.
Lessor accounting under IFRS 16 is substantially
unchanged from today’s accounting under IAS 17.
Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the
same classification principle as in IAS 17 and distinguish
between two types of leases: operating and finance
leases.
IFRS 16, which is effective for annual periods beginning
on or after 1 January 2019, requires lessees and lessors
to make more extensive disclosures than under IAS 17.
The Group has assessed the impact of this Standard
and does not expect the impact of the adoption of this
standard to be significant.

IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
In May 2017, the IASB issued IFRS 17 Insurance Contracts
(IFRS 17), a comprehensive new accounting standard
for insurance contracts covering recognition and
measurement, presentation and disclosure. Once
effective, IFRS 17 will replace IFRS 4 Insurance Contracts
(IFRS 4) that was issued in 2005. IFRS 17 applies to
all types of insurance contracts (i.e., life, non-life,
direct insurance and re-insurance), regardless of the
type of entities that issue them, as well as to certain
guarantees and financial instruments with discretionary
participation features. A few scope exceptions will
apply. The overall objective of IFRS 17 is to provide
an accounting model for insurance contracts that is
more useful and consistent for insurers. In contrast to
the requirements in IFRS 4, which are largely based
on grandfathering previous local accounting policies,
IFRS 17 provides a comprehensive model for insurance
contracts, covering all relevant accounting aspects. The
core of IFRS 17 is the general model, supplemented by:
• A specific adaptation for contracts with direct
participation features (the variable fee approach)
• A simplified approach (the premium allocation
approach) mainly for short-duration contracts IFRS 17
is effective for reporting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022, with comparative figures required.
In order to further evaluate the effects of adopting IFRS
17 in the consolidated financial statements, an IFRS 17
Group Implementation Team has been set up sponsored
by the Group Chief Financial Officer, comprising senior
management from Finance, Risk, Operations and
Investment Operations
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Amendments to IFRS 9: Prepayment Features
with Negative Compensation
Under IFRS 9, a debt instrument can be measured
at amortised cost or at fair value through other
comprehensive income, provided that the contractual
cash flows are ‘solely payments of principal and interest
on the principal amount outstanding’ (the SPPI criterion)
and the instrument is held within the appropriate
business model for that classification. The amendments
to IFRS 9 clarify that a financial asset passes the SPPI
criterion regardless of the event or circumstance
that causes the early termination of the contract and
irrespective of which party pays or receives reasonable
compensation for the early termination of the contract.
The amendments should be applied retrospectively and
are effective from 1 January 2019, with earlier application
permitted. These amendments are not expected to
have any material impact on the consolidated financial
statements of the Group.

Amendments to IFRS 10 and IAS 28: Sale or
Contribution of Assets between an Investor and
its Associate or Joint Venture
The amendments address the conflict between IFRS
10 and IAS 28 in dealing with the loss of control of a
subsidiary that is sold or contributed to an associate
or joint venture. The amendments clarify that the
gain or loss resulting from the sale or contribution of
assets that constitute a business, as defined in IFRS 3,
between an investor and its associate or joint venture,
is recognised in full. Any gain or loss resulting from the
sale or contribution of assets that do not constitute a
business, however, is recognised only to the extent of
unrelated investors’ interests in the associate or joint
venture. The IASB has deferred the effective date of
these amendments indefinitely, but an entity that early
adopts the amendments must apply them prospectively.
The Group will apply these amendments when they
become effective.

Amendments to IAS 19: Plan Amendment,
Curtailment or Settlement
The amendments to IAS 19 address the accounting
when a plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
occurs during a reporting period. The amendments
specify that when a plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement occurs during the annual reporting period,
an entity is required to:

• Determine current service cost for the remainder of
the period after the plan amendment, curtailment
or settlement, using the actuarial assumptions used
to remeasure the net defined benefit liability (asset)
reflecting the benefits offered under the plan and the
plan assets after that event.
• Determine net interest for the remainder of the period
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement
using: the net defined benefit liability (asset) reflecting
the benefits offered under the plan and the plan
assets after that event; and the discount rate used to
remeasure that net defined benefit liability (asset).
The amendments also clarify that an entity first
determines any past service cost, or a gain or loss on
settlement, without considering the effect of the asset
ceiling. This amount is recognised in profit or loss.
An entity then determines the effect of the asset ceiling
after the plan amendment, curtailment or settlement.
Any change in that effect, excluding amounts included
in the net interest, is recognised in other comprehensive
income.
The amendments apply to plan amendments,
curtailments, or settlements occurring on or after the
beginning of the first annual reporting period that
begins on or after 1 January 2019, with early application
permitted. These amendments will apply only to any
future plan amendments, curtailments, or settlements
of the Group.

Amendments to IAS 28: Long-term interests in
associates and joint ventures
The amendments clarify that an entity applies IFRS 9
to long-term interests in an associate or joint venture
to which the equity method is not applied but that,
in substance, form part of the net investment in the
associate or joint venture (long-term interests). This
clarification is relevant because it implies that the
expected credit loss model in IFRS 9 applies to such
long-term interests. The amendments also clarified
that, in applying IFRS 9, an entity does not take account
of any losses of the associate or joint venture, or any
impairment losses on the net investment, recognised as
adjustments to the net investment in the associate or
joint venture that arise from applying IAS 28 Investments
in Associates and Joint Ventures. The amendments
should be applied retrospectively and are effective from
1 January 2019, with early application permitted. Since
the Group does not have such long-term interests in its
associate and joint venture, the amendments will not
have an impact on its consolidated financial statements.

Annual improvement – 2015 - 2017 cycle (issued in December 2017)
Standards

Content

IFRS 3

Business Combinations

1 January 2019

IFRS 11

Joint Arrangements

1 January 2019

IAS 12

Income Taxes

1 January 2019

IAS 23

Borrowing Costs

1 January 2019

The Group is currently in the process of evaluating
the potential effect of these amendments in the
presentation of the consolidated financial statements.

Significant accounting judgements and
estimates
The Group makes judgements, estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of
assets, liabilities, revenues, expenses and disclosure of
contingent liabilities at the reporting date. Estimates
and judgements are continually evaluated and are based
on historical experience and other factors, including
expectation of future events that are believed to be
reasonable under the circumstances.
Estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on
an ongoing basis. Revisions to accounting estimates are
recognised in the year in which the estimates are revised
and in any future years affected. The key judgements
and estimates made by the Group are detailed in Notes
35.

4 SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Business combination and Goodwill
The management uses the following criteria to evaluate
whether a business combination has substance to
apply the acquisition method or as per under uniting of
interests’ method where the transaction lacks substance
as described in IFRS 3 – Business Combinations:
• the purpose of the transaction;
• the involvement of outside parties in the transaction,
such as non-controlling interests or other third parties;
• whether or not the transaction is conducted at fair
value;
• The existing activities of the entities involved in the
transactions; whether or not it is bringing entities
together into a reporting entity that did not exist
before; and
• where a new company is established, whether it is
undertaken in connection with an IPO or spin-off or
other change in control and significant change in
ownership.
Business combinations are accounted for using the
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Effective date*

acquisition method. The cost of an acquisition is
measured as the aggregate of the consideration
transferred, measured at acquisition date fair value
and the amount of any non- controlling interest in the
acquiree. For each business combination, the acquirer
measures the non-controlling interest in the acquiree
either at fair value or at the proportionate share of
the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition costs
incurred are expensed and included in administrative
expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the
acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the acquisition
date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or
liability that is a financial instrument and within the
scope of IFRS 9 Financial Instruments, is measured at
fair value with the changes in fair value recognised in
the income statement.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost (being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred and
the amount recognised for non-controlling interests)
and any previous interest held over the net identifiable
assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value
of the net assets acquired is in excess of the aggregate
consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether
it has correctly identified all of the assets acquired and
all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures
used to measure the amounts to be recognised at the
acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an
excess of the fair value of net assets acquired over the
aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is
recognised in consolidated statement of income.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. For the purpose
of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business
combination is, from the acquisition date, allocated
to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are
expected to benefit from the combination, irrespective
QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018
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of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are
assigned to those units.
Where goodwill forms part of a cash-generating unit
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation disposed
of is included in the carrying amount of the operation
when determining the gain or loss on disposal of the
operation. Goodwill disposed of in this circumstance is
measured based on the relative values of the operation
disposed of and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.
Goodwill is tested for impairment annually (as at 31
December) and when circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired.
Impairment is determined for goodwill by assessing
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit (or
group of cash-generating units), to which the goodwill
relates. Where the recoverable amount of the cashgenerating unit (or group of cash-generating units) is
less than the carrying amount of the cash-generating
unit (group of cash-generating units) to which goodwill
has been allocated, an impairment loss is recognised.
Impairment losses relating to goodwill cannot be
reversed in future periods.

Investments in associates and jointly controlled
entities
Associates are those entities in which the Group has
significant influence, but not control, over the financial
and operating policies. Significant influence is the
power to participate in the financial and operating
policy decisions of the investee but is not control or
joint control over those policies. When necessary,
adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies
in line with those of the group.
Joint ventures are joint arrangement whereby the
parties that have joint control of the arrangement have
rights to the net assets of the joint arrangement. Joint
control is the contractually agreed sharing of control
of an arrangement, which exists only when decisions
about the relevant activities require unanimous consent
of the parties sharing control.
Investments in associates and jointly controlled entities
are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised in the consolidated statement of financial
position at cost and adjusted thereafter to recognize the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income of the associate or joint venture. When the
Group’s share of losses exceeds its interest in an equity86

QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

accounted investee, the carrying amount of that interest,
including any long-term investments, is reduced to zero,
and the recognition of further losses is discontinued
except to the extent that the Group has an obligation or
has made payments on behalf of the investee.
The consolidated financial statements include the
Group’s share of profit or loss and other comprehensive
income, after adjustments to align the accounting
policies with those of the Group, from the date that
significant influence or joint control commences until
the date that significant influence or joint control
ceases. The financial yearend of the associate entities
and the Group are uniform.
Gains and losses resulting from downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate or joint venture are
recognised in the entity’s financial statements only to
the extent of unrelated investors interest in the associate
or joint venture.

Intangible assets
Intangible assets acquired in a business combination
and recognized separately from goodwill are initially
recognized at cost which is their fair value as at the date
of acquisition. Subsequent to initial recognition,
• Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over
the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible
asset may be impaired. The amortisation period and
the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a
finite useful life are reviewed at least at each financial
year end. Changes in the expected useful life or the
expected pattern of consumption of future economic
benefits embodied in the asset are accounted for
by changing the amortisation period or method, as
appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting
estimates. The amortisation expense on intangible
assets with finite lives is recognised in the consolidated
statement of income.
• Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are tested
for impairment annually either individually or at the
cash generating unit level. Such intangibles are not
amortised. The useful life of an intangible asset with
an indefinite life is reviewed annually to determine
whether indefinite life assessment continues to be
supportable. If not, the change in the useful life
assessment from indefinite to finite is made on
prospective basis.
Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an
intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount
of the asset and are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income when the asset is derecognised.

The current economic lives applied to the Group’s
intangible assets are as follows:
Intangible assets acquired

Economic Life

Syndicate Capacity

Indefinite

Runoff services – Württembergische
Versicherung AG

7 years

Framework agreement

10 years

Non life insurance license

Indefinite

a) Initial recognition
Financial assets and liabilities are initially recognised on
the trade date. The classification of financial instruments
at initial recognition depends on their contractual terms
and the business model for managing the instruments.
Financial instruments are initially measured at their fair
value, except in the case of financial assets and financial
liabilities recorded at FVTPL, transaction costs are added
to, or subtracted from the amount. Trade receivables are
measured at the transaction price. The Day 1 gain or loss
is recognised when the fair value of financial instruments
at initial recognition differs from the transaction price.

Foreign currency transactions

b) Day 1 profit or loss

Foreign currency transactions are recorded in the
respective functional currencies of Group entities at
the rates of exchange prevailing at the date of each
transaction. Monetary assets and liabilities denominated
in foreign currencies at the reporting date are translated
to the respective functional currencies at the rate of
exchange prevailing at the year end. The resultant
exchange differences are included in the consolidated
statement of income.

When the transaction price of the instrument differs
from the fair value at origination and the fair value
is based on a valuation technique using only inputs
observable in market transactions, the Group recognises
the difference between the transaction price and fair
value in net trading income. In those cases where fair
value is based on models for which some of the inputs are
not observable, the difference between the transaction
price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised
in profit or loss when the inputs become observable, or
when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial assets and financial
liabilities (applicable from 01 January 2018)
IFRS 9 contains three principal classification categories
for financial assets: measured at amortised cost (AC),
fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)
and fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL). IFRS 9
classification is generally based on the business model
in which a financial asset is managed and its contractual
cash flows. The standard eliminates the existing IAS 39
categories of held-to-maturity, loans and receivables
and available-for-sale.
IFRS 9 removes the requirement contained in IAS 39
relating to bifurcation of an embedded derivative
from an asset host contract. However, entities are still
required to separate derivatives embedded in financial
liabilities where they are not closely related to the host
contract.
IFRS 9 largely retains the existing requirements of IAS
39 for the classification of financial liabilities with the
exception of the treatment of the gains and losses from
the Group’s own credit, which arise where the Group
has chosen to measure a liability at fair value through
profit or loss, these gains and losses are recognised in
other comprehensive income. There continue to be two
measurement categories for financial liabilities: fair
value and amortised cost.

c)

Measurement categories of financial assets and
liabilities

From 1 January 2018, the Group classifies all of its financial
assets based on the business model for managing the
assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at
either:
• Amortised cost;
• Fair value through other comprehensive income
(FVOCI); or
• Fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
The Group classifies and measures its derivative and
trading portfolio at FVTPL. The Group may designate
financial instruments at FVTPL, if so doing eliminates
or significantly reduces measurement or recognition
inconsistencies.
Financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost.

Financial instruments – initial recognition
a) Financial investments at amortised cost
From 1 January 2018, the Group only measures financial
assets at amortised cost if both of the following
conditions are met:
• The financial asset is held within a business model with
the objective to hold financial assets in order to collect
contractual cash flows
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• The contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on
specified dates to cash flows that are solely payments
of principal and interest (SPPI) on the principal amount
outstanding.
The details of these conditions are outlined below.
(i) Business model assessment
The Group determines its business model at the level
that best reflects how it manages groups of financial
assets to achieve its business objective.
The Group’s business model is not assessed on an
instrument-by-instrument basis, but at a higher level
of aggregated portfolios and is based on observable
factors such as:
• How the performance of the business model and
the financial assets held within that business model
are evaluated and reported to the key management
personnel
• The risks that affect the performance of the business
model (and the financial assets held within that
business model) and, in particular, the way those risks
are managed
• How managers of the business are compensated (for
example, whether the compensation is based on the
fair value of the assets managed or on the contractual
cash flows collected)
• The expected frequency, value and timing of sales are
also important aspects of the Group’s assessment
The business model assessment is based on reasonably
expected scenarios without taking ‘worst case’ or ‘stress
case’ scenarios into account. If cash flows after initial
recognition are realised in a way that is different from
the original expectations, the Group does not change
the classification of the remaining financial assets
held in that business model, but incorporates such
information when assessing newly originated or newly
purchased financial assets going forward.
(ii) The SPPI test
As a second step of its classification process the Group
assesses the contractual terms of financial assets to
identify whether they meet the SPPI test. Principal’ for
the purpose of this test is defined as the fair value of
the financial asset at initial recognition and may change
over the life of the financial asset (for example, if there
are repayments of principal or amortisation of the
premium/discount).
The most significant elements of interest within a
lending arrangement are typically the consideration
for the time value of money and credit risk. To make
the SPPI assessment, the Group applies judgement and
considers relevant factors such as the currency in which
the financial asset is denominated, and the period for
which the interest rate is set.
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In contrast, contractual terms that introduce a more
than de-minimis exposure to risks or volatility in the
contractual cash flows that are unrelated to a basic
lending arrangement do not give rise to contractual cash
flows that are solely payments of principal and interest
on the amount outstanding. In such cases, the financial
asset is required to be measured at FVTPL.
b) Debt instruments at FVOCI
The Group applies the new category under IFRS 9 of
debt instruments measured at FVOCI when both of the
following conditions are met:
• The instrument is held within a business model, the
objective of which is achieved by both collecting
contractual cash flows and selling financial assets
• The contractual terms of the financial asset meet the
SPPI test
These instruments largely comprise assets that had
previously been classified as financial investments
available- for-sale under IAS 39.
FVOCI debt instruments are subsequently measured at
fair value with gains and losses arising due to changes in
fair value recognised in OCI. Interest income and foreign
exchange gains and losses are recognised in profit or
loss in the same manner as for financial assets measured
at amortised cost. On derecognition, cumulative gains
or losses previously recognised in OCI are reclassified
from OCI to profit or loss.
c) Equity instruments at FVOCI
Upon initial recognition, the Group occasionally elects
to classify irrevocably some of its equity investments
as equity instruments at FVOCI when they meet the
definition of definition of Equity under IAS 32 Financial
Instruments: Presentation and are not held for trading.
Such classification is determined on an instrument-byinstrument basis.
Gains and losses on these equity instruments are never
recycled to profit. Dividends are recognised in profit or
loss as investment income when the right of the payment
has been established, except when the Group benefits
from such proceeds as a recovery of part of the cost of
the instrument, in which case, such gains are recorded
in OCI. Equity instruments at FVOCI are not subject to an
impairment assessment.
d) Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value
through profit or loss
Financial assets and financial liabilities in this category
are those that are not held for trading and have
been either designated by management upon initial
recognition or are mandatorily required to be measured
at fair value under IFRS 9. Management only designates

an instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when
one of the following criteria are met. Such designation is
determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:
• The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces,
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on them on a different basis;
• The liabilities (and assets until 1 January 2018 under
IAS 39) are part of a group of financial liabilities (or
financial assets, or both under IAS 39), which are
managed and their performance evaluated on a fair
value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy; or
• The liabilities (and assets until 1 January 2018 under
IAS 39) containing one or more embedded derivatives,
unless they do not significantly modify the cash flows
that would otherwise be required by the contract,
or it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar
instrument is first considered that separation of the
embedded derivative(s) is prohibited
Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are
recorded in the statement of financial position at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in profit and
loss with the exception of movements in fair value of
liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the
Group’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are
recorded in the Own credit reserve through OCI and do
not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or
incurred on instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued
in interest income or interest expense, respectively,
using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium
and qualifying transaction costs being an integral part
of instrument. Interest earnt on assets mandatorily
required to be measured at FVTPL is recorded using
contractual interest rate. Dividend income from equity
instruments measured at FVTPL is recorded in profit or
loss as other operating income when the right to the
payment has been established.
e) Derivative financial instruments
A derivative is a financial instrument or other contract
with all three of the following characteristics:
• Its value changes in response to the change in a
specified interest rate, financial instrument price,
commodity price, foreign exchange rate, index of
prices or rates, credit rating or credit index, or other
variable, provided that, in the case of a non-financial
variable, it is not specific to a party to the contract (i.e.,
the ‘underlying’).
• It requires no initial net investment or an initial net
investment that is smaller than would be required for
other types of contracts expected to have a similar
response to changes in market factors.
• It is settled at a future date.

The Group enters into derivative transactions with various
counterparties. The Group uses derivative financial
instruments for economic hedging purposes such as
forward currency contracts and interest rate swaps to
hedge its foreign currency risks interest rate risks and
equity price risk, respectively. Derivatives are recorded
at fair value and carried as assets when their fair value is
positive and as liabilities when their fair value is negative.
The changes in the fair value of derivatives are included in
net trading income unless hedge accounting is applied.
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at FVTPL.
These embedded derivatives are measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change in
the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of FVTPL category.
However, as an exception to above, a policyholder’s
option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixed
amount (or for an amount based on a fixed amount and
an interest rate) is not separated and measured at fair
value even if the exercise price differs from the carrying
amount of the host insurance liability.
Embedded derivatives that meet the definition of
insurance contracts are treated and measured as
insurance contracts.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which are
recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from 1
January 2018)
The Group applies a three-stage approach to measuring
expected credit losses (ECL) on financial assets carried at
amortised cost and debt instruments classified as FVOCI.
Assets migrate through the three stages based on the
change in credit quality since initial recognition.
a)

Overview

The adoption of IFRS 9 has fundamentally changed
the Group’s impairment method by replacing IAS 39’s
incurred loss approach with a forward-looking ECL
approach. From 1 January 2018, the Group has been
recording the allowance for expected credit losses for
debt financial assets not held at FVTPL. Equity instruments
are not subject to impairment under IFRS 9.
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The ECL allowance is based on the credit losses expected
to arise over the life of the asset (the lifetime expected
credit loss or LTECL), unless there has been no significant
increase in credit risk since origination, in which case, the
allowance is based on the 12 months’ expected credit
loss (12mECL). The 12mECL is the portion of LTECLs that
represent the ECLs that result from default events on
a financial instrument that are possible within the 12
months after the reporting date.
The Group has established a policy to perform an
assessment, at the end of each reporting period, of
whether a financial instrument’s credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, by considering the
change in the risk of default occurring over the remaining
life of the financial instrument.
Based on the above process, the Group categorizes its
FVOCI assets into stages as described below:

b)

The calculation of ECLs

The Group calculates ECLs based on probability-weighted
scenarios to measure the expected cash shortfalls,
discounted at an approximation to the EIR. A cash
shortfall is the difference between the cash flows that are
due to an entity in accordance with the contract and the
cash flows that the entity expects to receive.
The mechanics of the ECL calculations are outlined below
and the key elements are, as follows:
• The Probability of Default (“PD”) is an estimate of the
likelihood of default over a given time horizon.
• The Exposure at Default (“EAD “) is an estimate of the
exposure at a future default date, taking into account
expected changes in the exposure after the reporting
date.

Stage 1: When financial instruments are first recognised,
the Group recognises an allowance based on
12 month ECLs. Stage 1 also include financial
instruments where the credit risk has improved
and the has been reclassified from Stage 2.

• The Loss Given Default (“LGD”) is an estimate of the
loss arising in the case where a default occurs at a
given time. It is based on the difference between
the contractual cash flows due and those that are
expected to receive, including from the realisation of
any collateral.

Stage 2: When a financial instrument has shown
a significant increase in credit risk since
origination, the Group records an allowance
for the life time ECLs. Stage 2 also include
instruments, where the credit risk has improved
and the loan has been reclassified from Stage 3.

Impairment losses and releases are accounted for and
disclosed separately from modification losses or gains
that are accounted for as an adjustment of the financial
asset’s gross carrying value

Stage 3: Includes financial assets that have objective
evidence of impairment at the reporting date.
For these assets, lifetime ECL are recognised
and treated, along with the interests calculated.
When transitioning financial assets from stage
2 to stage 3, the percentage of provision made
for such assets should not be less than the
percentage of provision made before transition.
Purchased or originated credit impaired assets
are financial assets that are credit impaired
on initial recognition and are recorded at
fair value at original recognition and interest
income is subsequently recognised based on a
credit-adjusted EIR. ECLs are only recognised or
released to the extent that there is a subsequent
change in the expected credit losses.
For financial assets for which the Group has no reasonable
expectations of recovering either the entire outstanding
amount, or a proportion thereof, the gross carrying
amount of the financial asset is reduced. This is considered
a (partial) derecognition of the financial asset.
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The mechanics of the ECL method are summarised below:
Stage 1: The 12 month ECL is calculated as the portion of
LTECLs that represent the ECLs that result from
default events on a financial instrument that are
possible within the 12 months after the reporting
date. The Group calculates the 12mECL allowance
based on the expectation of a default occurring
in the 12 months following the reporting date.
These expected 12-month default probabilities
are applied to a forecast EAD and multiplied
by the expected LGD and discounted by an
approximation to the original EIR.
Stage 2: When a financial asset has shown a significant
increase in credit risk since origination, the
Group records an allowance for the LTECLs.
The mechanics are similar to those explained
above, but PDs and LGDs are estimated over the
lifetime of the instrument. The expected cash
shortfalls are discounted by an approximation
to the original EIR.
Stage 3: For financial asset considered credit-impaired,
the Group recognises the lifetime expected
credit losses for these financial assets. The
method is similar to that for Stage 2 assets, with
the PD set at 100%.

Debt instruments measured at fair value through OCI
The ECLs for debt instruments measured at FVOCI do not
reduce the carrying amount of these financial assets in
the statement of financial position, which remains at fair
value. Instead, an amount equal to the allowance that
would arise if the assets were measured at amortised
cost is recognised in OCI as an accumulated impairment
amount, with a corresponding charge to profit or loss.
The accumulated loss recognised in OCI is recycled to the
profit and loss upon derecognition of the assets.
a) Forward looking information
The Group, for forward looking information, relies on a
broad range of forward looking information as economic
inputs, such as:
• GDP growth
• Unemployment rates
• Central Bank base rates
The inputs and models used for calculating ECLs may
not always capture all characteristics of the market
at the date of the financial statements. To reflect this,
qualitative adjustments or overlays are occasionally
made as temporary adjustments when such differences
are significantly material.

Initial recognition and measurement within the
scope of IAS 39 (applicable up to 31 December
2017)
Financial assets within the scope of IAS 39 are classified,
at initial recognition, as financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL”), loans and receivables,
held to maturity investments (“HTM”), available-for-sale
(“AFS”) financial assets. Financial assets are recognised
initially at fair value plus, in the case of investments not
at fair value through profit and loss, directly attributable
transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset.
The classification depends on the purpose for which
the investments were acquired or originated. Financial
assets are classified as at fair value through profit and
loss where the Group’s documented investment strategy
is to manage financial investments on a fair value basis.
Purchases or sales of financial assets that require delivery
of assets within a time frame established by regulation
or convention in the marketplace (regular way trades)
are recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the
Group commits to purchase or sell the asset.
The Group’s financial assets include cash and short-term
deposits, trade and other receivables, loan and other
receivables, quoted and unquoted financial instruments,
and derivative financial instruments.

Subsequent measurement within the scope of IAS 39
(applicable up to 31 December 2017)
For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial
assets are classified in three categories:
• Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
• available-for-sale financial assets
• Loans and receivables
Financial assets at fair value through profit or loss
Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss
include financial assets held for trading and those
designated upon initial recognition as at fair value
through profit and loss. Investments typically bought
with the intention to sell in the near future are classified
as held for trading. For investments to be designated
as at fair value through profit and loss, the following
criteria must be met:
• The designation eliminates or significantly reduces
the inconsistent treatment that would otherwise arise
from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising
gains or losses on a different basis or
• The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial
assets, financial liabilities, or both, which are managed
and their performance is evaluated on a fair value basis,
in accordance with a documented risk management or
investment strategy
Subsequent to initial recognition, they are remeasured
at fair value. Changes in fair value are recorded in ‘Fair
value gains and losses’. Interest is accrued and presented
in ‘Investment income’, using the effective interest rate.
Dividend income is recorded in ‘Investment income’
when the right to the payment has been established.
Available-for-sale financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets include equity
and debt securities. Equity investments classified as
available-for-sale are those that are neither classified
as held for trading nor designated at fair value through
profit and loss. Debt securities in this category are those
that are intended to be held for an indefinite period of
time and which may be sold in response to needs for
liquidity or in response to changes in market conditions.
After initial measurement, available-for-sale financial
assets are subsequently measured at fair value,
with unrealised gains or losses recognised in other
comprehensive income in the fair value reserve
under equity. Where the insurer holds more than one
investment in the same security, they are deemed
to be disposed of on a first-in first-out basis. Interest
earned whilst holding available-for-sale investments is
reported as interest income using the effective interest
rate. Dividends earned whilst holding available-for-sale
investments are recognised in the statement of
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profit or loss as ‘Investment income’ when the right
of the payment has been established. When the asset
is derecognised or determined to be impaired, the
cumulative gain or loss is reclassified from available-forsale reserve to the statement of profit or loss.

is included in ‘Investment income’ in the consolidated
statement of income. Gains and losses are recognised
in the statement of profit or loss when the investments
are derecognised or impaired, as well as through the
amortisation process.

The Group evaluates whether the ability and intention
to sell its available-for-sale financial assets in the near
term is still appropriate. When, in rare circumstances,
the Group is unable to trade these financial assets due
to inactive markets, the Group may elect to reclassify
these financial assets if management has the ability
and intention to hold the assets for the foreseeable
future or until maturity. Reclassification to loans and
receivables is permitted when the financial asset meets
the definition of loans and receivables and management
has the intention and ability to hold these assets for the
foreseeable future or until maturity. The reclassification
to held to maturity is permitted only when the entity
has the ability and intention to hold the financial asset
until maturity.

Derecognition of financial assets
A financial asset (or, when applicable, a part of a
financial asset or part of a group of similar financial
assets) is derecognised when:

For a financial asset reclassified out of the available-forsale category, the fair value at the date of reclassification
becomes its new amortised cost and any previous gain
or loss on that asset that has been recognised in equity
is amortised to profit or loss over the remaining life of
the investment using the effective interest rate. Any
difference between the new amortised cost and the
maturity amount is also amortised over the remaining
life of the asset using the effective interest rate. If the
asset is subsequently determined to be impaired, then
the amount recorded in equity is reclassified to the
consolidated statement of income.
Loans and receivables
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial
assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement,
loans and receivables are measured at amortised cost,
using the effective interest rate method, less allowance
for impairment. Amortised cost is calculated by taking
into account any discount or premium on acquisition
and fee or costs that are an integral part of the effective
interest rate. The effective interest rate amortisation
is included in ‘Investment income’ in the consolidated
statement of income. Gains and losses are recognised
in the consolidated statement of income when the
investments are derecognised or impaired, as well as
through the amortisation process.
Non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable
payments and fixed maturities are classified as held to
maturity when the Group has the positive intention and
ability to hold until maturity. After initial measurement,
held to maturity financial assets are measured at
amortised cost, using the effective interest rate, less
impairment. The effective interest rate amortisation
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• The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have
expire or
• The Group has transferred its right to receive cash flows
from the asset or has assumed an obligation to pay
the received cash flows in full without material delay
to a third party under a ‘pass-through’ arrangement;
and either: (a) the Group has transferred substantially
all the risks and rewards of the asset or (b) the Group
has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred
control of the asset.
When the Group has transferred its right to receive cash
flows from an asset or has entered into a pass-through
arrangement, and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor
transferred control of the asset, the asset is recognised
to the extent of the Group’s continuing involvement
in the asset. In that case, the Group also recognises
an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects
the rights and obligations that the Group has retained.
Continuing involvement that takes the form of a
guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the
lower of the original carrying amount of the asset and
the maximum amount of consideration that the Group
could be required to repay.
Impairment of financial assets (Policy applicable from
1 January 2018)
The Group assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that a financial asset or
group of financial assets is impaired. A financial asset
or a group of financial assets is deemed to be impaired
if, there is objective evidence of impairment as a result
of one or more events that has occurred since the
initial recognition of the asset (an incurred ‘loss event’)
and that loss event has an impact on the estimated
future cash flows of the financial asset or the group of
financial assets that can be reliably estimated. Evidence
of impairment may include indications that a debtor or
a group of debtors is experiencing significant financial
difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal
payments, the probability that they will enter bankruptcy
or other financial reorganisation and observable data
indicating that there is a measurable decrease in the

estimated future cash flows, such as changes in arrears
or economic conditions that correlate with defaults.
Available-for-sale financial investments
For available-for-sale financial investments, the Group
assesses at each reporting date whether there is
objective evidence that an investment or a group of
investments is impaired.
In the case of equity investments classified as availablefor-sale, objective evidence would include a ‘significant
or prolonged’ decline in the fair value of the investment
below its cost. ‘Significant’ is evaluated against the
original cost of the investment and ‘prolonged’ against
the period in which the fair value has been below its
original cost. Where there is evidence of impairment,
the cumulative loss – measured as the difference
between the acquisition cost and the current fair value,
less any impairment loss on that investment previously
recognised in the statement of profit or loss – is removed
from other comprehensive income and recognised in
the statement of profit or loss. Impairment losses on
equity investments are not reversed through profit or
loss; increases in their fair value after impairment are
recognised directly in other comprehensive income.
The determination of what is ‘significant’ or ‘prolonged’
requires judgement. In making this judgement, the
Group evaluates, among other factors, the duration or
extent to which the fair value of an investment is less
than its cost.
In the case of debt instruments classified as available-forsale, impairment is assessed based on the same criteria
as financial assets carried at amortised cost. However,
the amount recorded for impairment is the cumulative
loss measured as the difference between the amortised
cost and the current fair value, less any impairment
loss on that investment previously recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
Future interest income continues to be accrued based
on the reduced carrying amount of the asset and is
accrued using the rate of interest used to discount the
future cash flows for the purpose of measuring the
impairment loss. The interest income is recorded as part
of investment income. If, in a subsequent year, the fair
value of a debt instrument increases and the increase
can be objectively related to an event occurring after
the impairment loss was recognised in the statement of
profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
the statement of profit or loss.

Financial liabilities
Initial recognition and measurement within the scope
of IAS 39 (applicable up to 31 December 2017)
Financial liabilities within the scope of IAS 39 are
classified at initial recognition, as financial liabilities
at fair value through profit and loss, borrowings, or
payables. All financial liabilities are recognised initially
at fair value and, in the case of borrowings, net of
directly attributable transaction costs. The Group’s
financial liabilities include trade and other payables,
and borrowings.
Subsequent measurement within the scope of IAS 39
(applicable up to 31 December 2017)
Subsequent measurement of financial
depends on their classification, as follows:

liabilities

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
The group does not have any financial liabilities
designated as fair value through profit and loss.
Borrowings
After initial recognition, interest bearing loans and
borrowings, and issued notes are subsequently
measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
rate method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit
or loss when the liabilities are derecognised as well as
through the effective interest rate amortisation process.
Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisition and fee or costs
that are an integral part of the effective interest rate.
The effective interest rate amortisation is included in
finance cost in the statement of profit or loss.
Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation
under the liability is discharged or cancelled or expires.
When an existing financial liability is replaced by another
from the same lender on substantially different terms,
or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified, such an exchange or modification is treated
as a derecognition of the original liability and the
recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in the
statement of profit or loss.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the
net amount is reported in the consolidated statement of
financial position if there is a currently enforceable legal
right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets
and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
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Derivative financial instruments
Initial recognition and subsequent measurement
Derivative financial instruments are classified as held for
trading unless they are designated as effective hedging
instruments.
Derivative financial instruments held for trading are
typically entered into with the intention to settle in the
near future.
The Group uses derivative financial instruments for
economic hedging purposes such as forward currency
contracts and interest rate swaps to hedge its foreign
currency risks interest rate risks and equity price risk,
respectively.
Derivative financial instruments are initially recognised
at fair value on the date on which a derivative contract
is entered into and are subsequently remeasured at fair
value. All derivatives are carried as financial assets when
the fair value is positive and as financial liabilities when
the fair value is negative.
Derivatives embedded in host contracts are accounted
for as separate derivatives and recorded at fair value if
their economic characteristics and risks are not closely
related to those of the host contracts and the host
contracts are not held for trading or designated at
FVTPL. These embedded derivatives are measured at fair
value with changes in fair value recognised in profit or
loss. Reassessment only occurs if there is either a change
in the terms of the contract that significantly modifies
the cash flows that would otherwise be required or a
reclassification of a financial asset out of FVTPL category.
However, as an exception to above, a policyholder’s
option to surrender an insurance contract for a fixed
amount (or for an amount based on a fixed amount and
an interest rate) is not separated and measured at fair
value even if the exercise price differs from the carrying
amount of the host insurance liability.
Embedded derivatives that meet the definition of
insurance contracts are treated and measured as
insurance contracts.
Any gains or losses arising from changes in fair value
on derivatives are taken directly to profit or loss, except
for the effective portion of cash flow hedges, which are
recognised in OCI and later reclassified to profit or loss
when the hedged item affects profit or loss.

General
Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and in
hand and short-term deposits with an original maturity
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of three months or less in the consolidated statement
of financial position. The cash equivalents are readily
convertible to cash.
Short term borrowings
Short term borrowings are recognised initially at
fair value, net of transaction costs incurred and it is
subsequently stated at amortised cost; any difference
between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and
the redemption value is recognized in the consolidated
statement of income over the period of the borrowings
using the effective interest method.
Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn rentals
and/or for capital appreciation. Investment properties
are measured initially at cost, including transaction
costs. Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Investment properties are derecognised when either
they have been disposed-off or when the investment
property is permanently withdrawn from use and no
future economic benefit is expected from its disposal.
Any gains or losses on the retirement or disposal of an
investment property are recognised in the consolidated
statement of income in the year of retirement or
disposal.
Property and equipment
Property and equipment, including owner-occupied
properties, are carried at historical cost less accumulated
depreciation and accumulated impairment losses.
Subsequent expenditure is capitalised only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with
the expenditure will flow to the Group.
Ongoing repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of income during the financial
period they are incurred.
The assets’ residual values, useful lives and method
of depreciation applied are reviewed and adjusted, if
appropriate, at each financial year end and adjusted
prospectively, if appropriate. Impairment reviews are
performed when there are indicators that the carrying
value may not be recoverable. Impairment losses are
recognised in the consolidated statement of income as
an expense.
An item of property and equipment is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss
arising on de-recognition of the asset (calculated as
the difference between the net disposal proceeds and
the carrying amount of the asset) is recognised in the
consolidated statement of income in the year the asset
is derecognised.

Depreciation
Depreciation is provided on a straight-line basis on all
property and equipment and investment properties,
other than freehold land which is determined to have an
indefinite life. The rates of depreciation are based upon
the following estimated useful lives:
Buildings		
Furniture & fixtures
Motor vehicles		

-

15 to 30 years
2 to 5 years
3 years

Depreciation methods, useful lives and residual values
are reviewed and adjusted if appropriate at each
financial year end.
Impairment of non-financial assets
An assessment is made at each reporting date to
determine whether there is objective evidence that an
asset or group of assets is impaired. If such evidence
exists, the estimated recoverable amount of that asset
is determined and an impairment loss is recognized for
the difference between the recoverable amount and the
carrying amount. Impairment losses are recognized in
the consolidated statement of income.

entities, whichever is higher, and is calculated using the
employee’s salary and period of service at the reporting
date.
Contribution to social and sports fund
Pursuant to the Qatar Law No. 13 of 2008 and the
related clarifications issued in 2012, which is applicable
to all Qatari listed shareholding companies with publicly
traded shares, the Group has made an appropriation of
2.5% of its adjusted net profit to a state social fund.
Share capital
The Group has issued ordinary shares that are classified
as equity instruments. Incremental external costs that
are directly attributable to the issue of these shares are
recognised in equity.
Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Parent Company’s
shareholders is recognised as a liability in the Parent
Company’s consolidated financial statements in the
period in which the dividends are approved by the
Parent Company’s shareholders.

Provisions

Earnings per share

The Group recognizes provisions in the consolidated
financial statements when the Group has a legal or
constructive obligation (as a result of a past event) that
can be estimated reliably, and it is probable that an
outflow of economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation. The provision is created by charging the
consolidated statement of income for any obligations
as per the calculated value of these obligations and the
expectation of their realisation at the reporting date.

The Group presents basic and diluted earnings per share
(EPS) data for its ordinary shares. Basic EPS is calculated
by dividing the profit or loss attributable to ordinary
shareholders of the Parent Company by the weighted
number of ordinary shares outstanding during the year.
Diluted EPS is calculated by adjusting the earnings and
number of shares for the effects of all dilutive potential
shares.

Employees’ end of service benefits
National employees
With respect to national employees, the Group makes
contributions to the government pension fund to the
respective local regulatory authorities as a percentage
of the employees’ salaries in accordance with the
requirements of respective local laws pertaining to
retirement and pensions, wherever required. The
Group’s share of contributions to these schemes, which
are defined contribution schemes under International
Accounting Standard 19 Employee Benefits are charged
to the consolidated statement of profit or loss in the
year to which they relate.
Other employees
Provision is made for amounts payable in respect of
employees’ end of service benefits based on contractual
obligations or respective local labour laws of the group

Income tax
Taxation on the results for the year comprises of current
tax calculated as per the fiscal regulations of the
respective country in which the Group operates.
Current tax is recognised in the profit or loss as the tax
payable on the taxable income for the year, using tax
rates enacted or substantially enacted at the reporting
date, and any adjustment to tax payable in respect of
previous years.
Deferred income tax is provided, using the liability
method, for all temporary differences arising between
the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
values for financial reporting purposes. Currently
enacted tax rates are used to determine deferred tax.
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset as
there is a legally enforceable right to offset these in
Oman. The tax effects on the temporary differences are
disclosed under non-current liabilities as deferred tax.
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A deferred tax asset is recognised only to the extent that
it is probable that future taxable profits will be available
against which the unused tax losses and credits can be
utilised. Deferred tax assets are reduced to the extent
that it is no longer probable that the related tax benefit
will be realised.

other receivables are measured at amortised cost as
deemed appropriate.

Income tax on the profit or loss for the year comprises
current and deferred tax. Income tax is recognised
in the profit or loss for the year except to the extent
that it relates to items recognised directly to other
comprehensive income, in which case it is recognised
in equity.

Reinsurance contract assets

Leases
The determination of whether an arrangement is a
lease, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of
the arrangement at the inception date and requires an
assessment of whether the fulfilment of the arrangement
is dependent on the use of a specific asset or assets and
the arrangement conveys a right to use the asset, even if
that asset is not explicitly specified in an arrangement.
Group as a lessee
A lease is classified as the inception date as a finance
lease or an operating lease. Leases that do not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership of
an asset to the Group are classified as operating leases.
Operating lease payments are recognised as an expense
in the statement of income on a straight line basis over
the lease term.
Group as a lessor
Leases in which the Group does not transfer
substantially all of the risks and rewards of ownership
of an asset are classified as operating leases.
Rental income is recognised as revenue in the statement
of profit or loss on a straight line basis over the lease
term. Initial direct costs incurred in negotiating and
arranging an operating lease are added to the carrying
amount of the leased asset and recognised over the lease
term on the same bases as rental income. Contingent
rents are recognised as revenue in the period in which
they are earned.

Insurance operations
Insurance and other receivables
Insurance and other receivables are recognised when
due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received or receivable. The carrying
value of the receivables is reviewed for impairment
whenever events or circumstances indicate that the
carrying amount may not be recoverable, with the
impairment loss recorded in the consolidated statement
of income. After initial measurement, insurance and
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Insurance receivables are derecognised when the
derecognition criteria for financial assets have been
met.

The Group cedes insurance risk in the normal course of
business as part of its businesses model. Reinsurance
assets represent balances recoverable from reinsurance
companies. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding
claims provision or settled claims associated with the
reinsurers’ policies and are in accordance with the
related reinsurance contract.
Reinsurance assets are reviewed for impairment at each
reporting date, or more frequently, when an indication
of impairment arises during the reporting year.
Impairment occurs when there is objective evidence as a
result of an event that occurred after initial recognition
of the reinsurance asset that the Group may not receive
all outstanding amounts due under the terms of the
contract and the event has a reliably measurable impact
on the amounts that the Group will receive from the
reinsurer. The impairment loss is recorded in the income
statement. Ceeded reinsurance arrangements do not
relieve the Group from its obligations to policyholders.
Reinsurance and other payables
Reinsurance and other payables are recognized when
due and measured on initial recognition at the fair value
of the consideration received less directly attributable
transaction costs. Subsequently, reinsurance and other
payables are measured at amortised cost, as deemed
appropriate.
Gross premiums
Gross premiums are recognized when written and
include an estimate for written premiums receivable at
period end. Gross premiums comprise the total premiums
receivable for the whole period of cover provided by
contracts entered into during the accounting period.
Gross premiums also include any adjustments arising
in the accounting period for premiums receivable in
respect of business written in prior accounting periods.
Premium on insurance contracts are recognized as
revenue (earned premiums) proportionally over the
period of coverage or using actuarial assumptions, as
appropriate.
Unearned premiums are those proportions of premiums
written in a year that relate to periods of risk after
the reporting date. The proportion attributable to
subsequent periods is deferred as a provision for
unearned premiums.

Premiums ceded to reinsurers
Reinsurance premiums comprise the total premiums
payable for the reinsurance cover provided by treaty or
facultative contracts, or retrocession contracts entered
into during the period and are recognized on the date
on which the policy incepts. Reinsurance premiums
also include any adjustments arising in the accounting
period in respect of reinsurance contracts incepting
in prior accounting periods. Unearned reinsurance
premiums are those proportions of premiums written in
a year that relate to periods of risk after the reporting
date.
Insurance contract liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities include the outstanding
claims provision, incurred but not reported reserves and
the provision for unearned premium. Insurance contract
liabilities are recognised when contracts are entered
into and premiums are charged.

cash flows after taking account of the investment return
expected to arise on assets relating to the relevant nonlife insurance technical provisions.
If these estimates show that the carrying amount of the
unearned premiums (less related deferred acquisition
costs) is inadequate, the deficiency is recognised in the
income statement by setting up a provision for premium
deficiency.
Gross claims paid
Gross claims paid include all claims paid during the year
and the related external claims handling costs that are
directly related to the processing and settlement of
claims.
Reinsurance recoveries
Reinsurance recoveries are recognised when the related
gross insurance claim is recognised according to the
terms of the relevant contract.

Provision for outstanding claims
Provision for outstanding claims is recognized at the date
the claims are known and covers the liability for losses
and loss adjustment expenses based on loss reports
from independent loss adjusters and management’s
best estimate.
Claims provision also includes liability for claims
incurred but not reported as at the reporting date. The
liability is calculated at the reporting date using a range
of historic trends, empirical data and standard actuarial
claim projection techniques. The current assumptions
may include a margin for adverse deviations.
Unexpired risks reserve
The provision for unearned premiums represents that
portion of premiums received or receivable, after
deduction of the reinsurance share, which relates to
risks that have not yet expired at the reporting date.
The provision is recognised when contracts are entered
into and premiums are charged, and is brought to
account as premium income over the term of the
contract in accordance with the pattern of insurance
service provided under the contract. Insurance contract
liabilities are derecognised when the contract expires,
discharged or cancelled by any party to the insurance
contract.
At each reporting date, the Group reviews its unexpired
risk and a liability adequacy test is performed in
accordance with IFRS 4 to determine whether there
is any overall excess of expected claims and deferred
acquisition costs over unearned premiums. This
calculation uses current estimates of future contractual

Commission earned and paid
Commissions earned and paid are recognized at the time
the policies are underwritten or deferred and amortised
over the same period over which the corresponding
premiums are recognised in accordance with the pattern
of insurance service provided under the contract.

Investment activities
Investment income
Interest income
Interest income is recognised in the consolidated
income statement as it accrues and is calculated by
using the effective interest rate method, except for
short-term receivables when the effect of discounting
is immaterial.
Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive
the dividends is established or when received.
Advisory fee income
Initial and other front-end fees received for rendering
financial and other advisory services are deferred and
recognised as revenue when the related services are
rendered.
Rental income
Rental income from investment properties is recognised
in the consolidated statement of income on a straight
line basis over the term of operating lease and the
advances and unearned portion of the rental income is
recognised as a liability.
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7

Segment reporting
An operating segment is a component of the Group
that engages in business activities from which it may
earn revenues and incur expenses, including revenues
and expenses that relate to transactions with any of
the Group’s other components. All operating segments’

5

operating results are reviewed regularly by the
management to make decisions about resources to be
allocated to the segment and assess its performance,
and for which discrete financial information is available.

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS
2018
(QR ‘000)

Gross insurance contract liabilities
Claims reported and unsettled

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

10,604,882

7,272,647

Claims incurred but not reported

4,092,904

4,736,197

Unearned premiums

5,723,211

5,709,143

20,420,997

17,717,987

Claims reported and unsettled

3,362,156

2,031,874

Reinsurers’ share of insurance contract liabilities

Cash at banks

1,395,905

1,187,100

Short-term deposits

6,615,258

6,726,954

Claims incurred but not reported

1,039,438

1,021,096

7,914,054

Unearned premiums

1,065,591

721,898

5,467,185

3,774,868

Claims reported and unsettled

7,242,726

5,240,773

Claims incurred but not reported

3,053,466

3,715,101

Unearned premiums

4,657,620

4,987,245

14,953,812

13,943,119

Total cash and short-term deposits, net of ECL (Note 3.1 (c))

8,011,163

All deposits are subject to an average variable interest rate of 4.072 % (2017: 3.104%).

6

Net insurance contract liabilities

INSURANCE AND OTHER RECEIVABLES
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

Receivables from policyholders
Due from policyholders
Impairment losses on doubtful receivables

5,099,364

2,429,322

(39,783)

(35,379)

5,059,581

2,393,943

2,406,433

2,888,608

(35,405)

(23,409)

2,371,028

2,865,199

54,655

42,939

1,205,787

901,272

Receivables from reinsurers
Due from insurance companies
Impairment losses on doubtful receivables

Other receivables
Staff advances against indemnity
Deferred acquisition cost
Premium funds withheld
Prepayments and others

1,526,106
654,900

464,885

1,915,342

2,935,202

9,345,951

8,194,344

The movement of impairment for receivables from policyholders and reinsurers is disclosed in Note 32.
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7

INSURANCE CONTRACT LIABILITIES AND REINSURANCE CONTRACT ASSETS 		
(CONTINUED)

Details of the equity accounted investments held during the years ended 31 December 2018 and 31 December 2017
were as follows.

Movements in insurance contract liabilities and reinsurance contract assets are as follows:
2018
Insurance contract liabilities
(QR ‘000)
At 1 January
Claims incurred
Claims paid during the year
Acquisition of subsidiaries
Effect of portfolio transfer and
other movements
At 31 December

2017

Reinsurers’
share
(QR ‘000)

Net
(QR ‘000)

Insurance contract liabilities
(QR ‘000)

Reinsurers’
share
(QR ‘000)

Net
(QR ‘000)

12,008,844

3,052,970

8,955,874

8,704,629

1,853,488

6,851,141

8,866,852

1,198,323

7,668,529

9,627,225

2,345,196

7,282,029

(8,201,224)

(1,217,899)

(6,983,325)

(6,555,609)

(1,200,935)

(5,354,674)

2,870,806

1,819,156

1,051,650

-

-

-

(847,492)

(450,956)

(396,536)

232,599

55,221

177,378

14,697,786

4,401,594

10,296,192

12,008,844

3,052,970

8,955,874

Movements in provision for unearned premiums during the year are as follows:

At January 1,
Premiums written during the
year
Premiums earned during the year

Reinsurers’
share
(QR ‘000)

State of Qatar

25% directly

Al Liwan Real Estate W.L.L.

State of Qatar

38.46% directly

Massoun Insurance Services L.L.C.

State of Qatar

50% directly

(i)

Principal activities
Insurance and reinsurance
Real estate investment, brokerage
and management
Insurance marketing and
distribution

These investments have no contingent liabilities or capital commitments as at 31 December 2018 or 2017.

(ii) As a part of Group restructuring, investments in Damaan Islamic Insurance Company owned by QIC International
has been transferred to the Parent company due to de-authorization of QIC International by the Qatar Financial Centre
Regulatory Authority (the “QFCRA”) in 2017. The transaction was considered as transaction under common control and
hence, there was no gain or loss recognised in the profit or loss of the Group.

2018
(QR ‘000)

Net
(QR ‘000)

5,709,143

721,898

4,987,245

4,878,654

639,951

4,238,703

12,605,835

1,796,793

10,809,042

11,658,698

2,108,769

9,549,929

(11,233,252)

(10,788,432)

(2,045,248)

(8,743,184)

1,106,279

928,699

177,580

-

-

-

(83,496)

(501)

(82,995)

(39,777)

18,426

(58,203)

5,723,211

1,065,591

4,657,620

5,709,143

721,898

4,987,245

At December 31,

8

Net
(QR ‘000)

Insurance contract liabilities
(QR ‘000)

(2,381,298)

Effect of portfolio transfer and
other movements

Damaan Islamic Insurance
Company Q.S.C.C

2017

Reinsurers’
share
(QR ‘000)

(13,614,550)

Acquisition of subsidiaries

Proportion of ownership and
voting power held

Summarised financial information of the equity accounted investments are as follows:

2018
Insurance contract liabilities
(QR ‘000)

Place of incorporation
and operation

Name of investment

EQUITY ACCOUNTED INVESTMENTS

Current assets

488,248

155,239

Non-current assets

441,997

726,882

Current liabilities

187,178

167,105

Non-current liability

241,319

242,457

54,513

53,438

Profit for the year

The movements in equity accounted investments in associates are as follows:
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

142,520

138,841

Dividends received

(13,125)

(11,952)

15,872

15,631

145,267

142,520

Balance at December 31

Damaan Islamic Insurance Company Q.S.C.C

93,854

88,400

Al Liwan Real Estate W.L.L.

46,571

47,095

4,842

7,025

145,267

142,520

Massoun Insurance Services L.L.C.
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2017
(QR ‘000)

Balance at January 1

Share of profit for the year
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

9

INVESTMENTS
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

4,236,465

-

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

10,639,699

-

Held-for-trading (“HFT”) investments

-

3,165,562

Available for sale (“AFS”) investments

-

10,488,941

14,876,164

13,654,503
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9

INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

The rental income arising during the year amounted to QR 48,904 thousand (2017: QR 51,472 thousand) and the
direct operating expenses (included within general and administrative expenses) arising in respect of such properties
during the year was QR 12,604 thousand (2017: QR 1,993 thousand).

2018
FVTPL
(QR ‘000)
Managed funds

Property owned by the Group in United Kingdom with a carrying value of QR 213 million as at 31 December 2018 is
pledged as a security for the long term borrowings (see Note 15).

FVOCI
(QR ‘000)

1,688,146

-

10,456

-

540,900

10,639,699

1,188,382

-

International quoted shares

92,390

-

Unquoted shares and private equity

716,191

-

4,236,465

10,639,699

Derivative financial investments (Note 33)
Bonds
Qatar public shareholding companies

Total

The Group has no restrictions on the realisability of its investment properties, other than the property in United
Kingdom, and no contractual obligations to purchase, construct or develop investment properties or for repairs,
maintenance and enhancements.

11 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT
Freehold land
(QR ’000)

Furniture and
fixtures
(QR ’000)

Building
(QR ’000)

Motor
vehicles
(QR ’000)

Total
(QR ’000)

Cost:
2017
HFT
(QR ‘000)
Managed funds

AFS
(QR ‘000)

1,123,177

-

17,101

-

-

1,038,564

2,025,284

8,710,627

International quoted shares

-

82,660

Unquoted shares and private equity

-

657,090

3,165,562

10,488,941

Derivative financial investments (Note 33)
Qatari public shareholding companies
Bonds

Total

9,709

40,352

115,986

12,569

178,616

Additions

-

-

28,105

599

28,704

Disposals

-

-

(3,979)

(805)

(4,784)

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

-

-

1,208

-

1,208

9,709

40,352

141,320

12,363

203,744

Additions

-

-

16,258

1,158

17,416

Disposals

-

-

(1,567)

(824)

(2,391)

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

-

-

(951)

-

(951)

9,709

40,352

155,060

12,697

217,818

At January 1, 2017

-

40,352

87,298

10,666

138,316

Charge during the year

-

-

15,043

1,033

16,076

Disposals

-

-

(2,833)

(816)

(3,649)

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

-

-

463

-

463

At 31 December 2017

-

40,352

99,971

10,883

151,206

Charge during the year

-

-

15,014

665

15,679

Disposals

-

-

(165)

(735)

(900)

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

-

-

(200)

-

(200)

At 31 December 2018

-

40,352

114,620

10,813

165,785

At 31 December 2018

9,709

-

40,440

1,884

52,033

At 31 December 2017

9,709

-

41,349

1,480

52,538

At January 1, 2017

At 31 December 2017

At 31 December 2018
Accumulated Depreciation:

During the year, the Group has not recorded impairment loss (2017: QR 67 million) on certain available for sale
investments.

10 INVESTMENT PROPERTIES
2018
QR’000
Net carrying value as at January 1

2017
QR’000
585,789

575,818

Additions during the year

77,809

9,059

Effect of acquisition of subsidiaries (Note 38)

21,449

-

Effect of foreign currency exchange difference

(9,876)

18,724

Disposal during the year

(53,191)

-

Depreciation for the year

(15,608)

(17,812)

Net carrying value as at December 31

606,372

585,789

Net book values:

The fair values of investment properties were estimated by the Management’s external valuer, by reference to market
evidence of recent transactions for similar properties. The estimated fair value of the above investment properties as
at 31 December 2018 was QR 1,343.62 million (2017: QR 1,355.15 million).
The fair value measurement of all investment properties has been categorised as a level 3 fair value based on the
inputs to the valuation technique used.
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(b)

12 GOODWILL AND INTANGIBLE ASSETS
Movements in goodwill and intangible assets were as follows:
Lloyd’s syndicate capacity
QR ’000
(ii) (a)

Goodwill
QR ’000
(i)
At 1 January 2017

Non-life insurance License
QR ’000
(ii) (d)

Total
QR ’000

266,222

5,781

-

-

417,114

-

-

(1,446)

-

-

(1,446)

145,111

266,222

4,335

-

-

415,668

218,726

27,540

246,266

Acquisition (Note 38)
Amortization expenses
At 31 December 2018

Framework
agreement
QR ’000
(ii) (c)

145,111

Amortization expenses
At 31 December 2017

Runoff services
(WV)
QR ’000
(ii) (b)

-

-

(1,446)

-

-

(1,446)

145,111

266,222

2,889

218,726

27,540

660,488

Effective January 1, 2014, the Group acquired 100% of the share capital of Antares Holdings Limited and its subsidiary
companies. The regulatory close of the transaction was completed on June 25, 2014.
Effective July 25, 2018, the Group, through its subsidiary Qatar Reinsurance Company Limited (“Qatar Re”) acquired
100% of the share capital of Markerstudy’s Gibraltar-based insurance companies, namely Markerstudy Insurance
Company Limited, Zenith Insurance PLC, St. Julians Insurance Company Limited and Ultimate Insurance Company
Limited.
(i)

Goodwill

Goodwill, amounting to QR 145.11 million that arose on acquisition of Antares Holding Limited has been allocated
to Antares Holding Limited UK cash generating unit (Antares CGU). The recoverable amount of this cash generating
unit is determined on the basis of market value based approach. The method assumes that Antares CGU to follow the
pattern on market capitalization of similar Lloyd’s Syndicates listed entities and their relevant book value.

Runoff services - Württembergische Versicherung AG (WV)

The fair value of Württembergische Versicherung AG (WV) management agreement represents the estimated
amount of the run-off administration services in respect of the former UK Branch of WV which is provided by Antares
Underwriting Services Limited (“AUSL”). The fair value of the agreement has been capitalized and amortized on a
straight-line basis, over the estimated useful life of 7 years. The recoverable amount of WV was determined on the
basis value in use calculation which uses the financial budgets covering the residual period of the management
agreement and a discount rate of 10.60 % (2017: 9.70%).

(c)

Framework agreement

As part of the transaction related to the sale and purchase of the Carriers, Qatar Re and Markerstudy Group have signed
a framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”), which will govern their relationship for the coming 10-year period.
Under this agreement, the Carriers will have the right to first refusal for all the non-life insurance business generated
by Markerstudy Group (MSG). The Framework Agreement has been valued by applying the dividend discount model
(“DDM”) under the Income Approach. The fair value of the agreement is provisional pending receipt of the final
valuations and expected to have an estimated useful life of 10 years.

(d)

Non-life insurance License

Markerstudy Group insurance companies have regulatory licenses from the Gibraltar Financial Services Commission
(GFSC) to underwrite non-life insurance business in the United Kingdom and the rest of the European Union. The cost
of establishing a licensed insurance company in Gibraltar has been estimated to be approximately QR 9.2 million (GBP
2 million). Accordingly, under the Cost Approach, the value of the licenses of the Carriers were estimated to be QR 27.5
million (GBP 6 million). The non-life insurance licenses of the Carriers have an indefinite useful life.
Management believes that any reasonable possible changes in the key assumptions on which recoverable amount is
based would not cause the aggregate carrying amount of goodwill to exceed the aggregate recoverable amount of
the Antares CGU and intangible assets carrying value at year end.

13 SHORT TERM BORROWINGS

(ii) Intangible assets

2018
(QR ‘000)

The following table summarizes the intangible assets recorded in connection with the business acquisitions:
Amount
(QR ‘000)
Lloyd’s syndicate capacity
Runoff services - Württembergische Versicherung AG
Framework agreement
Non-life insurance License
Intangible assets as of the acquisition date
Accumulated amortisation expenses
Net Intangible assets as at 31 December 2018

Short term borrowings

Economic useful Life

266,222

Indefinite

10,119

7 years

218,726

10 years

27,540

Indefinite

522,607
(7,230)
515,377

The fair value of Lloyd’s syndicate capacity and insurance licenses was estimated using the market approach. The
Lloyd’s capacity is renewed annually at no cost to the subsidiary or may be freely purchased or sold, subject to Lloyd’s
approval. The ability to write insurance business within the syndicate capacity is indefinite with the premium income
limit being set annually by the Company, subject to Lloyd’s approval. The recoverable amount was determined on the
basis of regression analysis using average return on capital and certain observable data available in Lloyd’s Syndicate.
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4,881,821

3,975,446

The short term borrowings carry interest at an average rate of 2018: 2.40 % (2017: 1.73 %) per annum.

14 PROVISIONS, REINSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES
2018
(QR ‘000)
Insurance claims payables

2017
(QR ‘000)

447,035

712,965

2,604,351

1,529,358

363,542

280,231

Employees’ end of service benefits (see Note 14.1)

91,491

81,225

Derivative financial liabilities (Note 33)

93,020

8,626

542,577

400,462

4,142,016

3,012,867

Due to reinsurance companies
Other payables:
Accruals and deferred income

(a) Lloyd’s Syndicate Capacity

2017
(QR ‘000)

Other liabilities

QIC GROUP - ANNUAL REPORT 2018

105

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
14 PROVISIONS, REINSURANCE AND OTHER PAYABLES (CONTINUED)

18 GENERAL RESERVE

14.1 Employees’ end of service benefits

During the year, no amount has been transferred to the general reserve.
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

19 FAIR VALUE RESERVE

Provision at January 1

81,225

80,280

Expenses recognised during the year

11,124

6,142

(858)

(5,197)

91,491

81,225

Payment made during the year
Provision at December 31

The fair value reserve arose from the revaluation of financial instruments measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income in 2018 and (2017: Available for sale financial assets) as per the accounting policy detailed in
Note 4.

20 CATASTROPHE SPECIAL RESERVE
15 LONG TERM BORROWINGS
Long term borrowings represent mortgage loans which bear fixed interest of 2.8% (2017: 2.8%) per annum are secured
by an investment property (see Note 10) and are repayable in 2021.

The Group has appropriated further QR 51.70 million in 2017 from its retained earnings as a catastrophe special
reserve in the consolidated statement of changes in equity. The formation of reserve was approved at the Board
meeting held on January 25, 2011. This reserve will be utilised at the recommendation of the Board of Directors after
approval at the Annual General Meeting when there is a catastrophe event.
During 2018, the Group issued bonus shares of 15% for the year 2017, of which QR 349,210 thousand was distributed
from the catastrophe reserve, with the approval of QCB. The bonus share issues were approved in the Annual General
Meeting held on 25 February 2018.

16 SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE PREMIUM
16.1 Share capital
2018
No of shares

21 CONTRIBUTION TO SOCIAL AND SPORTS FUND

2017
QR’000

No of shares

QR’000

Authorised
Ordinary shares of QR 10 each

318,905,875

3,189,059

277,309,457

2,773,095

318,905,875

3,189,059

277,309,457

2,773,095

Issued and fully paid up
Ordinary shares of QR 10 each

The Board has proposed to change the nominal value of the share price to be Qatari Riyal one (QR 1) in accordance
with Qatar Financial Market Authority’s (QFMA) resolution issued at its fourth meeting of 2018, held on 16 December
2018. This proposal will be placed for approval at the upcoming Annual General Meeting.
16.2 Share premium
Share premium is the proceeds received from the rights issue, net of any directly attributable transaction costs, are
directly credited to share capital (nominal value of shares) and share premium when shares have been issued higher
than their nominal value.

17 LEGAL RESERVE
Legal reserve is computed in accordance with the provisions of the Qatar Central Bank (QCB) regulations, applicable
provisions of Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law and the Parent company’s Articles of Association at 10% of the net
profit for the year. On November 23, 2014, the Extra-Ordinary General Meeting approved the amendment of paragraph
(1) Article (66) of the Articles of Association of the Company. This reserve is to be maintained until it equates 100% of
the paid up capital and is not available for distribution except in circumstances specified in the Qatar Central Bank
(QCB) regulations/Qatar Commercial Companies Law.
During 2018, the Group issued bonus shares of 15% for the year 2017, partially distributed (QR 66,754 thousand)
from legal reserve, with the approval of QCB. The bonus share issues were approved in the Annual General Meeting
held on 25 February 2018.
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According to Qatari Law No. 13 for the year 2008 and the related clarifications issued in January 2010, the Group is
required to contribute 2.5% of its annual net profits to the state social and sports fund. The clarification relating to
Law No. 13 requires the payable amount to be recognised as a distribution of income. Hence, this is recognised in
statement of changes in equity.
During the year, the Group appropriated an amount of QR 9,959 thousand (2017: QR 9,409 thousand) representing
2.5% of the net profit generated from Qatar Operations.

22 SUBORDINATED PERPETUAL DEBT
In an effort to strengthen the capital base of Qatar Re (the “Issuer”), a subsidiary of the Group registered in Bermuda,
subordinated Tier 2 qualifying capital notes amounting to QR 1,615,596 thousand net were issued through the Irish
Stock Exchange, and the Parent Company acts as the guarantor to the notes. The notes were issued in registered form
at par value, in denominations of USD 200,000 and integral multiples of USD 1,000 in excess thereof. The notes do not
have a stated maturity date and are perpetual in nature, and do not obligate the Issuer to repay or settle by delivery
of cash or another financial asset.

23 OPERATING SEGMENTS
a)

Segment information

For management purposes, the Group is organised into six business segments- Marine & Aviation insurance, Property
& Casualty insurance, Health & Life insurance, Real Estate, Advisory and Investments. These segments are the basis on
which the Group reports its operating segment information. Operating and administrative expenses and certain other
expenses are not allocated to the segments for performance monitoring purposes. No operating segments have been
aggregated in arriving at the reportable segment of the Group.
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Segment income statement for the year ended 31 December 2018

Gross premiums
Premiums ceded to
reinsurers
Net premiums
Movement in unexpired
risk reserve
Net earned premiums
Gross claims paid
Reinsurance recoveries
Movement in
outstanding claims
Net commission

Segment income statement for the year ended 31 December 2017
Un-allocated
(expenses)
/ income
(QR ‘000)

Marine and
Aviation
(QR ‘000)

Property and
Casualty
(QR ‘000)

873,646

10,426,022

1,306,167

12,605,835

-

-

-

-

12,605,835

Gross premiums

(192,240)

(1,507,899)

(96,654)

(1,796,793)

-

-

-

-

(1,796,793)

Premiums ceded to
reinsurers

681,406

8,918,123

1,209,513

10,809,042

-

-

-

-

10,809,042

Net premiums

80,576

456,335

16

536,927

-

-

-

-

536,927

Health and
Life
(QR ‘000)

Total Insurance
(QR ‘000)

Real Estate
(QR ‘000)

Investments
(QR ‘000)

Advisory
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

Movement in unexpired
risk reserve

761,982

9,374,458

1,209,529

11,345,969

-

-

-

-

11,345,969

Net earned premiums

(695,957)

(6,280,929)

(1,224,338)

(8,201,224)

-

-

-

-

(8,201,224)

Gross claims paid

122,499

1,030,882

64,518

1,217,899

-

-

-

-

1,217,899

Reinsurance recoveries
Movement in
outstanding claims
Net commission

(70,516)

(889,980)

77,918

(882,578)

-

-

-

-

(882,578)

(176,105)

(2,670,370)

(64,879)

(2,911,354)

-

-

-

-

(2,911,354)

Un-allocated
(expenses)
/ income
(QR ‘000)

Marine and
Aviation
(QR ‘000)

Property and
Casualty
(QR ‘000)

1,059,598

9,249,239

1,349,861

11,658,698

-

-

-

-

11,658,698

(279,912)

(1,753,828)

(75,029)

(2,108,769)

-

-

-

-

(2,108,769)

779,686

7,495,411

1,274,832

9,549,929

-

-

-

-

9,549,929

17,664

(687,998)

19,906

(650,428)

-

-

-

-

(650,428)

Health and
Life
(QR ‘000)

Total Insurance
(QR ‘000)

Real Estate
(QR ‘000)

Investments
(QR ‘000)

Advisory
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

797,350

6,807,413

1,294,738

8,899,501

-

-

-

-

8,899,501

(711,372)

(4,423,954)

(1,420,283)

(6,555,609)

-

-

-

-

(6,555,609)

247,253

630,552

323,130

1,200,935

-

-

-

-

1,200,935

(257,076)

(1,461,992)

(892)

(1,719,960)

-

-

-

-

(1,719,960)

(147,681)

(1,489,156)

(85,712)

(1,722,549)

-

-

-

-

(1,722,549)

7,596

Other insurance income
(Unallocated)

-

-

-

12,646

-

-

-

-

12,646

576,308

Net underwriting result

(71,526)

62,863

110,981

114,964

-

-

-

-

114,964

-

894,954

Investment income

-

-

-

-

-

-

970,649

-

970,649

-

(114,783)

Finance Cost

-

-

-

-

-

-

(67,881)

-

(67,881)

-

-

48,904

Rental income

-

-

-

-

51,472

-

-

-

51,472

17,218

489

-

17,707

Advisory fee and other
income

-

-

-

-

-

14,925

1,227

-

16,152

17,218

780,660

-

1,423,090

Total income

-

-

-

114,964

51,472

14,925

903,995

-

1,085,356

Operating and
administrative expenses

-

-

-

-

(1,993)

(21,715)

-

(618,338)

(642,046)

Other insurance income
(Unallocated)

-

-

-

7,596

-

-

-

-

Net underwriting result

(58,097)

564,061

62,748

576,308

-

-

-

-

Investment income

-

-

-

-

-

-

894,954

Finance Cost

-

-

-

-

-

-

(114,783)

Rental income

-

-

-

-

48,904

-

Advisory fee and other
income

-

-

-

-

-

Total income

-

-

-

576,308

48,904

Operating and
administrative expenses

-

-

-

-

(12,604)

(26,213)

-

(703,244)

(742,061)

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

(15,608)

(49)

-

(17,076)

(32,733)

Depreciation

-

-

-

-

(17,812)

(171)

-

(17,351)

(35,334)

Profit before share
of results of equity
accounted investments

-

-

-

114,964

31,667

(6,961)

903,995

(635,689)

407,976

Share of profit from
equity accounted
investments

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,631

15,631

(71,526)

62,863

110,981

114,964

31,667

(6,961)

903,995

(620,058)

423,607

Profit before share
of results of equity
accounted investments
Share of profit from
equity accounted
investments
Segment results

-

-

-

576,308

20,692

(9,044)

780,660

(720,320)

648,296

-

-

-

-

-

-

-

15,872

15,872

(58,097)

564,061

62,748

576,308

20,692

(9,044)

780,660

(704,448)

664,168

Segment results

Segment statement of financial position
Assets and liabilities of the Group are commonly used across the primary segments.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
24 NET INVESTMENT INCOME

23 OPERATING SEGMENTS (CONTINUED)
b)

Geographic Information

2018
(QR ‘000)

The Group operates in two geographic markets; the domestic market in Qatar and the international markets. The
following table shows the distribution of the Group’s net underwriting results total assets and liabilities by geographical
segment:
Insurance business segment income statement for the year
Qatar
2018
(QR ‘000)

International
2018
(QR ‘000)

Total
2018
(QR ‘000)

Qatar
2017
(QR ‘000)

International
2017
(QR ‘000)

Total
2017
(QR ‘000)

Gross premium

1,728,161

10,877,674

12,605,835

1,594,230

10,064,468

11,658,698

Reinsurers’ share of gross premiums

(506,161)

(1,290,632)

(1,796,793)

(432,650)

(1,676,119)

(2,108,769)

1,222,000

9,587,042

10,809,042

1,161,580

8,388,349

9,549,929

(31,320)

568,247

536,927

61,481

(711,909)

(650,428)

1,190,680

10,155,289

11,345,969

1,223,061

7,676,440

8,899,501

(1,475,029)

(6,726,195)

(8,201,224)

(1,529,089)

(5,026,520)

(6,555,609)

444,546

773,353

1,217,899

574,738

626,197

1,200,935

42,797

(925,375)

(882,578)

38,757

(1,758,717)

(1,719,960)

Net commission

8,267

(2,919,621)

(2,911,354)

10,381

(1,732,930)

(1,722,549)

Other insurance income

2,178

5,418

7,596

6,437

6,209

12,646

Net underwriting results

213,439

362,869

576,308

324,285

(209,321)

114,964

Net premiums
Change in unexpired risk reserve
Net earned premiums
Gross claims paid
Reinsurance recoveries
Movement in outstanding claims

2017
(QR ‘000)

Interest income

733,163

512,115

Dividends

100,365

64,630

(Loss) / gain on sale of investments

(58,686)

349,382

Unrealised gain (loss) on investments

65,388

(35,235)

Gain on sale of investment properties

54,947

-

(223)

147,121

-

(67,364)

894,954

970,649

(114,783)

(67,881)

780,171

902,768

Others
Less: Impairment losses on available-for-sale assets

Finance costs
Net investment income

25 OPERATING AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

Employee related costs

441,442

393,768

Other operating expenses

300,619

248,278

742,061

642,046

Segment assets, liabilities and equity as at year end

26 BASIC AND DILUTED EARNINGS PER SHARE
Assets

Liabilities & Equity

2018

2017

2018

2017

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

(QR ‘000)

Qatar

18,363,749

17,616,662

9,379,927

8,930,821

International

20,800,874

17,117,622

29,784,696

25,803,463

39,164,623

34,734,284

39,164,623

34,734,284

The basic and diluted earnings per share are the same as there are no dilutive effects on earnings.
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

Profit attributable to owners of the parent

645,942

417,593

Less: Interest on subordinated perpetual debt (Note 22)

(77,028)

(62,318)

568,914

355,275

318,906

318,906

1.78

1.11

Weighted average number of ordinary shares
Basic and diluted earnings per share (QR) (2017: Restated)

Reconciliation of the number of ordinary shares outstanding (in thousands):
During 2018, the Group issued bonus shares for the year 2017. Accordingly, the previously reported earnings per share
for 2017 have been restated for the effect of this transaction. There were no potentially diluted shares outstanding at
any time during the year and therefore the diluted earnings per share is equal to the basic earnings per share.
The Group has restated the calculations of the comparative earnings per share as a result of the effect of bonus shares
of 15% (i.e. 3 for every 20 shares) issued and bonus element of rights shares issued during the year. The bonus and
rights share issues were approved in the Annual General Meeting held on February 25, 2018.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
27 DIVIDENDS AND BONUS SHARES

29 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY OF INVESTMENTS
2018
(QR ‘000)

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy.
The different levels have been defined as follows:

2017
(QR ‘000)

Proposed cash dividend (QR’000)

478,359

415,964

Average number of ordinary shares (in thousand)

318,906

277,309

1.50

1.50

Cash dividend per share (QR)

The Board of Directors proposed cash dividend of QR 1.50 per share (2017: Dividend of QR 1.50 per share and bonus
shares of 15% (QR 66,754 thousand distributed from legal reserve and the remaining amount of QR 349,210 thousand
distributed from catastrophe reserve)). The proposed dividend will be placed for approval at the Annual General
Meeting.

Level 1: quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or liabilities
Level 2: inputs other than quoted prices included within Level 1 that are observable for the asset or liability, 		
either directly (i.e., as prices) or indirectly (i.e., derived from prices)
Level 3: inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market data (unobservable inputs)
31 December 2018

Level 1
(QR ‘000)

Derivative assets held for risk management

28 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES AND COMMITMENTS

Investment securities
2018
(QR ‘000)

Bank guarantees
Authorized future investment commitments

2017
(QR ‘000)
2,498,308

251,443

134,632

3,000,228

2,632,940

The Group operates the insurance industry and is subject to litigation in the normal course of its business. While it is
not practicable to forecast or determine the final results of all pending or threatened legal proceedings. Management
does not believe that such proceedings including litigation will have a material effect on its results at financial position.
The Group is also subject to insurance solvency regulations in all the territories where it operates and has complied
with all the solvency regulations.
There are no contingencies associated with the Group’s compliance or lack of compliance with such regulations.
Operating leases – Group as a lessee
Future minimum lease rentals payables under non-cancellable operating leases as at the year-end are as follows:

After one year but not more than five years
More than 5 years

10,456

-

10,456

13,601,056

548,547

716,105

14,865,708

13,601,056

559,003

716,105

14,876,164

-

17,101

-

17,101

11,848,509

1,131,803

657,090

13,637,402

11,848,509

1,148,904

657,090

13,654,503

Derivative assets held for risk management
Investment securities

Valuation techniques

Unlisted equity investments

Listed investment in equity securities and debt
securities

Unquoted equity investments are recorded at fair
values adopting market approach and applying
price to book value multiple to arrive at the value
of investment. There are no active markets for these
investments and the Group intends to hold them for
the long term

When fair values of publicly traded equity securities
and debt securities are based on quoted market prices,
or binding dealer price quotations, in an active market
for identical assets without any adjustments, the
instruments are included within Level 1 of the hierarchy.

2017
(QR ‘000)
15,611

16,737

4,040

34,891

20,528

5,470

40,179

57,098

In the absence of a quoted price in an active market,
they are valued using observable inputs such as recently
executed transaction prices in securities of the issuer or
comparable issuers and yield curves. Adjustments are
made to the valuations when necessary to recognise
differences in the instrument’s terms. To the extent
that the significant inputs are observable, the Group
categorises these investments as Level 2.
Over-the-counter derivatives
The Group enters into derivative financial instruments
with various counterparties, principally financial
institutions with investment grade credit ratings.
Derivatives are valued using valuation techniques with
market observable inputs are mainly options contracts.
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Total
(QR ‘000)

-

Listed managed funds

Within one year

Level 3
(QR ‘000)

31 December 2017

2,748,785

2018
(QR ‘000)

Level 2
(QR ‘000)

Unlisted managed funds
The Group invests in managed funds, including private
equity funds, which are not quoted in an active market
and which may be subject to restrictions on redemptions
such as lock up periods, redemption gates and side
pockets.
The Group’s investment managers considers the
valuation techniques and inputs used in valuing these
funds as part of its due diligence prior to investing,
to ensure they are reasonable and appropriate and
therefore the NAV of these funds may be used as an
input into measuring their fair value. In measuring
this fair value, the NAV of the funds is adjusted, as
necessary, to reflect restrictions on redemptions, future
commitments, and other specific factors of the fund and
fund manager. In measuring fair value, consideration is
also paid to any transactions in the shares of the fund.
Depending on the nature and level of adjustments
needed to the NAV and the level of trading in the fund,
the Group classifies these funds as Level 3.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
29 DETERMINATION OF FAIR VALUE AND FAIR VALUES HIERARCHY OF INVESTMENTS
(CONTINUED)

32 FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS AND RISK
MANAGEMENT

Level 3 reconciliation

The Group in the normal course of its business derives its
revenue mainly from assuming and managing insurance
and investments. Through a robust governance
structure, risks and returns are evaluated to produce
sustainable revenues to reduce earnings volatility and
increase shareholders’ return. The Group’s lines of
business are mainly exposed to the following risks;

The following table shows a reconciliation of all movements in the fair value of financial instruments categorised
within Level 3 between the beginning and the end of the reporting period:
2018
QR’000

2017
QR’000

At 1 January

657,090

535,994

Net gain / (loss) in fair value reserve

(17,143)

30,140

76,158

90,956

716,105

657,090

Net movement in cost
At 31 December

Note 1 provides information about the Group’s structure, including details of the subsidiaries and the holding
company. The following tables provide the total amount of transactions that have been entered into with related
parties for the relevant financial year.

a) Transactions with related parties
These represent transactions with related parties, i.e. Parties are considered to be related if one party has the ability
to control the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions and also, directors of the Group and companies of which they are key management personnel. Pricing
policies and terms of these transactions are approved by the Group’s management and are negotiated under normal
commercial terms. Significant transactions were:
2018
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

Premiums

17,809

23,076

Claims

51,658

22,037

5

65

b) Due from related parties

14,072

12,186

c) Due to related parties

18,118

25,759

d) Compensation of key management personnel
Salaries and other short term benefits
End of service benefits

Insurance risk,
Credit risk,
Liquidity risk,
Market risk, and
Operational risks

a) Governance framework

30 RELATED PARTIES

Purchase of services

•
•
•
•
•

39,157

55,839

5,224

1,738

44,381

57,577

Outstanding related party balances at reporting date are unsecured and interest free, and no provision for impairment
for these related party balances have been recorded by the Group during the year (2017: Nil).

The primary objective of the Group’s risk and financial
management framework is to protect the Group’s
shareholders from events that hinder the sustainable
achievement of the set financial performance objectives.
Key management recognises the critical importance of
having efficient and effective risk management systems
in place.
The Group has established a risk management function
with clear terms of reference from the Board of
directors, its committees and the associated executive
management committees. This is supplemented with
a clear organisational structure with documented
delegated authorities and responsibilities from the
board of directors to executive management committees
and senior managers. A group risk management policy
framework which sets out the risk profiles for the
Group, risk management, control and business conduct
standards for the Group’s operations has been put in
place.

b) Capital management framework
The Group has an internal risk management framework
for identifying risks to which each of its business units
and the Group as a whole is exposed, quantifying their
impact on economic capital. The internal framework
estimates indicate how much capital is needed to
mitigate the risk of insolvency to a selected remote level
of risk applied to a number of tests (both financial and
non-financial) on the capital position of the business.

c) Regulatory framework

31 NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS
Represents the non-controlling interest in QIC Capital LLC amounting to 4.26 % (2017: 4.26%) of the share capital,
41.18 % (2017: 41.18%) in Oman Qatar Insurance Company, 17.96 % (2017: 17.96%) in Kuwait Qatar Insurance Company
and 15 % (2017: 15%) in Q Life & Medical Insurance Company LLC.
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Regulators are primarily interested in protecting the
rights of the policyholders and monitor them closely to
ensure that the Group is satisfactorily managing affairs
for their benefit. At the same time, the regulators are

also interested in ensuring that the Group maintains
an appropriate solvency position to meet unforeseen
liabilities arising from economic shocks or natural
disasters.
The operations of the Group are also subject to
regulatory requirements within the jurisdictions where
it operates. Such regulations not only prescribe approval
and monitoring of activities, but also impose certain
restrictive provisions (e.g. capital adequacy) to minimise
the risk of default and insolvency on the part of the
insurance companies to meet unforeseen liabilities as
these arise.

d) Asset liability management (ALM)
framework
Financial risks arise from open positions in interest
rate, currency and equity products, all of which are
exposed to general and specific market movements. The
main risk that the Group faces due to the nature of its
investments and liabilities is interest rate risk. The Group
manages these positions within an ALM framework that
has been developed to achieve long-term investment
returns in excess of its obligations under insurance and
investment contracts.
The Group’s ALM is also integrated with the management
of the financial risks associated with the Group’s other
financial assets and liabilities not directly associated
with insurance and investment liabilities.
The Group’s ALM also forms an integral part of the
insurance risk management policy, to ensure in each
period sufficient cash flow is available to meet liabilities
arising from insurance and investment contracts.

e) Insurance risk
The principal risk the Group faces under insurance
contracts is that the actual claims and benefit payments
or the timing thereof, differ from expectations. This is
influenced by the frequency of claims, severity of claims,
actual compensation paid and subsequent development
of long-term claims. Therefore the objective of the
Group is to ensure that sufficient reserves are available
to cover these liabilities.
The Group manages the insurance risk through
the careful selection and implementation of its
underwriting strategy and guidelines together with
the adequate reinsurance arrangements and proactive
claims handling.
The Group principally issues general insurance contracts
which constitutes mainly marine & aviation, property &
casualty and health & life.
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The concentration of insurance risk exposure is
mitigated by careful selection and implementation of
the underwriting strategy of the Group, which attempts
to ensure that the risks underwritten are well diversified
across a large portfolio in terms of type, level of insured
benefits, amount of risk, industry and geography.
Underwriting limits are in place to enforce risk selection
criteria.
The Group, in the normal course of business, in order to
minimise financial exposure arising from large claims,
enters into contracts with other parties for reinsurance
purposes. Such reinsurance arrangements provide for
greater diversification of business, allow management
to control exposure to potential losses arising from
large risks, and provide additional capacity for growth.
A significant portion of the reinsurance is affected
under treaty, facultative and excess-of-loss reinsurance
contracts. Amounts recoverable from reinsurers are
estimated in a manner consistent with the outstanding
claims provision and are in accordance with the
reinsurance contracts.
Although the Group has reinsurance arrangements, it is
not relieved of its direct obligations to its policyholders
and thus a credit exposure exists with respect to ceded
insurance, to the extent that any reinsurer is unable to
meet its obligations assumed under such reinsurance
agreements. The Group’s placement of reinsurance
is diversified such that it is neither dependent on a
single reinsurer nor are the operations of the Group
substantially dependent upon any single reinsurance
contract.
The Group has in place strict claim review policies to
assess all new and ongoing claims, regular detailed
review of claims handling procedures and frequent
investigation of possible fraudulent claims to reduce the

risk exposure of the Group. The Group further enforces
a policy of actively managing and prompt pursuing of
claims, in order to reduce its exposure to unpredictable
future developments that can negatively impact the
Group.
Key assumptions
The principal assumption underlying the liability
estimates is that the Group’s future claims development
will follow a similar pattern to past claims development
experience. This includes assumptions in respect
of average claim costs, claim handling costs, claim
inflation factors and claim numbers for each accident
year. Additional qualitative judgments are used to
assess the extent to which past trends may not apply
in the future, for example one-off occurrence, changes
in market factors such as public attitude to claiming,
economic conditions, as well as internal factors such
as portfolio mix, policy conditions and claims handling
procedures. Judgment is further used to assess the extent
to which external factors such as judicial decisions and
government legislation affect the estimates.
Other key circumstances affecting the reliability of
assumptions include variation in interest rates, delays in
settlement and changes in foreign currency rates.
Sensitivities
The general insurance claims provisions are sensitive
to the key assumptions mentioned above. It has not
been possible to quantify the sensitivity of certain
assumptions such as legislative changes or uncertainty
in the estimation process.
The analysis below is performed for possible movements
in key assumptions with all other assumptions held
constant, showing the impact on gross and net liabilities,
net profit and equity.

Claims Development Table
The Group maintains strong reserves in respect of its insurance business in order to protect against adverse future
claims experience and developments. The following tables show the estimates of cumulative incurred claims, including
both claims notified and IBNR for each successive accident year at each reporting date, together with cumulative
payments to date. The top half of each table below illustrates how the Group’s estimate of total claims outstanding
for each accident year has changed at successive year-ends. The bottom half of the table reconciles the cumulative
claims to the amount appearing in the Consolidated Statement of Financial Position.
With the exception of the proportional and non-proportional reinsurance business, an accident-year basis is considered
to be most appropriate for the business written by the Group. Given the nature of reinsurance claims and the difficulties
in identifying an accident year for each reported claim, these claims are reported separately and aggregated by
reporting year (reporting year basis) – that is, with reference to the year in which the Group was notified of the claims.
This presentation is different from the basis used for the claims development tables for the other insurance claims and
entities of the Group, where the reference is to the actual date of the event that caused the claim (accident-year basis).

Accident year

Impact on
liabilities
(QR ‘000)

Impact on net
profit
(QR ‘000)

2014

2015

2016

2017

2018

At end of accident year

2,301,345

3,396,938

3,672,536

6,022,338

7,708,743

One year later

2,335,368

3,466,186

3,484,569

6,026,268

6,802,722

Two years later

2,292,797

3,423,449

3,714,319

5,695,322

Three years later

2,315,467

3,528,156

3,541,841

Four years later

2,369,197

3,494,172

Five years later

2,373,495

Current estimate of
cumulative claims
incurred

2,373,495

3,494,172

3,541,841

5,695,322

(2,083,881)

(2,815,736)

(2,835,576)

289,614

678,436

Reserve in respect of prior years
(Before 2011)

--

Total net outstanding claims
reported and unsettled and
incurred but not reported

Cumulative payments to date
Net outstanding claims provision

Current estimate of
surplus/(deficiency)
% Surplus/ (deficiency) of initial
gross reserve

Change in
assumptions
(QR ‘000)

2013

Total

8,494,912

31,596,812

6,802,722

8,494,912

30,402,464

(5,575,354)

(4,263,128)

(2,721,015)

(20,294,690)

706,265

119,968

2,539,594

5,773,897

10,107,774

--

--

--

--

188,416

--

--

--

--

--

10,296,190

(72,150)

(97,234)

130,695

327,016

906,021

-3%

-3%

4%

6%

13%

Impact on
equity
(QR ‘000)

31 December 2018
Incurred claim cost

+10%

786,590

(786,590)

-

Incurred claim cost

-10%

786,590

(786,590)

-

Incurred claim cost

+10%

707,463

(707,463)

-

Incurred claim cost

-10%

(707,463)

707,463

-

31 December 2017
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f)

Credit risk

b)

Credit risk is the risk that one party to a financial instrument will cause a financial loss to the other party by failing to
discharge an obligation. The following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit
risk.
A credit risk policy setting out the assessment and determination of what constitutes credit risk for the Group has been
established and the following policies and procedures are in place to mitigate the Group’s exposure to credit risk:
•
•

Compliance with the receivable management policy is monitored and exposures and breaches are regularly
reviewed for pertinence and for changes in the risk environment.
For all classes of financial assets held by the Group, other than those relating to reinsurance contracts,
the maximum credit risk exposure to the Group is the carrying value as disclosed in the consolidated financial
statements at the reporting date.

Credit quality

31 December 2018

Neither past due
nor impaired
(QR ‘000)

Past due but not
impaired
(QR ‘000)

10,456

Derivative financial assets
Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL) – Debt securities

540,900

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI) – Debt securities

10,639,699

Past due and
impaired
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

-

-

-

-

-

-

10,456
540,900
10,639,699

Insurance and other receivables

6,276,410

1,133,666

75,188

7,485,264

Reinsurance contract assets

4,401,594

-

-

4,401,594

Short-term deposits

6,615,258

-

-

6,615,258

28,484,317

1,133,666

75,188

29,693,171

17,101

-

-

17,101

Held for trading investments -Debt securities

2,025,284

-

-

2,025,284

Available-for-sale investments -Debt securities

8,710,627

-

-

8,710,627

Insurance and other receivables

6,451,316

318,083

58,788

6,828,187

Reinsurance contract assets

3,052,970

-

-

3,052,970

31 December 2017

•

Reinsurance is placed with reinsurers approved by the management. To minimise its exposure to significant losses
from reinsurer insolvencies, the Group evaluates the financial condition of its reinsurers and monitors concentrations
of credit risk arising from similar geographic regions, activities or economic characteristics of the reinsurers.

At each reporting date, management performs an assessment of creditworthiness of reinsurers and updates the
reinsurance purchase strategy, ascertaining suitable allowance for impairment.

Short-term deposits

Credit exposure is limited to the carrying values of the financial assets as at the reporting date.
a)

Derivative financial assets

Maximum exposure to credit risk

C)

6,726,954

-

-

6,726,954

26,984,252

318,083

58,788

27,361,123

Aging analysis of neither past due nor impaired and past due but not impaired

The table below shows the maximum exposure to credit risk for the components of consolidated statement of financial
position.
2018
(QR ‘000)
Derivative financial assets (Note 9)

<30 days
(QR ‘000)

2017
(QR ‘000)

31 to 60 days
(QR ‘000)

61 to 90 days
(QR ‘000)

Above 121
days
(QR ‘000)

91 to 120 days
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

31 December 2018
Insurance and other receivables

5,451,856

257,994

349,170

292,579

1,208,853

7,560,452

5,315,951

231,893

273,527

205,323

376,870

6,403,564

10,456

17,101

Held for trading-Debt securities (Note 9)

-

2,025,284

Available for sale-Debt securities (Note 9)

-

8,710,627

540,900

-

D)		

10,639,699

-

Insurance and other receivables (Note 6)

7,485,264

6,828,187

At 31 December 2018, there are impaired reinsurance assets of QR 35,405 thousand (2017: QR 23,409 thousand),
impaired receivables from policy holders of QR 39,783 thousand (2017: QR 35,379 thousand).

Reinsurance contract assets (Note 7)

4,401,594

3,052,970

Short-term deposits (Note 5)

6,615,258

6,726,954

29,693,171

27,361,123

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)
Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

31 December 2017
Insurance and other receivables

Impaired financial assets

The Group records all impairment allowances in separate impairment allowances accounts. The movement in the
allowances for impairment losses for the year are as follows:
Impairment on insurance and reinsurance receivables
2018
(QR ‘000)
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2017
(QR ‘000)

At January 1,

58,788

Charged during the year

16,400

8,203

Total

75,188

58,788
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Liquidity risk

31 December 2017

Liquidity risk is the risk that the Group will encounter difficulty in meeting the obligations associated with its financial
liabilities.
Liquidity requirements are monitored regularly on a daily/weekly/monthly basis and management ensures that
sufficient funds are available to meet any commitments as they arise.

Up to a year
(QR ‘000)
Derivative financial assets

17,101

-

-

17,101

1,728,140

1,058,430

361,891

3,148,461

Equity securities

1,778,314

-

-

1,778,314
8,710,627

Non-derivative financial assets
Available-for-sale financial assets

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the financial assets and financial liabilities of the Group based on
remaining undiscounted contractual obligations, including interest payable and receivable. For insurance contracts
liabilities and reinsurance assets, maturity profiles are determined based on estimated timing of net cash outflows
from the recognised insurance liabilities. Unearned premiums and the reinsurers’ share of unearned premiums have
been excluded from the analysis as they are not contractual obligations.
31 December 2018
Up to a year
(QR ‘000)

Over
5 years
(QR ‘000)

1-5 years
(QR ‘000)

Debt securities

1,443,454

2,286,134

4,981,039

Insurance receivables, net

5,259,142

-

-

5,259,142

Reinsurance contract assets

3,052,970

-

-

3,052,970

Cash and cash equivalents

Total
(QR‘000)

10,456

10,456

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

3,954,611

125,812

145,586

4,226,009

Available-for-sale financial assets
Equity securities

-

Debt securities

-

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive income (FVOCI)

2,156,902

Insurance receivables, net

7,430,609

7,430,609

Reinsurance contract assets

4,401,594

4,401,594

Cash and cash equivalents

5,347,261

8,011,163
25,965,335

Up to a year
(QR ‘000)

10,639,699

8,011,163
3,261,348

5,492,847
Over
5 years
(QR ‘000)

1-5 years
(QR ‘000)

34,719,530

Total
(QR‘000)

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

93,020

-

7,914,054

5,342,930

29,880,669

93,020

Over
5 years
(QR ‘000)

1-5 years
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR‘000)

8,626

8,626

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables

794,190

-

-

794,190

12,008,844

-

-

12,008,844

Insurance payables

1,529,358

-

-

1,529,358

Short term borrowings

4,044,248

-

-

4,044,248

Long term borrowings

3,886

146,568

-

150,454

18,389,152

146,568

-

18,535,720

Insurance contract liabilities

3,135,536

3,344,564

Financial liabilities
Derivative financial liabilities

Non-derivative financial assets
Held for trading investments

7,914,054
21,193,175

Up to a year
(QR ‘000)

Financial assets
Derivative financial assets

Total
(QR‘000)

Financial assets

Held for trading investments

Maturity profiles

Over
5 years
(QR ‘000)

1-5 years
(QR ‘000)

H)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value of or income from a financial instrument will fluctuate as a result of changes in
market prices (such as exchange rates, interest rates and equity prices) , whether those changes are caused by factors
specific to the individual security, or its issuer, or factors affecting all securities traded in the market. The Group limits
market risk by maintaining a diversified portfolio and by continuous monitoring of developments in international and
local equity and bond markets. In addition, the Group actively monitors the key factors that affect stock and bond
market movements, including analysis of the operational and financial performance of investees.

Non-derivative financial liabilities
Trade and other payables
Insurance contract liabilities

538,526

-

-

538,526

14,697,786

-

-

14,697,786

Insurance payables

2,604,351

-

-

2,604,351

Short term borrowings

4,881,821

-

-

4,881,821

Long term borrowings

-

132,554

-

132,554

22,815,504

132,554

-

22,948,058
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i)

Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the fair value of future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in foreign exchange rates.
The Group uses various off balance sheet financial instruments, including forward foreign exchange contracts and
option, to manage certain foreign currency investment exposures.
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The table below summarises the Group’s exposure to foreign currency exchange rate risk at the reporting date by
categorising assets and liabilities and major currencies.
31 December 2018

USD
(QR ‘000)

EURO
(QR ‘000)

GBP
(QR ‘000)

Others
(QR ‘000)

Interest rate risk is the risk that the value of future cash flows from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of
changes in market interest rates.

Total
(QR ‘000)

Cash and cash equivalents

1,102,477

5,944

219,480

6,683,261

8,011,163

Insurance and other receivables

2,137,398

544,006

5,503,577

1,160,970

9,345,951

Investments

11,959,615

359,737

1,498,099

1,058,713

14,876,164

TOTAL ASSETS

15,199,490

909,687

7,221,156

8,902,944

32,233,278

Short term borrowings
Long term borrowings

4,881,821
-

ii) Interest rate risk

-

-

-

4,881,821

-

132,554

-

132,554

The Group invests in securities and has deposits that are subject to interest rate risk. Interest rate risk to the Group is
the risk of changes in market interest rates reducing the overall return on its interest bearing securities.
The Group’s interest risk policy requires managing interest rate risk by maintaining an appropriate mix of fixed and
variable rate instruments. The policy also requires it to manage the maturities of interest bearing financial assets and
interest bearing financial liabilities.
The Group limits interest rate risk by monitoring changes in interest rates in the currencies in which its cash and
investments are denominated and has no significant concentration of interest rate risk.

Provisions, reinsurance and other payables

1,509,930

77,978

1,752,818

801,290

4,142,016

TOTAL LIABILITIES

6,391,751

77,978

1,885,372

801,290

9,156,391

835,314

142,804

29,736

6,906,200

7,914,054

1,120,547

174,178

922,449

5,977,170

8,194,344

Investments

10,902,404

340,257

651,078

1,760,764

13,654,503

TOTAL ASSETS

12,858,265

657,239

1,603,263

14,644,134

29,762,901

Qatari Riyals

+50 basis points

(4,527)

(141,784)

(10,681)

(184,770)

Qatari Riyals

-50 basis points

4,527

141,784

10,681

184,770

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held
constant, showing the impact on profit or loss and equity.

31 December 2017
Cash and cash equivalents
Insurance and other receivables

Short term borrowings
Long term borrowings

3,975,446
-

-

-

-

3,975,446

-

138,795

-

138,795

Provisions, reinsurance and other payables

1,436,403

66,598

457,237

1,052,629

3,012,867

TOTAL LIABILITIES

5,411,849

66,598

596,032

1,052,629

7,127,108

31 December 2018
Currency

The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held
constant, showing the impact on the consolidated statements of income and changes in equity due to changes in the
fair value of currency sensitive monetary assets and liabilities including insurance contract liabilities.

Changes in variables

Currency

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)

Euro

+10%

83,171

-

21,664

-

GBP

+10%

533,578

-

21,344

-

616,749

-

43,008

-

Total
Euro

+10%

(83,171)

-

(21,664)

-

GBP

+10%

(533,578)

-

(21,344)

-

(616,749)

-

(43,008)

-

Total

The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period.
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Up to 1 year
(QR ‘000)

1 to 5 years
(QR ‘000)

Over 5 years
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

8,011,163

8,011,163

Derivative Financial Assets

10,456

10,456

Investments – Debt instruments

31 December 2017

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)

Cash and Cash equivalents

31 December 2017
31 December 2018

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)

The Group’s interest rate risk based on contractual arrangements is as follows:
31 December 2018

The Group has no significant concentration of currency risk.

Changes in variables

31 December 2017

2,426,404

3,261,348

5,492,847

11,180,599

10,448,023

3,261,348

5,492,847

19,202,218

Up to 1 year
(QR ‘000)

1 to 5 years
(QR ‘000)

Over 5 years
(QR ‘000)

Total
(QR ‘000)

Effective interest
rate (%)
4.07%

4.17%

Effective interest
rate (%)

Cash and Cash equivalents

7,914,054

-

-

7,914,054

2.64%

Investments

2,048,417

3,344,563

5,342,931

10,735,911

3.33%

9,962,471

3,344,563

5,342,931

18,649,965

iii) Price risk
Price risk is the risk that the fair value of or income from a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in
market prices (other than those arising from interest rate risk or currency risk), whether those changes are caused by
factors specific to the individual financial instrument or its issuer, or factors affecting all similar financial instruments
traded in the market.
The Group’s equity price risk exposure relates to financial assets and financial liabilities whose values will fluctuate as
a result of changes in market prices, principally investment securities not held for the account of unit-linked business.
The Group’s price risk policy requires it to manage such risks by setting and monitoring objectives and constraints on
investments, diversification plans, limits on investments in each country, sector and market and careful and planned
use of derivative financial instruments. The Group has no significant concentration of price risk.
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The analysis below is performed for reasonably possible movements in key variables with all other variables held
constant, showing the impact on profit or loss and equity.
31 December 2018
Changes in variables

Currency

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)

31 December 2017

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)

+10%

118,838

118,838

International Markets

+10%

9,239

9,239

Qatar Market

-10%

(118,838)

(118,838)

International Markets

-10%

(9,239)

(9,239)

Qatar Market

Impact on profit
or loss
(QR ‘000)
-

Cash and cash equivalents

Impact on equity
(QR ‘000)
103,856

111,090
(111,090)

31 December 2018
Carrying amount
(QR ‘000)

8,266
(103,856)
(8,266)

Operational risk is the risk of loss arising from system failure, human error, fraud or external events. When controls
fail to perform, operational risks can cause damage to reputation, have legal or regulatory implications or can lead
to financial loss. The Group cannot expect to eliminate all operational risks, but by initiating a rigorous control
framework and by monitoring and responding to potential risks, the Group is able to manage the risks. The Group
has detailed systems and procedures manuals with effective segregation of duties, access controls, authorisation and
reconciliation procedures, staff training and assessment processes etc. with an effective compliance and internal
audit framework. Business risks such as changes in environment, technology and the industry are monitored through
the Group’s strategic planning and budgeting process.
i)

Capital management

The primary source of capital used by the Group is total equity. The Group also utilises, where it is efficient to do so,
sources of capital such as subordinated perpetual debt, in addition to more traditional sources of funding.
The Group manages its capital requirements by assessing shortfalls between reported and required capital levels
on a regular basis. The Group fully complied with the externally imposed capital requirements during the reported
financial year and no changes were made to its capital base, objectives, policies and processes from the previous year.
Externally imposed capital requirements are set and regulated by the Qatar Commercial Companies’ Law and Qatar
Central Bank regulations to ensure sufficient solvency margins. Further objectives are set by the Group to maintain a
strong credit rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business objectives and maximise shareholders
value.
Group ensures that it maintains the minimum capital requirement and solvency ratio at all times as per Qatar Central
Bank’s requirements.
j) Classification and fair values
The following table compares the fair values of the financial instruments to their carrying values:

Carrying amount
(QR ‘000)

Fair value
(QR ‘000)

8,011,163

8,011,163

7,914,054

7,914,054

Insurance receivables

9,345,951

9,345,951

8,194,344

8,194,344

Reinsurance contract assets

5,467,185

5,467,185

3,774,868

3,774,868

3,165,562

3,165,562

10,488,941

10,488,941

Investments held for trading

-

-

Financial investments at fair value through profit or loss (FVTPL)

4,236,465

4,236,465

Financial investments at fair value through other comprehensive
income (FVOCI)

10,639,699

10,639,699

Available -for-sale Investments

-

The method used for deriving sensitivity information and significant variables did not change from the previous period.
iii) Operational risks

31 December 2017

Fair value
(QR ‘000)

-

37,700,463

37,700,463

33,537,769

33,537,769

Short term borrowings

4,881,821

4,881,821

3,975,446

3,975,446

Insurance and other payables

4,142,016

4,142,016

3,012,867

3,012,867

20,420,997

20,420,997

17,717,987

17,717,987

132,554

132,554

138,795

138,795

29,577,388

29,577,388

24,845,095

24,845,095

Insurance contract liabilities
Long term borrowings

33 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS
In the ordinary course of business, the Group enters into various types of transactions that involve derivative
financial instruments. A derivative financial instrument is a financial contract between two parties where payments
are dependent upon movements in price in one or more underlying financial instrument, reference rate or index.
Derivative financial instruments include forward contracts, swaps and equity options structures.
The table below shows the notional amounts analysed by the term to maturity. The notional amount is the amount of
a derivative’s underlying asset, reference rate or index and is the basis upon which changes in the value of derivatives
are measured. The notional amounts indicate the volume of transactions outstanding at yearend and are neither
indicative of the market risk nor credit risk.

31 December 2018

Notional amount
(QR ‘000)

Derivative Liability
(QR ‘000)

Derivative Asset
(QR ‘000)

Within 3 months
(QR ‘000)

3 to 12 months
(QR ‘000)

Over the Counter Derivatives
Credit & Interest Rate Derivatives
Equity Derivatives
FX Derivatives

3,349,441

7,478

44,175

-

3,349,441

148,788

-

13,305

12,848

135,940

2,055,840

2,978

35,540

1,620,902

434,938

5,554,069

10,456

93,020

1,633,750

3,920,319

2,639,546

4,846

1,501

-

2,639,546

382,563

8,363

387

218,763

163,800

1,923,584

3,892

6,738

1,418,528

505,056

4,945,693

17,101

8,626

1,637,291

3,308,402

31 December 2017
Over the Counter Derivatives
Credit & Interest Rate Derivatives
Equity Derivatives
FX Derivatives

Various option strategies are employed for hedging, risk management and income enhancement. All calls sold are on
assets held by the Group.
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Foreign Exchange derivatives
Foreign exchange derivatives include forwards and
options and are contractual agreements in relation to
a specified currency at a specified price and date in the
future. The options are contractual agreements under
which the seller (writer) grants the purchaser (holder)
the right, but not the obligation, to either buy or sell
at fixed future date or at any time during a specified
period, a specified amount of a currency, at a predetermined price. The interest rate and credit derivative
contracts are over-the-counter contracts transacted in
the over-the-counter market and changes in contract
values are settled daily.
Equity derivatives
Equity derivatives include options and swaps and are
contractual agreements in relation to a specified equity
instrument at a specified price and date in the future.
The equity derivative contracts are over-the-counter
contracts transacted in the over-the-counter market and
changes in contract values are settled daily.
Interest rate and credit derivatives
Interest rate and credit derivatives include swap
contracts to exchange one set of cash flows for another,
generally fixed and floating interest payments in a single
currency without exchanging principal. In the case of
credit default swaps the counterparties agree to make
payments with respect to defined credit events based
on specified notional amounts. The forward exchange
derivative contracts are over-the-counter contracts
transacted in the over-the-counter market and changes
in contract values are settled daily.

34 CRITICAL JUDGEMENTS IN
APPLYING THE GROUP’S
ACCOUNTING POLICIES
In the process of preparing these consolidated financial
statements, Management has made use of a number
of judgments relating to the application of accounting
policies which are described in Note 3 (d). Those
which have the most significant effect on the reported
amounts of assets, liabilities, income and expense are
listed below (apart from those involving estimations
which are dealt within Note 35).
These judgments are based on historical experience
and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the
circumstances. Management believes that the following
discussion addresses the accounting policies that
require judgments.
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Classification of investments (applicable from 1 January
2018)

Growth rate

Goodwill impairment testing

Management uses the projected cash flows over a 5
year horizon, return on capacity of 3.6% p.a. for Lloyd’s
capacity, price to book and median equity beta of 0.46.
The growth rate used in determining the projected cash
flows, return on capacity, price to book and median
equity beta are estimated by taking in account the
nature of the industry and the general economic growth
relevant to the subsidiary in question and the Group.

The Group determines whether goodwill is impaired at
least on an annual basis. This requires an estimation of
the recoverable amount of the CGU to which goodwill
is allocated. Details of the key assumptions used in the
estimation of the recoverable amounts are contained in
Note 12.

Assessment of whether credit risk on the financial asset
has increased significantly since initial recognition
and incorporation of forward-looking information in
the measurement of ECL. Refer to note 4 for Inputs,
assumptions and techniques used for estimating
impairment of financial assets for more information.

Discount rate

Classification of investments (applicable up to 31
December 2017)

The Management performs sensitivity analysis on the
above and key assumptions in ascertaining its impact
on the recoverable amount and impairment to the
carrying value of goodwill in the consolidated financial
statements. Material changes in the above assumptions
may impact the recoverable amounts and may lead to
an impairment to goodwill.

An estimate of the collectible amount of insurance
and other receivables is made when collection of the
full amount is no longer probable. This determination
of whether these insurance and other receivables are
impaired, entails the Group evaluating the credit and
liquidity position of the policy holders and the insurance
companies, historical recovery rates including detailed
investigations carried out during 2014 and feedback
received from their legal department. The difference
between the estimated collectible amount discounted
to present value if applicable and the book amount is
recognized as an expense in the consolidated statement
of income. Any difference between amounts actually
collected in the future periods and the amounts expected
will be recognized in the consolidated statement of
income at the time of collection. As of 31 December
2018, the insurance receivable and reinsurance
receivables amounted to QR 5,099,364 thousand (2017:
QR 2,429,322 thousand) and QR 2,406,433 thousand
(2017: QR 2,888,608 thousand), respectively, and the
provision for impairment on insurance receivable
and reinsurance receivable amounted to QR 39,783
thousand (2017: QR 35,379 thousand) and QR 35,405
thousand (2017: QR 23,409 thousand) respectively.

Assessment of the business model within which the assets
are held and assessment of whether the contractual terms
of the financial asset are solely payments of principal
and interest on the principal amount outstanding. Refer
to note 4 for further information.
Estimated credit losses

Quoted securities are classified either held for trading
or as available for sale. The Group invests substantially
in quoted securities either locally or overseas and
management has primarily decided to account for them
for their potential long term growth rather than the
short term profit basis. Consequently, such investments
are recognized as available for sale rather than at fair
value through profit or loss.
Financial assets are classified as fair value through profit
or loss where the assets are either held for trading or
designated as at fair value through profit or loss. The
Group invests in mutual and managed funds for trading
purpose.
Impairment of financial assets (applicable up to 31
December 2017)
The Group determines whether available for sale equity
financial assets are impaired when there has been
a significant or prolonged decline in their fair value
below cost. This determination of what is significant
or prolonged requires considerable judgment by the
management. In making this judgment and to identify
whether impairment has occurred, the Group evaluates
among other factors, the normal volatility in share price,
the financial health of the investee, industry and sector
performance, changes in technology and operational
and financial cash flows.
Impairment of goodwill
The Group carries out impairment testing annually
in respect of the goodwill relating to the acquired
subsidiaries. In carrying out the impairment analysis, the
Group makes the following estimates which are critical:

Management discounts the cash flows using its
weighted average cost of capital of 10.72% which takes
into account the debt-equity structure of the Group,
an estimated cost of equity based on the capital asset
pricing model and an estimated long term cost of debt.

35 KEY SOURCES OF ESTIMATES
UNCERTAINTY
The key assumptions concerning the future, and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed
below;
Claims made under insurance contracts
Claims and loss adjustment expenses are charged to the
consolidated statement of income as incurred based
on the estimated liability for compensation owed to
contract holders or third parties damaged by the contract
holders. Liabilities for unpaid claims are estimated using
the input of assessments for individual cases reported to
the Group and management estimations for the claims
incurred but not reported. The method for making such
estimates and for establishing the resulting liability is
continually reviewed. Any difference between actual
claims and the provisions made are included in the
consolidated statement of income in the year of
settlement. As of 31 December 2018, the net estimate
for unpaid claims amounted to QR 10,296,192 thousand
(2017: QR 8,955,874 thousand).

Impairment of Insurance and other receivables

Liability Adequacy Test
At each reporting date, liability adequacy tests are
performed to ensure the adequacy of insurance contract
liabilities. The Group makes use of the best estimates of
future contractual cash flows and claims handling and
administration expenses, as well as investment income
from the assets backing such liabilities in evaluating the
adequacy of the liability. Any deficiency is immediately
charged to the consolidated statement of income.
Provisional accounting
The details regarding provisional accounting performed
by the Group for its acquisition of Markerstudy Group
are set out in Note 38 along with the basis of identifying
intangible assets.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
36 PARENTAL GUARANTEE

Intangible assets comprise the value of licenses and Framework Agreement .

The Parent Company has provided unconditional parental guarantee to its subsidiary companies - QIC International
L.L.C., Qatar Reinsurance Company L.L.C. (Qatar – Re), Q - Life & Medical Insurance Company L.L.C., Kuwait Qatar
Insurance Company and QIC Europe Ltd, Malta for the purpose of obtaining financial rating from international rating
agencies.

As part of the transaction related to the sale and purchase of the Carriers, Qatar Re and Markerstudy Group have signed
a framework agreement (“Framework Agreement”), which will govern their relationship for the coming 10-year period.
Under this agreement, the Carriers will have the right to first refusal for all the non-life insurance business generated
by Markerstudy Group (MSG). The Framework Agreement has been valued by applying the dividend discount model
(“DDM”) under the Income Approach.

37 GROUP RESTRUCTURING

Markerstudy Group insurance companies have regulatory licenses from the Gibraltar Financial Services Commission
(GFSC) to underwrite non-life insurance business in the United Kingdom and the rest of the European Union. Under the
Cost Approach, the value of the licenses of the Carriers were estimated to be QR 27.5 million (GBP 6 million).

During last year, the Group has restructured its holding structure by transferring control over Oman Qatar Insurance
Company & Kuwait Qatar Insurance Company including the beneficial ownership of Dubai branch and Abu Dhabi
branch to Parent Company from QIC International due to de-authorization of QIC International by the Qatar Financial
Centre Regulatory Authority (the “QFCRA”). The transaction is considered as transaction under common control.
During this year, the shares of QEL were transferred from the Parent Company to QICC and thereafter from QICC to
Qatar Re. As on 31 December 2018, QEL is a wholly owned subsidiary of Qatar Re. Accordingly, there is no goodwill or
gain or loss on bargain purchase recognized during this year or last year in these consolidated financial statements.
Few rearrangements that resulted in the percentage of ownership held by non-controlling interest are also directly
recognized in equity.

38 BUSINESS COMBINATION

The fair value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of Markerstudy Group insurance companies as at the date of
acquisition, as per IFRS 3 were the following;
Provisional
fair value recognized on
acquisition
(QR ‘000)
Assets
333,295

Insurance and other receivables

2,935,891

Reinsurance contract assets

2,747,855

Investments
Investments properties
Intangible assets (provisional)*
Total assets

625,101
21,499
246,266
6,909,907

Liabilities
Insurance contract liabilities

3,977,085

Provisions, reinsurance and other payables

2,419,590

Total liabilities

6,396,675

Total identifiable net assets at fair value acquired (provisional)
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Net cash outflow on acquisition of subsidiary
2018
(QR ‘000)
Cash consideration paid in cash

On 25 July 2018, the Group, through its subsidiary, QRe, acquired 100% of the share capital of Markerstudy’s Gibraltarbased insurance companies, as mentioned in detail in Note 12, with the objective of generating a higher proportion
of lower volatility business

Cash and cash equivalents

Additional work is going on to determine fair value of the identifiable net assets on the acquisition date and therefore,
provisional accounting has been performed as of 31 December 2018. On receipts of final valuation reports and
computation of related exercise, appropriate adjustments will be made to the provisional amounts in accordance
with the requirements of IFRS 3, Business Combinations

513,232

Less: Cash and cash equivalent balances acquired

(333,295)
179,937

Transaction and Acquisition-Related Costs
Transaction costs associated with the acquisition have been expensed and are included in the operating and
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement of income and are part of operating cash flows in the
consolidated statement of cash flows.
From the date of acquisition, Markerstudy Group insurance companies have contributed the equivalent of QR 544,755
thousand of Gross premium written and QR 43,881 thousand to the net profit of the Group.

39 COMPARATIVE AMOUNTS
The impact of transition to IFRS 9 is set out in Note 3.1 (c). In addition, certain comparative figures of the previous year
have been reclassified to conform to the current year’s presentation. However, such reclassifications are not material
and do not have an impact on the previously reported surplus or net assets.

40 SUBSEQUENT EVENT
In 2018, the Group initiated a process to transfer the life and medical insurance business of Q Life & Medical Insurance
Company LLC (“QLM”) from the Qatar Financial Centre (“QFC”) to the Ministry of Trade and Business. This was achieved
by incorporating a new life and medical insurance entity QLM Life & Medical Insurance W.L.L., in the State of Qatar
and thereafter transferring the entire insurance business portfolio of QLM (except the Labuan branch business that is
currently in runoff) to the newly formed entity. The portfolio transfer process was subject to approval of the Civil and
Commercial Court of the QFC (“QFC Court”). On 07 January 2019, the QFC Court approved the transfer effective 01
January 2019.

513,232
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Zurich

London

Italy
Malta
Oman
Kuwait
Qatar

Gibraltar

Shanghai

Bermuda
UAE
Singapore
Malaysia

QIC EUROPE
LTD OFFICES

INSURANCE
QATAR

DUBAI BRANCH OFFICE

OQIC OFFICES

AVENUES MALL BRANCH

MALTA

QIC Headquarters
Tamin Street, West Bay,
P.O. Box: 666
Doha, Qatar
Tel: +974 44962 222
Call Center: 8000742
Email: qatarins@qic.com.qa
www.qatarinsurance.com

Office 210
Al Dana Centre Building,
Al Maktoum Road, Deira,
P.O. Box 4066
Dubai, UAE
Tel: +97142224045
Email: qicdubai@qici.com.qa
www.qicuae.com

Corporate Office /Retail outlet
4th Floor ,Al Nawras Commercial
Center Building,
Near HSBC, P.O.Box 3660,
Al Khuwair, P.C. 112,
Sultanate of Oman
Tel: +968 24765333
Fax no: +968 24765399
Email: contact@oqic.com

Shop No 12, Avenues Mall
Al Gubrah
Sultanate of Oman

AL AMERAT BRANCH

QIC Europe Limited
The Hedge Business Centre
Triq ir-Rampa ta’ San Giljan
Balluta Bay
St Julian’s STJ 1062
Malta
Tel: +356 2092 8888
Email: QEL-info@qiceuropeltd.com
www.qiceuropeltd.com

RUWI BRANCH

SOHAR BRANCH

ITALY BRANCH

Opposite, NBO, CBD
Ruwi
Sultanate of Oman

Sohar Al Wakeba
Sohar
Sultanate of Oman

AL KHOUD BRANCH

NIZWA BRANCH

Building No. 312,
Block no. 331,
Commercial Khoud
Al Khoud
Sultanate of Oman

Shop No. S-2 Nizwa Grand Mall
Sultanate of Oman

QIC Europe Limited
Foro Buonaparte 70
Milan 20121
Italy
Tel: +39 02 861 914
Email: QEL.info.it@qiceuropeltd.it
www.qiceuropeltd.it

BARKA BRANCH

UK BRANCH

Shop No-8, Near Michline Tyre,
Near OAB (OLD),
Sultanate of Oman

QIC Europe Limited
21 Lime Street,
London EC3M 7HB, U.K.
Tel: +44 0203 598 8770
Email: QEL-info.uk@qiceuropeltd.uk
www.qiceuropeltd.uk

BRANCH OFFICES
Abu Hamour
Al Khor

KIOSKS
Lulu Hypermarket
(Gharaffa)
Villaggio
Landmark
City Center
Mall of Qatar
Al Meera Mansoura

ABU DHABI BRANCH OFFICE
Shop no.1, Ground floor,
Al Manara Plaza Building
Opposite Madinat Zayed
Shopping Centre Muroor Road,
P. O. Box 73797
Abu Dhabi, UAE
Tel: +971-26769466
Email: qicabudh@qici.com.qa
www.qicuae.com

KUWAIT
Kuwait Qatar Insurance Company
8th Floor, Burj Jassim, Al Soor St.
Mirgab, Kuwait
P. O. Box: 25137, Safat: 13112
Tel: +965 22960160
Email: qic@qickwt.com
www.qickwt.com
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SALALAH BRANCH
Alrazikh Building,
Shop No 5 & 6 Central Market
Salalah
Sultanate of Oman

Next to Omantel new branch
Al Hajer Street, Al Amerat
Sultanate of Oman

MABELLA BRANCH
Shop No-8, Near Michline Tyre,
Near OAB (OLD),
Sultanate of Oman

ASSET
MANAGEMENT

REINSURANCE
QATAR REINSURANCE
COMPANY
BERMUDA
HEADQUARTERS
Qatar Reinsurance Company
Limited
71 Pitts Bay Road
Pembroke, HM08
Bermuda
Tel: +1 441 400 5000
www.qatarreinsurance.com

ZURICH BRANCH OFFICE
Qatar Reinsurance Company
Limited
Bleicherweg 72
8002 Zurich
Switzerland
Tel: +41 44 207 8585
www.qatarreinsurance.com

DUBAI BRANCH OFFICE
Qatar Reinsurance Company
Limited
Office 211 - 212, Level 2
Gate Village 4, DIFC
P.O. Box 506752
Dubai, UAE
Tel: +971 4 302 3444
www.qatarreinsurance.com

LONDON OFFICE

QATAR

Qatar Reinsurance
Company Limited
21 Lime Street,
London EC3M 7HB, U.K.
Tel: +44 203 598 8700
www.qatarreinsurance.com

Qatar Economic Advisors
Tamin Street,
West Bay,
P.O. Box 666
Doha
Qatar
Tel: + 974 44962222
Email: info@qicgroup.com.qa
www.qatarinsurance.com

DOHA OFFICE
Qatar Reinsurance Services LLC
8th Floor, QIC Building
Tamin Street, West Bay Area
P.O. Box 24938
Doha, Qatar
Tel: +974 4033 777
www.qatarreinsurance.com

GIBRALTAR OFFICE
Markerstudy Insurance Co. Ltd
846-848 Europort,
Gibraltar
Zenith Insurance Plc
846-848 Europort,
Gibraltar

BRITISH VIRGIN
ISLANDS
Epicure Managers Qatar
Trinity Chambers, Road Town,
Tortola
P.O. Box 4301
British Virgin Islands
Email: info@qicgroup.com.qa
www.qatarinsurance.com

QLM OFFICES

LLOYD’S

Q LIFE & MEDICAL
INSURANCE COMPANY

LONDON

Tamin Street
West Bay
P.O. Box 201233
Doha, Qatar
Tel: + 44040600
Email: customercare@qlm.
com.qa
www.qlm.com.qa

Q LIFE & MEDICAL
INSURANCE COMPANY
- ASIA REGION
Brighton Place
U0215
Jalan Bahasa
87014 Labuan FT
Malaysia
Tel: + 6087442899
Email: customercare@qlm.
com.qa
www.qlm.com.qa

Antares Managing Agency Ltd.
21 Lime Street,
London EC3M 7HB, U.K.
Tel: +44 (0)20 7959 1900
Email: info@antaresunderwriting.com
www.antaresunderwriting.com

SINGAPORE
Antares Underwriting Asia Pte. Ltd.
138 Market Street
#04-04 CapitaGreen
Singapore 048946
Tel: +656 911 2790
Email: info@antaresunderwriting.com
www.antaresunderwriting.com

SHANGHAI
Antares Division at Lloyd’s China
33rd Floor, Azia Center
1233 Lujiazui Ring Rd,
Pudong
Shanghai 200120
Tel: +86 21 6162 8120
Email: info@antaresunderwriting.com
www.antaresunderwriting.com
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